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The Group is the leading medical group in China specialized in
providing hair-related healthcare services, and offers one-stop hair-
related healthcare services covering hair transplant, medical hair care,
and routine hair restoration and other ancillary services.

Through decades of dedication and commitment to China’s
hair-related healthcare industry, the Group have made Yonghe
Hair Transplant (Z&KfE52) a well-known and highly trusted brand
among its peers, and have promoted many major developments and
advancements in the industry. After acquired mainland China business
of Svenson and successfully established a Svenson Medical Hair Care
Center (P EHEEEF S )) in each of its clinics in mainland China
under a “shop-in-shop” model, the Group further expanded its
footprint outside the mainland China by acquiring the Hong Kong
business of Nu/Hart Hair (B#fE52), a renowned hair transplant
service provider originated from the U.S. In addition, through
the cooperation with prestigious universities such as Sun Yat-sen
University, the Group is blazing a trail toward collaborative research
and development with academia and showing the way forward for
the hair-related healthcare service industry. By breaking those new
grounds, the Group are enhancing our core competitiveness and
further strengthening our leading position in the industry.

The Group has built a one-stop shop for medical hair care services to
meet the medical demands of a wide range of patients. Leveraging
standardized and highly scalable business model, the Group has
achieved industry-leading operational capabilities, enabling us to
effectively control costs, boost operational efficiency and improve
profitability. The Group continues to improve our diagnostic,
therapeutic, and research and development capabilities by
collaborating with experts from Class lIA hospitals and renowned
academic institutions. In addition, in order to continuously improve
medical service to patients, to stay ahead of the technological curve
and to propel business development, the Group has always been
actively promoting and adopting new technologies in its business,
including data usage and analysis, intelligent services and online
services. The Group believes that such strengths have reinforced our
industry-leading position and will sustain our growth momentum into
the future.
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REGISTERED OFFICE
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Grand Cayman KY1-9010
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
BZE12H31A
Year ended December 31,
20214 20204 20194 20184
2021 2020 2019 2018
AR®T T AR®EF T ARETTT ARKETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
REEE Operating results
RERFPAHBRA Revenue from contracts with
customers 2,168,580 1,638,297 1,224,477 934,326

EH Gross profit 1,579,976 1,221,630 889,098 702,119

R P15 5 A A Profit before income tax 210,276 230,914 71,523 111,289

Fel Net profit 120,188 163,332 35,624 53,500

KSR LRE R Adjusted net profit 181,176 136,390 35,624 53,500

BTN Profitability

ESVES Gross profit margin 72.9% 74.6% 72.6% 75.2%

Pl Net profit margin 5.5% 10.0% 2.9% 5.7%

AR AT = Adjusted net profit margin 8.35% 8.33% 2.91% 5.73%

R12H31H
As at December 31,
20214 20204 20194 20184
2021 2020 2019 2018
AR®T T ARETTT AREFT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

B AR Financial Position

EERE Total assets 3,199,303 1,594,356 931,213 734,445

e Fat k) Total equity 1,698,345 406,058 239,120 203,496

BfERE Total liabilities 1,500,958 1,188,298 692,093 530,949

ReERBELZED Cash and cash equivalents 1,566,192 292,856 89,789 68,476

M5E Notes:

(1) #H=Z=E2021FK2020F12 A31HIEFERF (1) Adjustments to net profit for the year ended December 31, 2021 and
FEARERBE : () LWAZ - 7K2021 2020 include: (i) listing expenses of RMB47.0 million and RMB5.0 million
FR2020FEAFIR/RARE47T.08ETREA in 2021 and 2020, respectively; (i) COVID-19-related social insurance,
R¥ESOBET : (NVHTEEP KR rent concession and tax relief of RMBO0.6 million and RMB32.0 million in
He RBUWER%E - 7R2021 4 K%20204F 2021 and 2020, respectively; (iii) profit tax paid in respect of dividends
DRABARKOEEBTRARKI20EE to overseas companies and income tax of transfer of shares in the
TG 5 (i) A EEINA B9 AL BT S A5 B9 RIS R LA reorganization of RMB21.0 million in 2021; and (iv) compensations
REEBERROEBRNOMEH - 72021 received from property owners for early termination of leases of RMB6.4
FRARE21.0B8BL: (VVAEXEERRE million in 2021.

RIEMEREEEMEFHDMMEE R
2021 RARB6AFET -

(2)  EEEEFRE TR SR F R AR A G (2)  Adjusted net profit margin is calculated by dividing adjusted net profit

g by revenue.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

2021 was a challenging year. The risks and challenges brought by
the complex and difficult domestic and international situations and
the COVID-19 pandemic posed headwinds to our rapid development.
2021 was also a milestone year in many aspects. With the concerted
efforts of the whole country in coordinating the pandemic prevention
and control and economic and social development, we achieved a
good start for the 14th Five-Year Plan and maintained the vitality of
China’s economic. Yonghe Medical was able to overcome obstacles
backed by such solid foundation. We upheld the original intention,
took steady steps and delivered encouraging results.

Yonghe Medical’s successful listing on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on December
13, 2021 marked a new journey to the international capital market
at a more steady and better-regulated pace and made strides to the
future.

During the Reporting Period, Yonghe Medical sustained a high-quality
and rapid growth in overall results. For the year ended December
31, 2021, the Group realized an operating revenue of RMB2,168.6
million, representing a year-over-year increase of 32.4%. The gross
profit was RMB1,580.0 million, representing a year-over-year increase
of 29.3%. The adjusted net profit was RMB181.2 million, representing
a year-over-year increase of 32.8%. During the year ended December
31, 2021, we operated 54 hair transplant clinics in 53 cities
nationwide. We ranked top 1 among peers in terms of total operating
revenue, market share and the number of both registered physicians
and patients.

Yonghe Medical has always upheld the original intention of healthcare
by providing more professional and higher-quality hair-related
healthcare services to patients. During the Reporting Period, the total
number of patients who received services of the Group increased
by 64.5% from 91,100 in 2020 to 149,900 in 2021. Among them,
over 58,000 patients received our hair transplant surgeries and over
105,000 patients received medical hair care services.

Yonghe Medical was officially included in the scope of the eligible
securities for Southbound Trading under the Shenzhen-Hong Kong
Stock Connect Program on March 7, 2022, after being enlisted as a
constituent stock of the Hang Seng Composite Index. These reflects
the recognition of us from the public, including the capital market,
our industry and our patients.
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ACCELERATING BUSINESS EXPANSION
RIDING ON MARKET TRENDS

According to Frost & Sullivan, the size of the hair-related healthcare
service market in China reached RMB18.4 billion in 2020, and is
expected to grow to RMB138.1 billion in 2030 with a compound
annual growth rate of 22.3%. We are developing our business
in “the ten-billion-yuan hair transplant sector towards the
hundred-billion-yuan hair-related healthcare market and aiming at the
trillion-yuan ecosystem”. In China’s hair-related healthcare market,
both the hair transplant sector and the medical hair care sector are at
an early stage of development, implying a huge growth potential of
the market. Therefore, we will continue to accelerate the expansion
of our clinic network by opening new clinics under the brand of
Yonghe Hair Transplant, stand-alone stores under the brand of
Svenson Medical Hair Care Center, and comprehensive hair hospitals,
to achieve a faster business growth of our hair transplant services and
our medical hair care services.

“Plants with strong roots grow well, and efforts with the right
focus will ensure success.” Focusing on each segment of the entire
hair-related healthcare ecosystem, it is important for us to establish a
more comprehensive and solid brand moat, and build a brand matrix
for the full industry chain which is centered on our “Yonghe Medical”
and strengthened by “Yonghe Hair Transplant” for our professional
hair transplant services, “Svenson” for our medical hair care services,
“Yonghe Fa Zhi Chu” for our female aesthetic hair transplant services,
and “Harvard” for our medical wig products.

EETS

Hair-related healthcare market

510

Clinics

HE

Hair transplant services

i 22

Medical hair care services

?E?HEE ol

Yonghe Hair Transplant

7 Svenson HARWILELD
Z%ﬁg&iﬂ EEiﬂl [Iy=any
| | |
|
YONGHEGROUP

ERETED
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In 2022, despite the persistent pandemic challenges and the escalating
geopolitical conflicts, China continues to promote the implementation
of its 14th Five-Year Plan and maintains its unwavering determination
and focus on pursuing high-quality and sustainable development
under the evolving internal and external environment. This gives
us confidence and courage to seize the opportunities and look for
breakthrough development amid changes.

EMBRACING PEOPLE-CENTERED APPROACH
AND ADHERING TO HONEST MEDICAL
PRACTICE

Talents are the core competitive strength for business development.
The internal structure of the Group consists of three parts, namely
our headquarters, regional groups and clinics. The adoption of
unified standards across the nation and the collaboration among
such three parts allow us to provide improved quality of medical
service. Our professional medical staff are not only crucial to our hair-
related healthcare services, but also are one of our core competitive
strengths. As of December 31, 2021, we had the largest professional
medical team in the industry consisting of 1,221 members, 259 of
them were registered physicians and 893 of them were nurses. In
addition, leveraging our well-established comprehensive training
system and promotion mechanism for our medical staff, we are able
to ensure the continued availability of talents and driving force for
staff development.

“No matter how high the mountain is, we can always ascend to its
top.” The Group adheres to honest medical practice. We care our
patients with sincerity and treat our staff in good faith. In the course
of our accelerating business expansion, all clinics are wholly owned
by us to ensure the quality of our healthcare services. In 2021, we
upgraded our service system from the “5-Guarantee Agreement”
to the "5+5 Carefree Assurance” to give pre-operative and
post-operative assurance to patients throughout the entire process.
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ENHANCING CLINICAL EXPERIENCE AND
LEADING TECHNOLOGICAL ADVANCEMENT
IN THE INDUSTRY

Innovation is a driver for Yonghe Medical to make breakthroughs.
Yonghe Medical has already spearheaded the introduction of the FUE
technology (Follicular Unit Extraction technology), and become one
of the first entities to apply the FUE technology in hair transplant
services back to 2008. With the continued efforts to identify patients’
potential demands, the Group delivers improved service experience
to patients that better suits their needs by exploring the innovative
application of cutting-edge technology, which also helps enhance
operation efficiency and reduces operating costs. Those benefits are
reflected in the following three aspects:

First, the clinical experience of our patients is enhanced through
internet-based development of our business. Yonghe Medical will
shift to adopt a semi-self service business model, which will facilitate
our medical staff to concentrate on surgical treatment and other
tasks that require a higher degree of professionalism, while other
procedural matters are expected to be completed by patients as
many as practicable with the assistance of our smart internet system.
For example, our mini program “Mao Guan Jia” ("EEBR") hair
management App provides patients with quick access to information
such as introductions to hair transplant surgeries, qualifications of our
physicians, quotations and latest promotion packages.

Second, our professionalism and efficiency of professionals are
enhanced through intelligent upgrade of device. As the hair
transplant industry is currently at the stage of development, some
of the devices are relatively outdated. Yonghe Medical joins forces
with manufacturers along the supply chain to conduct research and
development activities for the invention of intelligentized professional
devices, with an aim to enhance our professionalism and efficiency of
professionals through technological advancement.

Third, our surgery quality and industry transparency are improved
through data-driven method. At present, all of our clinics under
Yonghe Medical are equipped with smart large screens that
transparently shows the real-time update of the data regarding
information about the number of surgeries, age and occupation
distribution of patients, etc. In addition, real-time tracking of surgery
quality is available through live broadcasts which enables our patients
and their family members to monitor the surgical procedures operated
by our physicians, and assess and comment for the overall services.
This helps us further improve our service quality.
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CLOSING

Although there are some uncertainties in the social and economic
environment, our fundamental principle of promoting business
development remains the same, which is to provide patients with
professional, high-quality and honest services and to satisfy their
needs and expectations. Therefore, we will continue to uphold our
core value of “better-regulated and more transparent”. Embracing
the benefits of scientific and technological advancement, we will take
active steps towards innovation by means of intelligent technology
application, service optimization and industry-university-research
collaboration, so as to promote positive and sustainable development
of the Group and our industry. Being China’s largest medical group
specializing in providing one-stop hair-related healthcare services
is not enough to us. It is the vision of Yonghe Medical to reach
boundless possibilities. In this journey forward, the support from
all walks of life is crucial to us. | would like to express my deepest
gratitude to all of our Shareholders, our staff members and our
business associates for their contribution and assistance!

Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of Yonghe Medical
Zhang Yu

March 24, 2022

1M
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BUSINESS REVIEW

As the leading medical group in China specialized in providing hair-
related healthcare services, we offer one-stop hair-related healthcare
services covering hair transplant, medical hair care, and routine hair
restoration and other ancillary services. We focus on providing hair
transplant services while constantly expanding the boundaries of our
business. Since 2019, we started to provide medical hair care services
by establishing a Svenson Medical Hair Care Center (f EfAEEEE
AL in each of our hair transplant clinics in mainland China under
a "shop-in-shop” model. As of December 31, 2021, we operated
54 clinics in 53 cities nationwide, making us the largest and most
extensive hair transplant clinic chain in China.

The following map sets forth the relevant information of our clinic
network as of December 31, 2021:
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Benefiting from our broad network of clinics nationwide, as well as
the integration of our hair transplant services and medical hair care
services, our business achieved rapid growth. For the year ended
December 31, 2021, revenue of the Group amounted to RMB2,168.6
million, representing an increase of 32.4% from that of RMB1,638.3
million in 2020. Our gross profit amounted to RMB1,580.0 million
and our gross profit margin was 72.9% for the year ended December
31, 2021.

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our revenue, gross
profit and gross profit margin by business line for the periods
indicated :

HZNANALEE
Year ended December 31,
20215 2020%
2021 2020

WA EYi ERZ A 7 ERE

Gross Gross

Gross profit Gross profit

Revenue profit margin Revenue profit margin

ARET R ARBTR ARETTT NS

RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 %

BEZBBERBE  Hair transplant services 1,565,434 722 1,138,031 .0 1,412,744 8.2 1,061,144 75.1

BEEERAE  Medical hair care services 582,290 26.8 430,254 73.9 213214 13.0 157,305 738

Aty Others 20,856 1.0 11,691 56.1 12,339 0.8 3,181 258

2,168,580 100.0 1,579,976 72.9 1,638,297 100.0 1,221,630 74.6

EEERRE BREERB Hth
Hair transplant services Medical hair care services Others
ARBF ARBF T ARBF 7T
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
1,412,744 1,565,434
582,290
213,214 . 12,339 20,856
[ ] . eem AR 000
2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021
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Hair Transplant Services

For the year ended December 31, 2021, our revenue from hair
transplant services amounted to RMB1,565.4 million, representing
an increase of 10.8% over the previous year. We are committed to
providing professional and high-quality hair transplant services to
patients, and strategically build the brand influence of “Yonghe hair
transplant” among patients through our multi-level service system.
The number of hair transplant patients continued to grow as a result
of such commitment and efforts. For the year ended December
31, 2021, the number of our hair transplant patients was 58,464,
representing an increase of 15.3% over the previous year.

The table below illustrates the key operating data of our hair
transplant services in mainland China:

RBER
Unaudited
BZ12A31MBLEE
Year ended December 31,

20214 20204

2021 2020

BEXEEEERBHEE A Number of patients receiving hair transplant services 58,464 50,694

BEEENFHHEE (ARBIT) Average spending per patient (RMB) 26,6430 27,868

=R Three Levels of Services

BEXEBARBHEE A Number of patients that accepted basic-level services 53,776 48,575

BEXEEARBHEE A Number of patients that accepted premium-level services 4,435 1,827
X EZ | RENEE AR Number of patients that accepted “Yongxiang”

(Z2=) services 253 292

(1) EEIENFHHEE=-(BEEBEA - FE
BFEBRN), BEXEEZBRERBBEA
2

BEREEE XK

HE2021F12A31ALLFE  RANEE
BEEEHFRABARKESS 2 IEETL  BE
FIM173.1% - ERFEEEEBREBT
¥METE  RACCHESEEZEERE
FUEREIMENRLT (S EHRESE
Edhd] - ABERHBEENZERENTE
FMERR RS - RIPBBTEIRARBEE
EMAEME - R2021 FERINIL®EE R
EBETE - SRR TBRESERSNIERE
R FHE2021F12A31HIEFE  BSH
Mg EERAAEEABA105275A
B EFEINT8.1% ©

(1) Average spending per hair transplant patient = (revenue from hair
transplant business - revenue from the Hong Kong business of Nu/Hart
Hair ) / number of patients receiving hair transplant services

Medical Hair Care Services

For the year ended December 31, 2021, our revenue from medical
hair care services amounted to RMB582.3 million, representing
an increase of 173.1% over the previous year. As a first mover in
China’s medical hair care industry, we have provided professional and
customized diagnosis and treatment services to our patients through
Svenson Medical Hair Care Centers (2 E#EEELZH () in our hair
transplant clinics under a “shop-in-shop” model. By continuously
improving the service quality and treatment efficacy, we successfully
strengthened the brand loyalty of patients and further stabilized the
repurchase rate of our medical hair care services for the year of 2021.
For the year ended December 31, 2021, the number of our medical
hair care patients was 105,275, representing an increase of 78.1%
over the previous year.
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The table below illustrates the key operating data of our medical hair
care services:

RIBER
Unaudited
BZ12A31HLLEE

Year ended December 31,

20215 20204
2021 2020
X EREERENEEAK Number of patients receiving medical hair care services 105,275 59,122
EREEBENANLEE Average spending per medical hair care patients (RMB)
(AR¥TT) 5,531 3,606
vt Repurchase rate* 29.0% 28.9%
O RBEBREEERG2MBEABBRUAS * Calculated by the number of patients purchasing our medical hair care

NEEEESBERGNEARTE

RBER
R LB e h MR T 82

WERELE N  EmERMEESIEHIAA -
ROEBEAWERMETEN - HiERBEEEE
MERE - SREBHR - RMERTEEFN
BERASLLETSH T 4ANBREH  Re T
BEOFINETEE - HRUIERA T HMH
FRrEFIAMEREEBBRAR - B ZE2021
F12A310 - AEBZRERNMEEEKE
FHHIMABERE RN E FE  BEEE
Bl E (B RFTEE RS RAME VBT E
FrEmesf) T80 A14EA -

ERERRERENAET  ARERBKE
BERBEARE(L  BREBERBNHRED
B WREBRHERKEOERRS o B
BYTNREHNBEEEEEZES/ARL
shrEBRERNEAXE  BEREEEEH
EMREAERNE2NEREEEHERE
REREEZRRTMEEEZEES  BR
T2EREL BEZHRARZAEEE

e

2 o
=

services more than once, divided by the total number of patients who
purchased our medical hair care services during the period.

BUSINESS UPDATES

Strengthening operational and medical service
capabilities

Leveraging on our outstanding operational capability, we are able to
effectively control our costs and enhance our operational efficiency
and profitability. During the Reporting Period, in terms of enhancing
our operational efficiency of medical services, we improved our
surgery efficiency by increasing the doctor-nurse ratio (per surgery)
from 1:5 to 1:4, which provided a better surgical comfort to patients
and effectively improved the utilization efficiency of our operating
rooms and the manpower efficiency of our medical team. As of
December 31, 2021, the average initial breakeven period of all of the
Group's clinics in operation was approximately three months, and
their average cash investment payback period (representing the time
required for the recovery of the initial investment from accumulated
operating cash flows) was approximately 14 months.

The Group achieved rapid expansion of clinics and provided
consistent, high-quality medical services by standardizing the medical
service system without compromising the quality of service. We
realized full staff standardization, and implemented a full-process
and full-coverage closed-loop quality control by establishing a
comprehensive medical quality management system, which consists
of the medical quality management committee at our headquarters
as the core component with the support of medical quality control
panels at clinics. The medical quality management system and process
serve as the foundation together with the combination of online
medical record quality control and surgery quality control.
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team
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In 2021, the Group focused its efforts on establishing a refined
surgical quality management system. Under the leadership of the
medical quality management committee at our headquarters, our
“first diagnose physician accountability system” (& @2 B4 & TH)
was launched to strengthen the sense of responsibility to medical
quality among physicians as well as to prevent and control medical
quality risk at source. Meanwhile, the Group published the “Yonghe
Medical’s White Paper on the Hierarchical Diagnosis System for
Physicians” (ERBEELEDRZHERBRIZAKE)). It refines and
upgrades our medical quality evaluation system from the original
6-dimensional to 24-dimensional, which emphasizes the focus on
patients” demands and enhancing patients’ satisfaction through
medical quality improvement. The establishment and improvement
of these systems also laid a solid foundation for the Group to build
a multi-level talent echelon and further develop and nurture talents
possessing medical expertise.

As of December 31, 2021, the Group has built a professional medical
team consisting of 1,221 members:

FEIT 8 A
Registered Physicie

(BB S - 85
Other medical profes
(including pharmaci
and clinical scientists
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Promoting innovation in products and services

During the Reporting Period, the Group also made great efforts in
scientific research and innovation. Our collaboration with Sun Yat-
sen University in researching follicular regeneration technology and
our collaboration with West China Hospital of Sichuan University
in the novel target for androgenic alopecia treatment are still in
progress. In order to improve patients’ experience, we carried
out our groundbreaking research and development initiatives in
multi-functional professional hair transplant surgical beds, and
independently designed and developed ancillary surgical medical
devices to enhance patients’ safety and comfortability. We also
conducted multiple research and development including drugs for
preventing anxiety-induced alopecia to blaze a new trail for the
treatment of hair loss. For the year ended December 31, 2021, we
had 13 medical technology patents and three pending applications
for invention patents, which have been applied to further improve our
surgical safety and efficacy.

The remote consultations and “Yongxiang” (% %) one-on-one
exclusive customer service we provided allow us to offer our patients
with more accessible diagnosis services. For each patient visiting
our clinics, we provide a comprehensive diagnosis report, detailing
the cause of hair loss and the nature and type of hair conditions.
To improve patients’ clinical experience and satisfaction, we also
offer innovative medical technology services, such as hair transplant
without shaving, painless surgery, intraoperative comfort care and
stress relief at surgery rooms. At the same time, we are working on a
series of technological information-based healthcare system such as
automated follicle detectors and follicle number calculation system for
photos taken in hair transplant surgery areas and intelligent surgery
rooms. We will continue to strive for new heights in research and
development activities relating to medical hair care services to further
address the diversified needs of patients.

Promoting technological development

We adopt industry-leading technology to enhance patients’
experience, enlarge our patient base, increase our operating efficiency
and reduce costs. Our technological advancement is primarily reflected
in three aspects, namely data usage and analysis, intelligent services,
and online services.
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We have set up a business management system that tracks, records
and presents operational data of our clinics nationwide and launched
a set of intelligent consultation service software for graphic,
telephonic and video consultation services, and have set up a team
of professional online medical staff to actively promote our online
medical services. In addition, we have been working hard for the
launch of other smart systems and facilities, such as Al smart hair
testing, 3D smart beauty designing, smart hair loss size measuring,
post-operative effect contraster, hair testing machine and integrated
healthcare management system, with aims to reduce our costs of
production and operation and enhance the experience of patients and
the professionalism of our services.

We believe our technology-oriented operation represents a unique
advantage that differentiates us from other hair-related healthcare
service providers, enables continuous improvement of patients’
experience, attracts more patients, and reinforces patients’ loyalty,
which will, in turn, promote our brand development, solidify our
market dominance, and boost our sustainable future growth.

Pandemic impacts

The outbreak of COVID-19 has significantly affected the global
economy. Since late July 2021, the delta variant of COVID-19 has
recurred in several provinces across China, which had a certain impact
on our business operation. Our 11 clinics located in Nanjing, Wuxi,
Zhengzhou, Xi'an, Dalian, Harbin, Luoyang, Xiamen, Quanzhou,
Lanzhou and Changzhou successively experienced temporary closures
or limitation on customer flow due to the pandemic. Our plans to
open another 3 new clinics in Yangzhou, Zhangzhou and Shantou and
to upgrade the clinic in Urumqi were delayed due to the pandemic. As
a result, our total revenue for 2021 was adversely affected to a certain
extent by the recurrence of the pandemic. However, the recurrence
of the pandemic was effectively controlled due to the quick response
of the relevant authorities, which allowed our clinics in most of the
cities to resume normal business operation. Meanwhile, leveraging the
various marketing campaigns we launched and the efficient operation
of online services, we encouraged patients who visited those clinics
in pandemic-affected areas to return to our clinic for treatment when
the pandemic is over. We believe these measures would help sustain
our business growth regardless of potential pandemic outbreak in the
future.
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We will continue to assess the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic by
measuring the Group’s operating and financial results. We will also
closely monitor the development of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
risk exposures and uncertainties faced by the Group. Appropriate
measures will be taken as and when necessary.

Prospects

Alopecia is the major hair-related problem presenting a high market
demand for hair-related treatment in the PRC market. According
to Frost & Sullivan, the size of the hair-related healthcare service
market in China reached RMB18.4 billion in 2020, and is projected
to grow to RMB138.1 billion in 2030 with a CAGR of 22.3%. In
2021, we received a total of approximately 149.9 thousand patients,
representing an increase of 64.5% as compared with approximately
91.1 thousand patients in 2020. We expect such growth momentum
to persist. Leveraging our efforts in building a one-stop platform for
hair-related healthcare services and taking advantage of the favorable
industry prospect, the Group’s market-leading position and its
established brand recognition, we believe that we are well-positioned
to capture the great opportunities in this fast-growing market.

Continue the expansion and upgrade of our clinic
network

° Hair transplant clinics

We will pursue our strategy of penetrating into lower-tier cities
and densifying our presence in tier-one cities to further expand
our network of hair transplant clinics and further increase our
coverage across different tiers of cities. We expect to have nearly
70 hair transplant clinics in China by 2022.

. Svenson Medical Hair Care Centers

Entering into the hair care market from the hair transplant
market, we will strategically develop our medical hair care
business by upgrading our Svenson Medical Hair Care Centers
under the previously “shop-in-shop” model as stand-alone
medical hair care clinics. We expect to open 12 to 15 stand-
alone Svenson Medical Hair Care Centers by 2022. We will
open multiple Svenson Medical Hair Care Centers in one city to
give patients convenient access to our services. Once we have
mastered the mature business model of the stand-alone medical
hair care clinics, we will accelerate our business development
in the medical hair care industry. China’s medical hair care
service market will harbor huge growth potential in the next
few years and such expansion will gain us significant first mover
advantages.
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o Comprehensive hair hospitals

We will soon commence operation of our two comprehensive
hair hospitals in Beijing and Shanghai, which are under
construction, after their construction is completed by 2022.
Transforming our hair transplant clinics to comprehensive hair
hospitals is another move made by us to achieve business
expansion from hair transplant market to hair-related healthcare
service market. Qualified as class | general hospitals, our newly-
built comprehensive hair hospitals will have multiple hair-
related specialty departments in addition to the hair transplant
department, such as alopecia department, re-examination
department, international department, feminine beauty
department, Chinese medicine department and psychology
department, enabling us to provide patients with professional
diagnosis and comprehensive treatment solutions.

Promote synergy between hair transplant and medical
hair care services

A strong synergy has been created alongside the business
development of our hair transplant services and medical hair care
services. In 2021, we recorded a conversion rate of 44.6% for hair
transplant patients who continued to choose our medical hair care
services after receiving hair transplant surgery, and a conversion
rate of 4.4% for those who continued to choose our hair transplant
surgery after receiving our medical hair care services. We will continue
to diversify the solution offerings for our one-stop hair-related
healthcare services. By doing so, we can offer a more comprehensive
solution to patients on their hair-related healthcare problems, and
provide patients with more accommodating services with better
efficacy and higher cost performance ratio. Meanwhile, acquiring
and maintaining different clienteles between our hair transplant and
medical hair care services will further create synergies to redirect
customers among business lines, which would help us to attain
higher customer lifetime value, enhance our profitability and generate
continuous revenue.
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Satisfy diverse needs of customers

With the advent of aesthetic hair transplant, diversification of hair
transplant options, and innovation of services, the customer base
for hair transplant in China will expand from alopecia patients to a
larger group of consumers seeking to improve appearance through
medical treatment, which is expected to drive up the scale of China’s
hair transplant service market to reach RMB75.6 billion by 2030. In
recent years, there has been an increase in the market share of female
patients in the total number of hair transplant patients. Compared
with the functional hair transplant for male, hair transplant surgeries
receiving by female tend to suit to their aesthetic aspirations. At the
end of 2021, the Group launched a brand targeting to female hair
transplant, namely the “Yonghe Fa zZhi Chu” (ZERE 2 %)), to provide
professional female aesthetic hair management services for our female
patients. Based on our experience in providing hair management
services since our establishment, and our innovative female aesthetic
hair-related healthcare system, we satisfy the diverse needs of our
customers by providing services such as application of sitting hair
extraction (#2A7HUE), long hair extraction (KZHZ), long hair
transplantation (&7 18) and clinical application of comfortable hair
transplantation (&7 @E{LHEZEG IR IE ).

Uphold the original intention of healthcare and
implement the value of integrity and transparency in
healthcare

As the technology in the hair transplant industry has become mature,
the difference in the outcome of hair transplant surgery is largely
dependent on the individual ability of physicians in terms of academic
skills, surgical and clinical experience and customized design. The
Group has always been committed to the scientific philosophy of
“outstanding hair transplant depends on professional physicians”.
Shadowing physicians, traps of low price and technology package are
strictly forbidden by the Group. We act in the interest of our patients
and advocate the value of “patients are the center and physicians are
the core”. On May 24, 2021, the General Office of the State Council
issued the Key Tasks for Deepening the Reform of the Medical and
Healthcare System in 2021 (OF{b BE B2 AL B8 BN E 2021 FEE TIEME
%)), expressly proposing to “accelerate and promote the hierarchical
diagnosis and treatment system that ensures physicians to be fairly
paid based on their skills, and avoid over-treatment for the benefits of
patients. In response to the government'’s call, the Group meticulously
improved a hierarchical diagnosis and treatment system for physicians
taking into account the factors such as the healthcare quality,
years of practice, medical qualification and service competence of
physicians. Such system provides consistency and transparency in the
intrinsic value and external price of physicians, paves a complete,
rational and healthy path for the sustainable growth of physicians,
and puts the physician accountability system into practice to the
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maximum extent. In the meantime, in order to better implement our
integrity and transparent healthcare value and provide high-quality
services for patients, in February 2022, the Group made appropriate
adjustments to the standard charges for hair transplant services which
are classified into four bands according to the grading of “Yongxiang
deans (#ZPFTK), Yongxiang chiefs (= £ 1{T), business deans (¥
Pt &) and business chiefs (¥#F1E)" under our hierarchical
diagnosis and treatment system. Higher weights are being assigned
to more capable physicians and the pricing guideline has turned
more straightforward and transparent. This helps patients make their
decisions and incentivize our physicians to pursue excellence and
seek self-enhancement. In the future, we will persist in upholding
the original intention of healthcare and implementing the value of
integrity and transparency in healthcare, as well as striving to create
greater value for our patients.

* Data contained in the Prospect section is sourced from the industry
information provided by Frost & Sullivan

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

In 2021, the Group had a revenue of RMB2,168.6 million (2020:
RMB1,638.3 million), representing an increase of 32.4% over last
year. The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from (i) hair transplant
services; (ii) medical hair care services; and (iii) others.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our revenue by business
line for the periods indicated:

BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,

202145 20204
2021 2020

AR¥T AREFT
RMB’000 % RMB’'000 %
BEEERE Hair transplant services 1,565,434 72.2 1,412,744 86.2
B EE RS Medical hair care services 582,290 26.8 213,214 13.0
Efb Others 20,856 1.0 12,339 0.8
2,168,580 100.0 1,638,297 100.0
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Revenue from hair transplant services

The Group’s revenue from hair transplant services was RMB1,565.4
million (2020: RMB1,412.7 million) for 2021, representing an increase
of 10.8% over last year. Such increase in revenue from hair transplant
services was primarily attributable to the increased number of our
patients. The number of hair transplant patients served by the Group
increased by 7,770 from last year to 58,464 in 2021.

Revenue from medical hair care services

The Group's revenue from medical hair care services was RMB582.3
million (2020: RMB213.2 million) for 2021, representing an increase
of 173.1% over last year. Such increase in revenue from hair
transplant services was primarily attributable to the rapid development
of our medical hair care services under the brand name of Svenson,
and the growth in the number of patients and average spending per
patient in 2021. In 2021, the number of medical hair care patients
served by the Group increased by 46,153 from last year to 105,275,
and the average spending per patient increase from RMB3,606.0 in
2020 to RMB5,531.0 in 2021.

Revenue from other services

The Group’s revenue from other services mainly derived from the
rendering of services and sales of goods by our stand-alone Svenson
stores, which amounted to RMB20.9 million (2020: RMB12.3 million)
in 2021, representing an increase of 69.0% over last year. Such
increase in revenue from other services was attributable to the growth
in sales of products at Svenson stores.

23



24

EREBEEEAERAT  YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

EEE WD

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DS

BERAN > AEENHERRERAEIEZR
BEIRA #ERTEER  FENER
mAA - RERBERAX REMAX - TR
SRS BN ARREE S BN EE KR
TSR AR BRAR

Costs

During the Reporting Period, the Group's cost of sales and services
primarily consisted of staff costs, amortization and depreciation
charges, cost of inventories and consumables, operation related
expenses and other expenses. The following table sets forth a
breakdown of our cost of sales and services by nature for the periods
indicated:

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

20214 20204
2021 2020

ARBT R % AR®ETT %

RMB’000 % RMB’'000 %

BI A Staff costs 246,910 42.0 165,946 39.8
BERITEER Amortization and depreciation charges 177,874 30.2 141,686 34.0
GFE MFEM KA Cost of inventories and consumables 101,220 17.2 63,951 15.3
LR X Operation related expenses 33,048 5.6 21,164 5.1
HAth sz Other expenses 29,552 5.0 23,920 5.8
588,604 100.0 416,667 100.0

M2021F  AEENKANAEARKESS8.68
B0 (2020F « AR¥416.7AET) R E
FHEMA1.3% - BEp - BT ARIEXNTE
EBITREMBEEABNFERES A
BRIZHBMELRETHRREMSHE
EEEEERABEMATR - HERTES
AXrE2EFAREERETEENE r AR
FHARBEEENEINEBIEERITEER
IEFTIEM - FERFEMBERAEN 2 H
REMOESEBRRER  LEEERY
FERFKEBEREBCE EHHAITER
EAA R M INE -

During 2021, the Group incurred costs of RMB588.6 million (2020:
RMB416.7 million), representing an increase of 41.3% over last year.
In particular, staff costs represent the salaries, wages and bonuses
paid to physicians, nurses and other professionals, the increase in
which was primarily attributable to increased headcount of our
professional medical team to meet the requirements for the continued
business expansion of our clinics. Amortization and depreciation
charges mainly represent the depreciation of our right-of-use assets
and fixed assets, the increase of which was in line with the increased
number of our new clinics. The increase in cost of inventories and
consumables was primarily attributable to the rapid development of
our principal operations. Operation related expenses mainly include
utilities and maintenance fees. Other expenses primarily include non-
deductible input taxes and surcharges.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

In 2021, the Group recorded a gross profit of RMB1,580.0 million
(2020: RMB1,221.6 million), representing an increase of 29.3% over
last year. Our gross profit margin was 72.9% (2020: 74.6%). Such
decline in gross profit margin was primarily attributable to (i) the
expanded talent pool of the Group for future deployment; and (ii)
the additional depreciation of right-of-use assets incurred for the
increased number of our new clinics.

Other income

The Group's other income mainly consists of government grants
and additional value-added tax credit. In 2021, the Group had other
income of RMB3.6 million (2020: RMB6.3 million).

General and administrative expenses

During 2021, the Group incurred general and administrative expenses
of RMB247.5 million (2020: RMB162.0 million). Our general and
administrative expenses primarily consist of (i) staff costs, which
represent share-based compensation expenses, wages, benefits and
bonuses of our administrative staff; (ii) operation related expenses
for our administrative team, which primarily include conference fees,
utilities, maintenance fees and rental payments; (iii) professional and
consulting service fees incurred in relation to audit services, rental
agencies and internet services; (iv) amortization and depreciation
charges; (v) travelling and entertainment expenses; and (vi) listing
expenses. The following table sets forth a breakdown of our general
and administrative expenses by nature for the periods indicated:

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

202145 20204
2021 2020
ARBT ARETTT
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
BIRA Staff costs 123,566 49.9 99,357 61.3
KRR Operation related expenses 16,299 6.6 11,835 7.3
EEANEARGE Professional and consulting service fees 12,436 5.0 5,708 35
BHERITEER Amortization and depreciation charges 8,378 3.4 6,216 3.9
Z MR Travelling and entertainment expenses 6,360 2.6 4,677 2.9
MR Listing expenses 46,977 19.0 5,027 3.1
Hith Others 33,526 13.5 29,202 18.0
247,542 100.0 162,022 100.0
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Selling and marketing expenses

expenses, staff costs, etc.

In 2021, the Group incurred selling and marketing expenses of
RMB1,072.6 million (2020: RMB779.6 million). Our selling and
marketing expenses primarily consist of marketing and promotion

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our selling and

EREEAZAA marketing expenses by nature for the periods indicated:
BZE12A8318LEE
Year ended December 31,
20214 20204
2021 2020

ARBT R ARETTT
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
EIH R EER X Marketing and promotion expenses 684,274 63.8 507,667 65.1
B TR Staff costs 318,928 29.7 220,623 28.3
ERMAX Travelling expenses 30,572 2.9 22,675 2.9
eyl Operation related expenses 20,464 1.9 16,165 2.1
HIERITEER Amortization and depreciation charges 14,551 1.4 11,074 1.4
Hth Others 3,858 0.3 1,407 0.2
1,072,647 100.0 779,611 100.0

REHER Income tax expenses

MR20215EE - REBEMMAEHRERB2020
FEMARKEG7 6B ETIEM33.3%£2021
FEMARMKIO1EET  FIGHAEMNE
TRANAEINR A DAL N B BRI
EERGRNTE -

In 2021, the Group's income tax expenses increased by 33.3% to
RMB90.1 million from RMB67.6 million in 2020. Such increase in
income tax was primarily attributable to the dividend paid to overseas
companies and the transfer of shares in the reorganization.
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Non-HKFRS Measures

To supplement the Group’s consolidated financial statements
which are presented in accordance with HKFRS, the Company has
provided adjusted net profit and adjusted net profit margin as non-
HKFRS financial measures, which is not required by, or presented in
accordance with, HKFRS. The Company believes that the adjusted
financial measures provide useful information to investors in
understanding and evaluating the Group’s consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the same manner as they have helped the Company'’s
management, and that the Company’'s management and investors
may benefit from referring to these adjusted financial measures in
assessing the Group's financial and operating performance from
year to year by eliminating impacts of items that the Group does
not consider indicative of the Group's operating performance.
However, the presentation of these non-HKFRS financial measures
is not intended to be considered in isolation or as a substitute for
the financial information prepared and presented in accordance
with HKFRS. You should not view the adjusted results on a stand-
alone basis or as a substitute for results under HKFRS, or as being
comparable to results reported or forecasted by other companies as
they do not have a standardized meaning. Additionally, these non-
HKFRS financial measures have limitations as analytical tools and may
be defined differently from similar terms used by other companies.

Adjustments to net profit for the year ended December 31, 2021 and
2020 include: (i) listing expenses of RMB47.0 million and RMB5.0
million in 2021 and 2020, respectively; (i) COVID-19-related social
insurance, rent concession and tax relief of RMBO0.6 million and
RMB32.0 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively; (iii) profit tax paid in
respect of dividends to overseas companies and income tax of transfer
of shares in the reorganization of RMB21.0 million in 2021; and (iv)
compensations received from property owners for early termination of
leases of RMB6.4 million in 2021.

Adjusted net profit margin is calculated by dividing adjusted net profit
by revenue.

Net profit and net profit margin

In light of the foregoing, the Group's net profit decreased by 26.4%
from RMB163.3 million in 2020 to RMB120.2 million in 2021. The
Group's net profit margin dropped from 10.0% in 2020 to 5.5% in
2021. The net profit margin reduced when compared with that in
2020 because the Group incurred additional listing expenses and the
Group was at a stage of rapid development which led to an increase
in expenses.
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The Group's adjusted net profit increased by 32.8% from RMB136.4
million in 2020 to RMB181.2 million in 2021. The Group’s adjusted
net profit margin improved from 8.33% in 2020 to 8.35% in 2021.

Inventories

As of December 31, 2021, the Group had inventories of RMB53.1
million (2020: RMB27.0 million). As our principal operations
experienced rapid development during the Reporting Period, our
stocks in warehouses increased accordingly.

Trade and other payables

As of December 31, 2021, the Group had trade and other payables
of RMB225.7 million (2020: RMB138.2 million). Such movement
was primarily attributable to the Listing of the Group during the
Reporting Period, resulting in an increase in expenses as compared
with last year, as well as the outstanding payments in relation to the
acquisition of Nu/Hart Hair Solutions Limited.

Cash and cash equivalents

As of December 31, 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of RMB1,566.2 million (2020: RMB292.9 million), representing
an increase of 434.8% over last year. Such increase was primarily
attributable to the proceeds received from the global offering by the
Group. We have robust cash flows which are adequate to meet the
capital requirements for daily operation and for our plan of future
clinic expansion.

Cash flows

The following table sets forth selected data of the Group's
consolidated statements of cash flows for the years indicated:

BZ12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,

20215 20204

2021 2020

ARBT T ARKEFTT

RMB’'000 RMB'000

KEEEEREFE Net cash from operating activities 437,281 501,571
BREERMAR S FRE Net cash used in investing activities (193,944) (142,388)
BEEBRE,(FTA)ELFE  Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 1,028,222 (156,116)
FUBRekBReSED Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 292,856 89,789
FREBEeRBASED Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 1,566,192 292,856
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

The shares of the Company were successfully listed on the Main Board
on December 13, 2021, the gross proceeds from the share offering
was HK$1,491.9 million and the number of issued ordinary shares
was 94,424,000 of HK$15.8 each.

As at December 31, 2021, cash and cash equivalents of the Group
amounted to RMB1,566.2 million (2020: RMB292.9 million). As at
December 31, 2021, total bank borrowings of the Group amounted
to RMB74.2 million (December 31, 2020: RMB25.9 million).

Capital expenditures

The Group’s capital expenditures mainly represent payments for
purchase of items of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets. The following table sets forth a breakdown of our capital
expenditures for the periods indicated:

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

202145 20204

2021 2020

ARBTR ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

M - BB kBB Payments for property, plant and equipment 181,629 142,204
B EEMNR Payments for intangible assets 9,012 643
@t Total 190,641 142,847

R2021FE - AEENERATBARE
190.6 B& 7T (202049 : AR¥142.88 8
TL)  AREMERIEREHEREATH
1&g o

In 2021, the Group incurred capital expenditures of RMB190.6 million
(2020: RMB142.8 million). Such increase in capital expenditures was
driven by the business expansion of the Group.
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Indebtedness

The Group’s indebtedness mainly includes bank borrowings, amounts
due to related parties and lease liabilities. The following table sets
forth a breakdown of our indebtedness for the years indicated:

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

202145 20204
2021 2020
AR®F T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B Current
HRITERK Bank borrowings 74,173 25,870
e S5 E GEE 5) Amounts due to related parties (non-trade) 25,354 30
HEBE Lease liabilities 185,055 147,051
FERE Non-current
HEBE Lease liabilities 762,303 682,879
@t Total 1,046,885 855,830
RITE Bank borrowings
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As of December 31, 2021, the Group had outstanding interest-
bearing bank borrowings of RMB74.2 million (2020: RMB25.9 million).
Our bank loans bear interest at rates ranging from 4.0% to 4.9% per
annum.

Amounts due to related parties (Non-trade)

As of December 31, 2021, the Group had amounts due to related
parties (non-trade) of RMB25.4 million (2020: RMB0.03 million). The
balance of amounts due to related parties (non-trade) at the end of
2021 was the outstanding balance in respect of the acquisition of NU/
Hart.

Lease liabilities

We recognize a lease liability with respect to all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets. As of December 31,
2021, the Group (as lessee) had total lease liabilities of RMB947.4
million, which were unsettled for the remaining terms of the relevant
lease agreements.
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Future plan for material investments and capital assets

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus, for the year ended December 31,
2021, the Group did not have any future plan for material investments
and capital assets.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

In May 2021, we acquired the Hong Kong business of Nu/Hart Hair
(F8FFfES2), a renowned hair transplant service provider originated
from the U.S. Nu/Hart Hair Solutions Limited which was established
in Hong Kong and wholly owned by Zhuhai Xinsiyu Management
Service Co., Ltd. (“Xinsiyu") before acquisition. In order to expand
the Company’s international business presence, we through our
wholly-owned subsidiary Yuhui Management Holdings Limited,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with Xinsiyu, pursuant
to which we purchased the entire issued share capital of Nu/Hart Hair
at a consideration of RMB30.0 million or equivalent US dollar. The
acquisition was duly completed on May 31, 2021. For details, please
refer to “History, Development and Corporate Structure — Acquisition
of NU/Hart Hair Solutions Limited” in the Prospectus and note 32 in
the financial statement of this annual report.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group did not make any
other material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures.

Charge of assets
There was no charge on the Group’s assets as of December 31, 2021.
Gearing ratio

Gearing ratio is calculated using bank loans and other borrowings
divided by total equity as of the end of such year and multiplied by
100%. As at December 31, 2021, the Group's gearing ratio was 4.4%
(December 31, 2020: 6.4%).

Exchange rates and any related hedges

The Group has no significant foreign currency risk as mainly of its
operations, assets and liabilities are dominated in RMB which is also
its functional currency. We did not hedge against any fluctuation in
foreign currency during the historical record period. After the Listing,
the Group had the cash and cash equivalents of RMB1,180.7 million
denominated in foreign currencies, mainly HKD as at December 31,
2021. We monitor foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign exchange exposure should the need arise.

Contingent liabilities

As at December 31, 2021, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2020: Nil).

31



32

EREBEEEAERAT  YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

EEE WD

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BE R FHMBUR

R2021512A318 » KEELE4L,39588
T ER1,221 880 MANEEEEEK -
HE2021F12A31BIEFEME IR A A
ARM7003EETT  MEE2020F12 31
HIEFEAARE4IM4OEHETT °

AEBEERETREERFNNTFHS
= AWSINNEFEE - ZHECHEIIER
BMEENTERE - NREBEIREITEED
FMEANRBENERSBETRETFM - B8
FMEEEE EATE  ARELSR %K
BIBIEAL - IHRPBDER AR EFR - A%
BEREE2 MBI BAEENSEEEM
gREFTE BREERAER  BZE B
B AERRE - THBRERRERERR -

RIS

EEECHRBERIREEE2021F12 A31
BIEFENRAR SRR ARK0.076
7T (FHE 7 0.093/870) » HAGFRERKRE
BERE EibE - REBREBRARE 1T
H123BLHER (BRI AREITR2022
FIRAEAMARBHEBTHNE HEXR) -
LA TR o REBR% B FEEAR 20229 A20
Bl ZATRE TR 202257 A6 A& 25
HERIEZTIARQBRRAMAORE - REEH
BEA F0 B AT AT AR 3R B 3R ok [R] B R AT AR
BRZHE -

BREMREE

AREBER2021F12A31BEBEUTE
%

REER2022F1 ASBH D ITFERBRBERE
BIERE  UAERI15.80 8 TN ERREBAT
7,124,500 8 (0 ([EBRERRE A% 1) © Mk
SBRATF BN S B E R R AR
B BeMEMBETEREZ QKA
1.075 8B TR REINF AR ©

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of December 31, 2021, the Group had a total of 4,395 employees,
among which 1,221 employees are our professional medical team
members. Staff costs were RMB700.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021, as compared to RMB494.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2020.

The Group continues to provide competitive compensation packages,
attractive promotion opportunities, diverse training courses and
a professional working environment to its employees. The Group
remunerates the employees based on industry practices and
individual’s performance and experience. Remuneration packages
primarily comprise of basic salary, performance-based compensation
and/or discretionary bonus. As required by PRC laws and regulations,
the Group participates in various employee social security plans for
its employees that are administered by local governments, including
housing provident fund, pension, medical, maternity, work-related
injury and unemployment insurances.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend of RMB0.076
(equivalent to HK$0.093) per Share for the year ended December
31, 2021, which is subject to the approval of the Shareholders at
the AGM. The final dividend will be paid in HK dollars based on the
exchange rate of RMB1 to HK$1.23, being the official exchange rate
of HK dollars against Renminbi as quoted by the People’s Bank of
China on March 23, 2022. The final dividend is expected to be paid
on or before September 20, 2022 to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company at the close of
business on July 6, 2022. The Group is not aware of any arrangement
under which a Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any
dividends.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group has the following event taken place subsequent to
December 31, 2021:

On January 5, 2022, the Group partially exercised an over-allotment
option to subscribe for a total of 7,124,500 shares (the “Over-
allotment Shares”) at the price of HK$15.80 per share. After
deduction of underwriting fees, commissions and other issue expenses
payable by the Group in connection with the exercise of the over-
allotment option, the Group has received an additional net proceeds
of approximately HK$107.5 million.



EE
BITES

RELE 3658 0 AERMMEIMA - ITE
= EFESIFERERNTE - ER2020F
OR17THEZEREFLN2021F6H1H
FEABRNITES - ER2010F7 AAIRASE
B 520107 AR —ERETASEEEHR
18 c REEBERNEEMNEEHEHRI -
¥ M RBEEE - RAGEBAREBLEAE
(BER—RHRITES) MBI -

RAEEDRGEEERERBITEBBICE -
WHARBREELZFHN—SERERMOER
BB RAT B - REEMR2005F3 A A
BEES  MALRERREEEEADM
WH2007F 11 ABHE - REZN2010F £l
WALE  UER I NREABAEERD
BEEE - REARRERBETHI AR
TREZBERBNLE  RhREES|IHE
WHEE F MR TENBEEZRRFT R - koL
EEHRERARNGE  BuMTEHM
MEBEEXEEK - At - AEBETEREDE
BEZAHEDUKINBRIER - BIEER
EHEMTERA  RMCE—THEBRIE
REREZREERBERNZEH KAE -
BE - BEEMEREE BEWENEEN
MZBEBEMEEZEMEER MRS - EHLEE
T RMEEY —ERM[ER]REEER
HENERER  WESHZNARERR
Ej °

R 2001456 AEENNHZERFE R
B o R HEE2018F9 ARETFARIEAST
EEUEeY EEXE e T2 B8
FRRREESMEREER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Z=—ZE=—FF3

EEREREERE
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Yu (3R E), aged 36, is our founder, executive Director,
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer. He was
appointed as a Director on September 17, 2020 and re-designated
as an executive Director on June 1, 2021. He founded the Group in
July 2010 and has been the chief executive officer of the Group since
July 2010. Mr. Zhang is in charge of the overall strategic planning,
business direction and operational management of the Group. Mr.
Zhang is the elder brother of Mr. Zhang Hui (who being one of the
Executive Directors).

Mr. Zhang has been dedicated to medical haircare service industry
for over 16 years, and thus has a deep understanding of the needs
of our customers from his years of frontline experience. Mr. Zhang
ventured into the hair transplant sector in March 2005 when he
joined Beijing Churong Fuyun Medical Beauty Clinic (It 5% 15 8 &8
BEEARPFT and resigned in November 2007. After that, he founded
our Group and started his own hair transplant business with the
brand name of Yonghe (%K) in 2010. Mr. Zhang is a pioneer in
advocating and being relentlessly committed to the development of
hair transplant service by introducing and subsequently upgrading
the most advanced hair transplant solutions to Chinese patients. Mr.
Zhang has led the formulation of our strategic development decisions,
established and developed our medical profession team. As such,
our Group has gained a significant first mover advantage and grown
successfully in China. Leveraging his forward-looking industry vision,
we have further expand our business lines to cover the diagnosis and
treatment of various hair-related diseases, hair transplant, medical
and routine hair care, wig research and production and various other
hair-related product and service offerings. Under his leadership, we
have developed a management style reflective of the values and
characteristics of the “Yonghe” brand and obtained many prestigious
accreditations and recognitions.

Mr. Zhang graduated from Sixian Dazhuang Middle School (HEAR
HHAFE) in June 2001. Mr. Zhang is the deputy head of the hair
medicine and scalp health management group of skin professional
committee of the Chinese Non-government Medical Institutions
Association (PEIFFAVEBEMEHEN EEXLZECEERENAN
EEEIEE4) since September 2018.
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Mr. ZHANG Hui (3R#), aged 35, was appointed as a Director on
September 17, 2020 and re-designated as an executive Director
on June 1, 2021. He has been the procurement director of the
Group since May 2011. Mr. Zhang Hui is in charge of the overall
procurement management and business development of the Group.
Mr. Zhang Hui is the younger brother of Mr. Zhang Yu (who being
the chairman of the board of directors of the Company and Executive
Director).

Mr. Zhang Hui accumulated over 10 years of experience in medical
haircare service industry within our Group. Since joining our Group,
Mr. Zhang Hui developed and optimized our Group's strategies
and process relating to supply chain management and business
development. His strong support towards high-quality and just-in-time
management concept of the procurement process contributed to and
been instrumental to the steady expansion of our Group. Mr. Zhang
Hui has actively promoted our business development, and further
fortified our leading position in this industry in China.

Mr. Zhang Hui graduated from Beijing Language and Culture
University (It i85 AEBWEHE 267), the PRC, through long-
distance education, with an associate degree in economic
management in January 2019.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHAI Feng (Z#), aged 54, was appointed as a Director on
September 17, 2020 and re-designated as a non-executive Director on
June 1, 2021. Mr. Zhai is responsible for providing advice on strategic
development of our Group. Mr. Zhai has been serving as managing
director at Beijing Panmao Investment Management Co., Ltd. (3t
ERIGEEEBMRAF]) since January 2019, a company specializing
in asset management, where he is primarily responsible for post-
investment management and operation related matters of the invested
companies.
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Mr. Zhai has over 30 years of experience in investment and
management industry. Mr. Zhai was a managing director at Shanghai
Panxin Mezzanine Investment Management Company Limited (_E/G2
ERBHREEEAMR AF]) from January 2013 to December 2018. From
July 1991 to November 2012, Mr. Zhai worked at Procter & Gamble
(China) Sales Co. Ltd. (BR(FE)HBMRAF]) with his last position as
a president of sales in Greater China. Mr. Zhai has served as director
of Shaanxi Tourism Culture Industry Holding Co. Ltd. (BR¥a Rz X/t
EERMAER AT (“Shaanxi Tourism”) (stock code: 870432), and
ClIC Guanaitong (Shanghai) Technology Co., Ltd. (FERIEBE(LF)
BRI AR AR AT (stock code: 871282), both listed on the National
Equities Exchange and Quotations Co., Ltd., since December 2015
and November 2016, respectively. From October 2014 to July 2019,
he served as director of Weihai Guangwei Composites Co., Ltd. (&
EEEA MR AR A A]), which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 300699). From December 2017 to November
2019, he served as director of Beijing Hualian Department Store Co.,
Ltd (b REBEERMD AR A F]), which is listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (stock code: 000882). Since September 2015, he
served as director of MANPOWERGROUP GREATER CHINA LIMITED (&
LR FE AR E AR AA]), which is listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 02180).

Mr. Zhai obtained his bachelor’s degree in environmental engineering
from Tongji University ([ KX£2), the PRC, in July 1991,

Mr. Zhai was a director of Shaanxi Tourism Cultural Industry
Development Co. Ltd (PRARECEXZZERRHBRAG), a
company established in the PRC which was deregistered on June 30,
2016 as a result of merger by absorption by Shaanxi Tourism. He
was also a director of Horgos Chinatoporedit, a company established
in the PRC and was deregistered on December 3, 2018. Mr. Zhai
was a director of Panxin Rongtai (Shanghai) Asset Management
Co., Ltd. (BEHR(LBEEEEBRAF]), a company established
in the PRC and was deregistered on January 29, 2019. Mr. Zhai
confirmed that each of the above companies was solvent prior to
its deregistration and was deregistered as it had not commenced
business since establishment or had ceased to conduct business. He
further confirmed that, as of the date of this annual report, no claims
have been made against him and he was not aware of any threatened
or potential claims made against him and there are no outstanding
claims and/or liabilities as a result of the deregistration of each of the
above companies.
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Mr. GENG Jiaqi (BkEE ), aged 50, was appointed as a Director on
September 17, 2020 and re-designated as a non-executive Director on
June 1, 2021. Mr. Geng is responsible for provide advice on strategic
development of the Group.

Mr. Geng has over 13 years of experience in investment and
management industry. Mr. Geng has been an investment director
of Beijing Panmao Investment Management Co., Ltd. (It REE
BEEEAMR AT since October 2020. Mr. Geng was an investment
director of Tianjin Panmao Enterprise Management Limited Liability
Partnership (REZBXPHXEEAREE(BRER)) from January
2019 to September 2020. From May 2015 to December 2018, he
was an investment director of Shanghai Panxin Equity Investment
Management Limited (E/SZ2EREREETEERAF]). He was
a director of Wangfujing Group Co., Ltd., a company listed on
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600859), from December 2016
to December 2019. Mr. Geng was a senior investment manager of
Beijing Hony Future Investment Advisor Ltd. (Jt FEAEE H IR ERER A
R 7)) from September 2008 to March 2010.

Mr. Geng obtained his bachelor's degree in accounting & finance
and business administration & management from Oxford Brookes
University, the United Kingdom, in July 1996 and his master’s degree
in business administration from State University of New Jersey, the
U.S., in January 2001.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. WANG Jiping (E#3#), aged 60, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on June 1, 2021 and is
responsible for providing independent advice and judgment to our
Board.

Ms. Wang has over 29 years of experience in hair transplantation
surgery industry. Ms. Wang was the head of Hair Transplant Center
of the Fourth Medical Centre, Chinese PLA General Hospital (f#jKX
FEBEFREUEER D) from February 2008 to December 2020. She
worked in Plastic Surgery Hospital of Peking Union Medical College (1%
MEE BB IMLEERT) from November 1997 to February 2008, and
was subsequently promoted as the director of Hair Transplant Center
from 2003 to 2008 and also served as the director of Outpatient
Department from 2003 to 2006.

Ms. Wang obtained her bachelor’'s degree in medicine from Shandong
Medical College (LLEEEFR) (now known as Shandong University
School of Medicine (IUERAZEE[T)) in August 1984. She was
awarded the practice certificate for medical practitioners issued by
the Ministry of Health of the PRC in May 1999. She was certified as a
chief physician in plastic surgery by the Ministry of Health of the PRC
in July 2007.
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She was awarded the second prize of National Science and
Technology Progress Award (BREIEZHAMTELHE) for “A series of
technological innovations and applications for the repair of soft tissue
damage and functional reconstruction in war trauma (burns) (2l
(B EHABM IR RN SR AT FMBIRTELER)" issued by the
State Council of the PRC.

Mr. CHAN Peng Kuan (PR{%#3), aged 58, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on June 1, 2021 and is
responsible for providing independent advice and judgment to our
Board.

Mr. Chan has more than 20 years of experience in finance and
banking. Mr. Chan has also been serving as an independent non-
executive director of (i) CANbridge Pharmaceuticals Inc., a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1228), since June 11, 2021;
and (ii) Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd., a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1902), since February 2019. He was
the chief financial officer of Elegance Optical International Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 907),
from October 2017 to May 2019. He served as the chief operating
officer of CITIC Merchant Co., Limited (T {EE@IREERBRAR)
from January 2012 to September 2017. Prior to that, Mr. Chan was
the Head of Asia CIG and Cleantech of Piper Jaffray Asia Limited from
February 2011 to November 2011. From March 2005 to January 2011,
Mr. Chan also worked at BNP Paribas Capital (Asia Pacific) Limited
with his last position as a managing director of Corporate Finance —
Greater China Coverage department.

From August 2000 to December 2004, Mr. Chan served as an
executive director of Sanyuan Group Limited (=t EBERAF])
(“Sanyuan Group”), a company delisted from the Stock Exchange in
December 2009 (stock code: 0140).

Mr. Chan obtained his bachelor’'s degree in commerce from University
of Canterbury in New Zealand in May 1989. He received his master’s
degree in applied finance from Macquarie University in Australia in
November 1998. Mr. Chan has been a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (previously known as Hong
Kong Society of Accountants) since July 1993. He obtained his
professional qualification as a Chartered Accountant in November
1992 from the Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
(previously known as the Institute of Chartered Accountants of New
Zealand).
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Mr. Chan was a director of the following companies, which were

involuntarily wound up:

ZEEARERARBAN
FTEXBEH

Principal business activity
immediately before being
voluntarily wound up or
struck off

HEBEBRGWRE
Voluntarily wound up or
being struck off

BRIEARAR e
Pacific Engineering Limited ~ Hong Kong
M BEEXGRAA i
Infinity Properties Limited Hong Kong
BEBRAR i
Propland Limited Hong Kong
Bl B R AR P
V & O Company Limited Hong Kong

—REERFHLPESHHRA
a company principally engaged in
the trading of the sea sand

—FRIMEER A R
a property holding company

— M EE A E
a property holding company

— R EER AT
a property holding company

7200655811 HRE# < MmIEE M
Nt

Involuntarily wound up on 11 May
2006 due to winding up order

200761 A31BRBE#SMIEE M
g

Involuntarily wound up on 31 January
2007 due to winding up order

2006510 A6 HRIFE < MIE B M
B

involuntarily wound up on 6 October
2006 due to winding up order

200610 A6 HRFE <M IE B M
B

Involuntarily wound up on 6 October
2006 due to winding up order
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Mr. Chan was appointed on 31 August 2000 as a director of each
of Pacific Engineering Limited, Infinity Properties Limited, Propland
Limited and V & O Company Limited (collectively, the "Relevant
Companies”), all of which were incorporated in Hong Kong and
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Sanyuan Group.

There was no wrongful act on the part of Mr. Chan leading to the
winding up of the Relevant Companies.

Mr. Chan has confirmed that, (i) he was not involved in the daily
operations of the Relevant Companies at any time; and (i) during
the course of the liquidation of the Relevant Companies, there
was no allegation of fraud or other impropriety, judgment debt or
disqualification order made against him.
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Mr. LI Xiaopei (Z/)NE), aged 35, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on June 1, 2021 and is responsible for
providing independent advice and judgment to our Board.

Mr. Li has over 10 years of experience in organic and polymer
chemistry industry. He is currently served as a technical adviser at
Tianjin Changyuan Medical Technology Company Limited (KZE&KJT
B R AR A E]) since June 2020. From April 2020 to March 2021,
he was a research assistant of Institute for Chemical Research, Kyoto
University. He worked in Beijing Boyalife Weiming Union Stem Cell
Technology Company Limited (It RIEHAR RIS BARBHEER A R)
from January 2014 to May 2014. From February 2011 to November
2011, he worked in WuXi AppTec (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (R)EZLFHEESH
BREFRAA).

Mr. Li received a bachelor degree in materials chemistry from Huaibei
Normal University (E1LET#3 KX 22), the PRC, in June 2009 and a master
degree in polymer chemistry from Kyoto University, Japan, in March
2018. He was awarded a scholarship from China Scholarship Council
to attend Kyoto University and subsequently received a PhD degree in
polymer chemistry from Kyoto University, Japan, in March 2021.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. ZHANG Yu is an executive Director and chief executive officer of
the Company. See “ —Executive Directors” for details of his biography.

Mr. ZHANG Hui, an executive Director and procurement director of
the Company. See “ —Executive Directors” for details of his biography.

Mr. XU Yang (#7¥), aged 43, has been the operation director and
assistant to the chief executive officer since September 2, 2019. Mr.
Xu is responsible for daily operations and administrative matters of
our Group.

Mr. Xu has around 10 years of experience in management industry.
Mr. Xu was a product manager of Baidu Online Network Technology
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (AEEGBEEITALR)ER A F]) from June 2016
to March 2018. He was a president of a hospital owned by Beijing
Evercare Medical Technology Group Co., Ltd. Jt RFAEBEERIEE
B iz {7 2 A]) from November 2011 to December 2014,

Mr. Xu obtained his bachelor’s degree in economic information
management from Shandong institute of business and technology (L
HETREkt) (formerly known as China Coal Economic Institute (&
BB A ERBR)) in July 2002 and his master’s degree in business
management from Nankai University (B3 AZ) in July 2009.



BEMLZL 4555 0 B2017F 3208 B
AHBRE  BEARELERE - @5 BE
PR R BITSEE o

BRTRERARGE T EEEBA23F
K5 o RIMAKREER - HR2016F3 A%
zo17¢3)ﬂ*1 [ZEE (dER) EERME
NAEYTBHEE - R2014%2 AE 201549
ﬁ BUIEARGRFEEESERMDAR
NEII R ORLEE - A2012F5 %2014
F28 HEFIERBAELEREEGRA
A TS 4EE - HPN2011E8A X 2012458
EIREREFEEEESEROERARNGHF
D& EHEP AR - EH2008F 10 AE 20114
TRAETERRBEHREBAERD AW BE
BI4AEE o LR - §B42+ 199747 AE 2008
FAREIPRILERESEFRAR (A8
FEBHEEEEGRAR) MIELE -

B L1998 F 7 ARSH Bi it T &
Pt R R IR ARE) GsrBE L8 o 5
R2003F9 AESMBAEENTREFTHE
ERMERES -

ZNBESE  575% 0 B20209F 6 A28 BB
TREERSAE - TELAEAEEERE
BEERRBFAEL -

THEERBEERBITEREGBAIOFLSR -
R2015%F3 AE2018F3 A  HETHEKE
F3098REIRE - ER2011F38%F2013
FoAETMMERSRIERRESEE
IGEIEE

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 Z=—ZE=—FF3

EEREREERE
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. HAN Zhimei (¥7&#§), aged 45, has been the finance director
since March 20, 2017 and is responsible for financing, accounting,
budget control, internal control, financial management of the Group.

Ms. Han has over 23 years of experience in accounting and corporate
finance. Prior to joining our Group, from March 2016 to March 2017,
she served as the finance director of KR Space (Beijing) Information
Technology Co., Ltd., (RRZ=EILR)E BRI AR A 7). From February
2014 to September 2015, Ms. Han served as general manager of
finance center of CiMing Health Management Group Co., Ltd. (&
HlEREEEEROERA From May 2012 to February 2014,
she served as finance dlrector in Beijing Yangguangwo Cultural
Development Co., Ltd. (ItREGHEXLERERBRAF]). Ms. Han
was the accounting director of finance center of CiMing Health
Management Group Co., Ltd. (B EREEEEBRMHERAF]) from
August 2011 to May 2012. She was the vice director of finance
department of Beijing Tianyou Education Consulting Co., Ltd. (3t =
KEREHABMR AT from October 2008 to July 2011. Earlier, Ms.
Han served as a finance manager of China Real Estate Development
North America Investment Group Co., Ltd. (FEILEZREEEFE R
Al) (formerly known as China Real Estate Hongdu Investment Group
Co., Ltd. (FEIBEIRE LB HFRRAF])) from July 1997 to April 2008.

Ms. Han obtained her bachelor degree in accounting from Beijing
Institute of Light Industry (bt FEETZEPT) (now known as Beijing
Technology and Business University (It TEAE)), the PRC, in
July 1998. She obtained intermediate accounting professional and
technical qualification certificate issued by the Ministry of Finance in
September 2003.

Mr. LI Xiaolong (Z=/)8E), aged 57, has been the general medical
service director since June 28, 2020. Mr. Li is responsible for medical
quality control and procedure standardization of our Group.

Mr. Li has over 10 years of experience in medical service industry.
From March 2015 to March 2018, he was the vice president of The
People’s Liberation Army No.309 Hospital (f2/RE % 309 Z&ft). He
served as a vice director of Health Administration of Management
Assurance Department of The People’s Liberation Army General Staff
Apartment (RN EALXRBERREBFHER) from March 2011 to
June 2013.
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Mr. Li obtained his bachelor’'s degree in clinical medicine from Army
Medical University (BEEFEKRZE) (formerly known as No. 3 Army
Medical University (5= & X2)) in July 1987 and his master’s
degree in business management from Tiangong University (K2 T %X
&) in January 2010. He also holds a master of business management
degree jointly awarded by Concordia University in the U.S. and
Guanghua School of Management, Pecking University in July 2009.
He was awarded the practice certificate for medical practitioners
issued by Health Administration of The People’s Liberation Army
General Staff Apartment (BRNERLRIFEER) in May 2011, He
was awarded a chief physician professional qualification issued by The
People’s Liberation Army General Staff Apartment (BE/E &2 EF) in
December 2015.

Mr. HUANG Donghong (EX4L), aged 36, has been the marketing
director since May 8, 2020. Mr. Huang is responsible for overall
branding, sales and marketing management of our Group.

Mr. Huang has over 9 years of experience in sales and marketing
industry. He has been with us since his graduation from
Communication University of China in 2012. Mr. Huang has held
various positions in the Group, including regional marketing manager.

Mr. Huang obtained his bachelor’s degree in arts from Gannan Normal
College (3EFAMEE2FE) (now known as Gannan Normal University (3%
FIA#I K E2)), the PRC, in June 2009 and his master’s degree in arts
from Communication University of China (1 E{&E1£ K £), the PRC, in
June 2012.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting
Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is a leading medical group in China specialized in providing
hair-related healthcare services, We offer one-stop hair-related
healthcare services covering hair transplant, medical hair care, and
routine hair restoration and other ancillary services. Analysis of the
principal activities of the Group during the year ended December 31,
2021 is set out in the Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as required by Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), including an analysis of the Group's financial performance, an
indication of likely future developments in the Group's business, is set
out in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. Details of the Group's
environmental policies and compliance with laws and regulations
can be found in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
of this annual report. These discussions form part of this report.
Events affecting the Company that have occurred since the end of
the Reporting Period is set out in the section headed “Event after the
Reporting Period” in this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

o Our historical business growth, revenue and profitability may not
be indicative of future performance, and our success depends, in
part, on our ability to execute our business strategy.

o Our brand, market reputation and consumer perception
contribute significantly to our continued success and growth.
Any failure to maintain, or any damage to, our brand, market
reputation and/or consumer perception could materially and
adversely affect our results of operations and prospects.

o Our operations and business plans have been and may continue
to be adversely affected by the COVID-19 pandemic.

For more details of other risks and uncertainties faced by the Group,
please refer to the Prospectus.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of
the Group. During the Reporting Period, there was no material
non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

We have introduced and implemented a series of internal control
policies, measures and procedures to promote the compliance
with applicable laws and regulations. We have regularly reviewed
and refined such policies, measures and procedures to enhance
the effectiveness of our corporate governance practices and
internal control. The Audit Committee of the Board has also been
closely monitoring the ongoing rectifications of the outstanding
non-compliances to prevent the recurrence of similar non-
compliances. To date, the latest progress of the rectifications is as
follows:

(i) Medical Institution Practicing License: All clinics in operation
have already obtained the practicing licenses to date.

(i)  Fire Safety Procedures: Two clinics located in Shanghai and
Taiyuan were unable to complete the fire safety procedures due
to historical reasons and the non-cooperation of the property
owners. We completed the fire safety inspections of these two
clinics on a regular basis while the renovation works of two
new clinics in Shanghai and Taiyuan will be completed and put
into operation in the near future. By then, the two aforesaid
clinics will be relocated to the new premises as planned. Efforts
were stepped up to take forward the incomplete fire safety
procedures for our clinics in Suzhou and Quanzhou, but it is
difficult to estimate the completion time at the current stage in
light of the developments of the pandemic. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, a third-party institution engaged by us has completed
the fire safety inspections of the clinics to ensure their safety.
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Water Discharge License: The water discharge license was not
obtained for our clinic in Shanghai due to the failure to install
the relevant water discharge facilities in line with current laws
and regulations as the building where the clinic is located was
constructed years ago. The clinic will therefore be relocated
to new premises as planned. Efforts were stepped up to take
forward the application of water discharge license for our clinic
in Lanzhou, but it is difficult to estimate the completion time at
the current stage in light of the developments of the pandemic.

Non-Compliances Relating to the Advertisement Law of the PRC
and/or the Administrative Measures of Medical Advertisements:
All of our clinics have obtained the advertisement examination
certificates from the local health commissions in relation to the
publication of the relevant advertisements. At the same time,
we took various enhanced internal control measures to prevent
the recurrence of similar non-compliances. Such measures
included, among other things, (1) putting the nationwide
online advertising and promotion channels in order by the joint
examination of our branding, marketing and legal departments,
standardising the wording of advertisements, prohibiting the use
of real person cases as examples and pre — and post — surgery
pictures for comparison, refraining from provoking anxieties
about appearance and forbidding any guarantee of treatment
results; and (2) organizing regular trainings by the management
of the Company in relation to the compliance with the laws and
regulations in relation to medical advertisements to raise the
marketing team’s awareness of compliance.

Defects in Title of Certain Leased Properties: We have adopted a
set of stringent standards in reviewing leased properties. Other
than the pre-existing leases, new leases are free of title defects.

Filing and Registration of Leases: The designated staff from
our legal department has conducted internal inspections from
time to time to ascertain whether lease agreements have been
properly registered and kept records of the lease registration
status on an ongoing basis. We are in the process of completing
the filing and registration of new leases.
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(vii) Aesthetic Medical Attending Physicians: We have aesthetic
medical attending physicians stationed in all clinics operated by
us pursuant to the requirements of local competent authorities
to ensure that the physicians with the aesthetic medical
attending physician qualifications would be present when we
provide aesthetic medical services to our customers. Our Medical
Quality Control Committee has also enhanced the relevant
management by conducting inspections of our local clinics
and examining the medical records of patients from time to
time to ensure physicians’ strict compliance with the relevant
requirements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group has always encouraged environmental protection,
strictly complied with environmental regulations, and promoted
environmental protection awareness among employees. The Group
implements strict monitoring through the establishment of an
ever-improving environmental management system. During the
year ended December 31, 2021, the Group was in compliance in
all material respects, with the relevant environmental laws and
regulations.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2021 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 138 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended payment of a final dividend of
RMBO0.076 (equivalent to HK$0.093) per Share for the year ended
December 31, 2021, which is subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the AGM of the Company. The final dividend is
expected to be paid before September 20, 2022 to the Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
at the close of business on July 6, 2022. The Group is not aware of
any arrangement under which a Shareholder has waived or agreed to
waive any dividends.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the last
four financial years are set out on page 6 of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS

The Company was successfully listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on December 13, 2021. The net proceeds from the global
offering were approximately HK$1,435 million, which was based on
the issue price of HK$15.8 per Share and the actual expenses related
to the Listing. After the Listing, these proceeds were and will be
used for the purposes in accordance with the future plans as set out
in the Prospectus of the Company. Since the Listing Date and up to
December 31, 2021, the Group has not utilized any proceeds from
the initial public offering.

The table below sets out the planned applications of the net proceeds
and actual usage up to December 31, 2021 as well as the expected
timeline for utilisation:

BEZ2021%12A31A
As at December 31, 2021
BE Lk EREHE RERA
FEsaRE RERE  AFEALM EHASE HADELE ZARHERO
Percentage Expected
Planned of total Amount Amount  timeline for full
Use of proceeds applications  net proceeds utilized unutilized utilization®
BEAT % BEET BEER
HK$ million %  HKS$ million  HKS million
BERFESENEANEAEEE  To expand and upgrade existing hair 604.1 4. 0.0 604.1 2025912 A
BREBETRERAAR transplant clinics in our network in China By December 2025
BEERRIREEE 815 To fund our innovations in product and 2511 175 0.0 2511 20251287
service offerings By December 2025
RERHE - RABDERA For investment in research and development 139.2 9.7 0.0 1392 2025412 A
RAZMOREER to upgrade our service system with By December 2025
cutting-edge technology
BB AT EER To integrate industry resources to raise 335.8 234 0.0 3358 @A
WRAZMNRBRALE brand awareness in China N/A
ERNERHEEER To settle the outstanding balance of the 23.0 16 0.0 230 200256 FH0
HEREZRERER acquisition considerations payable for By June 2022
our acquisition of Nu/Hart Hair
FELBELR—ROEME  For our working capital and general 818 5.7 0.0 818  Ti@h
corporate purposes N/A

M EAB TS FENERRERREAEEH

HARETISHERNSEMFSE - BRERHE
AR F ST R AR KRR R E L -

Note: The expected timeline for the usage of the remaining proceeds is made

based on the best estimate of the Group’s future market conditions,
which is subject to the current and future development of the market

conditions.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND MAJOR SUPPLIERS
Major Customers

During the year ended December 31, 2021, substantially all of our
customer base consisted of individual customers, and none of these
individual customers accounted for more than 5% of our total
revenue.

Major Suppliers

Our suppliers primarily included providers of advertising services, IT
services, and pharmaceuticals, surgical consumables and hair care
products. We have maintained a list of suppliers approved by our
senior management team. During the year ended December 31, 2021,
the aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group's five
largest suppliers represented less than 30% of the Group's total value
of purchases.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their
close associates, or any shareholder who owns more than 5% of our
issued share capital had any interest in any of our five largest clients
or suppliers during the year ended December 31, 2021.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year ended December 31, 2021
are set out in page 206 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended December 31, 2021 are set out in page 221 of this annual
report.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended December 31, 2021 are set out in page 141 of
this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2021, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, amounted to RMB1,485.2 million.

TAXATION

Tax position of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2021
is set forth in page 197 of this annual report.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and
the Group as at December 31, 2021 are set out in page 226 of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Yu
Mr. ZHANG Hui

Non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHAI Feng
Mr. GENG Jiaqi

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. WANG Jiping

Mr. CHAN Peng Kuan
Mr. LI Xiaopei
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 33 to 42 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the
independent non-executive Directors and the Company considers such
Directors to be independent since the Listing Date.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND
LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with any
member of the Group (excluding contracts expiring or determinable
by the employer within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, none of the Directors had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the Reporting
Period.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance, including for the provision of services, has
been entered into among the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
the controlling shareholders or any of their subsidiaries during the
Reporting Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group's
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance of the directors and
senior management and comparable market practices. There was
no arrangement under which a director or the senior management
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the Reporting
Period.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals during the Reporting Period are set out in page 241 and
page 193 of this annual report.

EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE PLATFORM

In recognition of the contributions of our employees and to incentivize
them to further promote our development, Zhirui Technology
Holdings Limited (E8&EHZIEREBBR A7) was incorporated in the BVI
as a limited company on January 15, 2021 as an employee incentive
platform for our employees. 118 eligible employees (including Mr.
ZHANG Hui (38#8), Ms. HAN Zhimei (387%48), Mr. XU Yang (%7%),
Mr. LI Xiaolong (Z=/)\§€) and Mr. HUANG Donghong (& ¥ 4I), being
our senior management) were granted 3,000,000 shares. Details of
the employee incentive platform of the Company are set out in note
25 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the
Company are set out in page 192 of this annual report.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no change to
information which is required to be disclosed and has been disclosed
by Directors pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2)
of the Listing Rules since the Listing Date and up to the date of this
annual report.
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R2021%F12A318  EERARERSIT
BABRARRRG - NAR SKEAMA
BEAE(TERBEBAHESTIE(BLER
HAE G0 ([EHREEEA]) EXVED) &
RO ERETEE()VREESBPE
1EPIEXVEBE T RESHIBAMEARAF K&
BIMER AR (BREREEFLBE
GAEBGEXHEERRAEBNERR
KR NV ERARARIREES LS K
B 5 352 1§ T 17 & r i P9 B A2 MO AR 25 R 0K
B ()RR _ TR A TR ST RIE A S
RNAR RS ABIAT ¢

DIRECTORS® AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at December 31, 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares of
the Company, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) which were (i) required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under such positions of the SFO); or (ii)
required to be entered in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

iR 17 R 2= Interests in the Share
REBITRAE
BENE#T R ENEST
EEpE B EnHE R#HEE Elaliad
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
issued in issued
Name of Directors Capacity/nature of interest Shares held share capital®
3R R S 0@ M5 EFEaIIA 161,531,916 (L) 31.07%
Mr. Zhang Yu®“ Founder of discretionary trust
KR EE R 20,000,000 (L) 3.85%
Interest in controlled corporation
SRIBSEHS YIS EFERBIHEA 24,000,000 (L) 4.62%
Mr. Zhang Hui® Founder of discretionary trust
BkZR I 5E NEEEE S 658,668 (L) 0.13%

Mr. Geng Jiging®

Interest in controlled corporation




(4)

BHRED L TIERARRR2021F12 A31
HE%1T/I519,955,916 8 (D AaStE -

ZY Investment Capital Ltd@ — REHR
BELZBESAMKIHREER AT -
ZY Investment Capital LtdfyZ A% &
ZY Ventures Ltd® &M A  ZY Ventures
Ltd® 2 PR A Trident Trust Company
(Singapore) Pte Limited{E&The ZY Trustéy
SHAREES  The ZY Trust2— A%
FEEEARZTEARIHBIFET - BIFE
HREEED) - SRE KA (1ERThe ZY Trust
RIBIA) #R BREAZY Investment Capital
Ltd¥5AE9161,531,916 AR (D A °

FETHBMEERERAGRE—RERBRE
ZREFMK MR EERAR - A EET
EREAERLE (DEER)2EHE - L
BTFEHHEAELE (DEEAE)NERE
BABRELRE  TRAEBAARLETHR
BAERAR - M8 FHREAERARRIH
REXREZEHRE - AL REZHFLBEE
WOl SREZREWE AR LB FHRHIIER
ABRA R HH20,000,000 0% f% 17 A #E 5 1

Z= o
fm

ZH Investment Capital Ltd2 —REH
BEZBESEMALNEEERAR -
ZH Investment Capital Ltd#)2 A% &
ZH Ventures Ltd2&# A ° ZH Ventures
LtdM 2 #B AR A B Trident Trust Company
(Singapore) Pte LimitedE&The ZH Trust&)
ZEEAZEWES © The ZH TrusterH?Effﬁf‘E
EEREREARILOWBERT - BIEE

HAE & - SRIBSE A (1ERThe ZH TrustE’JE'J
WA ) 118 A EZH Investment Capital Ltd
7B #924,000,000 i (h R #E A fEzn

Jiagi Hair Service Holdings Limited&— %
REBREZESAMA IR EZER AT
Jiagi Hair Service Holdings Lmnedﬂ’]%*ﬁ
RABRRZREEELZEHRE - At - BE
B S AR AR Jiagi Hair Service Holdings
Limited 5 #1658,668 IR AZ (D R B & ©
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Notes:
(1) L: Long position; S: Short position

(2)  The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company’s
total number of 519,955,916 Shares in issue as at December 31, 2021.

(3)  ZY Investment Capital Ltd is an investment holding company
incorporated in BVI. The entire share capital of ZY Investment Capital
Ltd is wholly owned by ZY Ventures Ltd. The entire share capital of ZY
Ventures Ltd is wholly owned by Trident Trust Company (Singapore) Pte
Limited as the trustee of The ZY Trust. The ZY Trust is a discretionary
trust set up by Mr. Zhang Yu as the settlor. Mr. Zhang Yu (as the
founder of the ZY Trust) is taken to be interested in 161,531,916 Shares
held by ZY Investment Capital Ltd under the SFO.

(4)  Yunuo Technology Holdings Limited is an investment holding company
incorporated in the BVI and is wholly owned by Shanghai Yuxin
Technology Partnership (Limited Partnership). The limited partner of
Shanghai Yuxin Technology Partnership (Limited Partnership) is Mr.
Zhang Yu, and the general partner is Shanghai Yuhe Technology
Company Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by Mr. Zhang Yu.
Therefore, Mr. Zhang Yu is deemed to be interested in 20,000,000
Shares held by Yunuo Technology Holdings Limited under the SFO.

(5)  ZH Investment Capital Ltd is an investment holding company
incorporated in BVI. The entire share capital of ZH Investment Capital
Ltd is wholly owned by ZH Ventures Ltd. The entire share capital of ZH
Ventures Ltd is wholly owned by Trident Trust Company (Singapore) Pte
Limited as the trustee of The ZH Trust. The ZH Trust is a discretionary
trust set up by Mr. Zhang Hui as the settlor. Mr. Zhang Hui (as the
founder of the ZH Trust) is taken to be interested in 24,000,000 Shares
held by ZH Investment Capital Ltd under the SFO.

(6)  Jiagi Hair Service Holdings Limited is an investment holding company
incorporated in BVI. The entire share capital of Jiagi Hair Service Holdings
Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Geng Jiagi. Accordingly, Mr. Geng lJiaqi
is deemed to be interested in 658,668 Shares held by Jiagi Hair Service
Holdings Limited.
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EBRERY g

R2021F 128318 » EESHA - —AK
NAIREES M EIKIEI6IGEAETER
R ERMATREE: W T AT (WIEESFHA
RNAREITERAER) R/ s8R (5 & %
BRBEFESRPEIEFIEXVEE2 X35 E
FMEXBRAIAR R EMNERSAR

LTD.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at December 31, 2021, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the

SFO:
REBITRE
BENS#1T QR
FTERRER B ERME RGOEE Elalad
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
issued Shares in issued share
Name of substantial Shareholders  Capacity/Nature of interests held capital@®
ZY Investment Capital Ltd E=mEAA 161,531,916 (L) 31.07%
Beneficial owner
ZY Ventures Ltd® RRAEHEE R 161,531,916 (L) 31.07%
Interest in controlled corporation
Yonghe Hair Service Holdings Limited A A 91,866,668 (L) 17.67%
Beneficial owner
HE—ATHRAKEER 91,866,668 (L) 17.67%
Interests jointly held with another person
B (EB)REDRL (BRER) RRAEHEE R 183,733,336 (L) 35.34%
(BxEg))@
Panmao (Shanghai) Investment Centre Interest in controlled corporation
(Limited Partnership)
(“Panmao Shanghai”)®
FEEECEERREARAF RRAEHEE R 183,733,336 (L) 35.34%
([ FEEmwE]®
Shanghai Pannuo Corporate Interest in controlled corporation
Management Service Company
(“Shanghai Pannuo”)®
FEEXREESCEEBRAR® R EE 183,733,336 (L) 35.34%
CITIC Private Equity Funds Interest in controlled corporation
Management Co., Ltd.®
CYH Cosmetic Medical Holdings EmfEAA 91,866,668 (L) 17.67%
Limited Beneficial owner
HE—ATHRAKEER 91,866,668 (L) 17.67%
Interests jointly held with another person
CYH Cosmetic Medical Investment RRAEHEE R 183,733,336 (L) 35.34%
Limited® Interest in controlled corporation
CPEChina Fund II, L.P.® RREFEE#ER - B — AL H#A 183,733,336 (L) 35.34%

FrE
Interest in controlled corporation;
interest jointly held with another person




TERRER

Name of substantial Shareholders

B REME

Capacity/Nature of interests
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CPEChina Fund IIA, L.P.®

Citron PE Associates Il, L.P.®
Citron PE Funds Il Limited®
Citron PE Holdings Limited®

S I R A T OO

CITIC Securities Company Limited®®

REEGEERER 8BS — AT HA
B R

Interest in controlled corporation;
interest jointly held with another
person

RRIEGEE R

Interest in controlled corporation

RRIEGEE R

Interest in controlled corporation

RRIEGEE R

Interest in controlled corporation

RRIEGEE R

Interest in controlled corporation

REBITRAE

BENE BT REENEST
ROEAE ApH@
Approximate

percentage of

Number of shareholding
issued Shares in issued share
held capital@®
183,733,336 (L) 35.34%
183,733,336 (L) 35.34%
183,733,336 (L) 35.34%
183,733,336 (L) 35.34%
185,140,836 (L) 35.61%

1,407,500 (S) 0.27%

Frandor Limited® RRIEGEEER 185,531,916 (L) 35.69%
Interest in controlled corporation
Trident Trust Company (Singapore) REIEHEE = 185,531,916 (L) 35.69%
Pte Limited® Interest in controlled corporation
Morgan Stanley & Co. BIHE 27,699,000 (L) 5.32%
International plc Underwriter 14,163,500 (S) 2.72%
Morgan Stanley Investments (UK)?) REIEHEE = 27,699,000 (L) 5.32%
Interest in controlled corporation 14,163,500 (S) 2.72%
Morgan Stanley International Limited? A2 AE R 27,699,000 (L) 5.32%
Interest in controlled corporation 14,163,500 (S) 2.72%
Morgan Stanley International REEFEEER 27,699,000 (L) 5.32%
Holdings Inc.?” Interest in controlled corporation 14,163,500 (S) 2.72%
e - Notes:
(1) L:&E:S:%ka (1) L: Long positions; S: Short positions.
(2) FHREDLLTDERARFKR2021F12 431 (2)  The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company’s
HE#{T#9519,955,916 {5 AHHE - total number of 519,955,916 Shares in issue as at December 31, 2021.

(3)  ZY Investment Capital LtdfBZY Ventures (3)  ZY Investment Capital Ltd is wholly owned by ZY Ventures Ltd, ZY

Ltd2E%HE BEZESHRAEEM - 2y
Ventures Ltd# 43 BMREBZY Investment

Capital LtdAH 161,531,916 8% {7 %

A -

Ventures Ltd is taken to be interested in 161,531,916 Shares held by ZY
Investment Capital Ltd under the SFO.
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Yonghe Hair Service Holdings Limitedfi#
KEBEERE LXEENEBEABAR
PHEFHE mMESEHBBEPEEERE
HEeERAERARLERE - HEEERE
EeERARARATELEFRNERAF
(—KRBRR EBEARR G ETOR
A B 35% MR

CYH Cosmetic Medical Holdings Limited
CYH Cosmetic Medical Investment Limited
2E %A MCYH Cosmetic Medical
Investment LimitedBJf CPEChina Fund
Il, L.P.%CPEChina Fund IIA, L.P.D3IEE
#4186.3% % 13.7% %%  CYH Cosmetic
Medical Investment Limited @ CPEChina
Fund Il, L.P.’ZCPEChina Fund IIA, L.P.£[A
%24 o CPEChina Fund I, L.P.&%CPEChina
Fund IIA, LP. ARRIBIEFEHSAETMH
IR REIRABMZE - CPEChina Fund I,
L.P. 2 CPEChina Fund IIA, L.P.BIEBA B A
A&Citron PE Associates I, L.P.° Citron PE
Associates I, L.P. 5—RiBEF S S AET
MOEREERAZEE  HEBABAR
Citron PE Funds Il Limited ° Citron PE Funds
Il Limitedf Citron PE Holdings Limited®
A##A » fCitron PE Holdings Limited8l
B CLSA Global Investments Management
Limited¥ B 35%#z c CLSA Global
Investments Management Limited i CLSA
BV.Z2EHA ' CLSA BV.HPEILFEKE
RARIZEMRSE  MPEIHFEEERAR
AR EIEHEROBRATNEERE -

Frandor Limited &% 5fXZ&XThe ZY Trust
KThe ZH TrustiHZY Ventures Ltd &%ZH
Ventures Ltd®IRM BN E ARE - E6
The ZY Trust & The ZH Trust®) =5t ATrident
Trust Company (Singapore) Pte Limited®
EHE - Al RBHFRBAEHRAMS -
Frandor Limited }2Trident Trust Company
(Singapore) Pte Limited®& B#18 A%
185,531,916/ & H (E+ 161,531,916
f& %A B5ZY Investment Capital Limited
(ZY Ventures LtdWZ2EWBAR) FHE R
24,000,000 %5 FZH Investment Capital
Limited (ZH Ventures LtdH92&KIEAR])
A WA ER o

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plcfh
Morgan Stanley investments (UK)Z & #
A + Morgan Stanley investments (UK)E
#Morgan Stanley International Limited#)
2% F/A7) c Morgan Stanley International
LimitedJyEMorgan Stanley International
Holdings Inc. 2 &# & -

(6)

Yonghe Hair Service Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Panmao
Shanghai, the general partner of which is Shanghai Pannuo, which is in
turn wholly owned by CITIC Private Equity Funds Management Co., Ltd.
CITIC Private Equity Funds Management Co., Ltd is owned as to 35% by
CITIC Securities Company Limited, a company listed on both the Stock
Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

CYH Cosmetic Medical Holdings Limited is wholly owned by
CYH Cosmetic Medical Investment Limited, which is owned as to
approximately 86.3% by CPEChina Fund I, L.P. and 13.7% by CPEChina
Fund IIA, L.P.. CYH Cosmetic Medical Investment Limited is jointly
controlled by CPEChina Fund I, L.P. and CPEChina Fund IIA, L.P..
CPEChina Fund I, L.P. and CPEChina Fund IlIA, L.P. are two exempted
limited partnerships registered under the laws of the Cayman Islands.
The general partner of CPEChina Fund Il, L.P.and CPEChina Fund IIA, L.P.
is Citron PE Associates Il, L.P.. Citron PE Associates Il, L.P. is an exempted
limited partnership registered under the laws of the Cayman lIslands
whose general partner is Citron PE Funds Il Limited. Citron PE Funds II
Limited is wholly owned by Citron PE Holdings Limited, which is held as
to 35% by CLSA Global Investments Management Limited. CLSA Global
Investments Management Limited is wholly owned by CLSA B.V., which
is wholly owned by CITIC Securities International Company Limited,
which in turn is wholly owned by CITIC Securities Company Limited.

Frandor Limited is a nominee shareholder holdings shares of ZY Ventures
Ltd and ZH Ventures Ltd on behalf of The ZY Trust and The ZH Trust,
respectively. It is wholly-owned by Trident Trust Company (Singapore)
Pte Limited, the trustee of The ZY Trust and The ZH Trust. Accordingly,
each of Frandor Limited and Trident Trust Company (Singapore) Pte
Limited is deemed to be interested in the 185,531,916 Shares (among
which, 161,531,916 Shares are held by ZY Investment Capital Limited,
the wholly-owned subsidiary of ZY Ventures Ltd and 24,000,000 Shares
are held by ZH Investment Capital Limited, the wholly-owned subsidiary
of ZH Ventures Ltd) by virtue of the SFO.

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc is wholly owned by Morgan
Stanley investments (UK), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Morgan
Stanley International Limited. Morgan Stanley International Limited is
wholly owned by Morgan Stanley International Holdings Inc..
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DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during
the Reporting Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors or
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 were granted any
right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or
any other body corporate or had exercised any such right.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

There was no equity-linked agreement entered into by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries during the Reporting Period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Shares during the year ended December 31,
2021.
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LTD.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

DIRECTORS'
BUSINESS

INTEREST IN COMPETING

As of December 31, 2021, none of the Directors or their respective
associates had engaged in or had any interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

TAX RELIEF

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group had entered into
certain non-exempt continuing connected transactions as set out
below. For detailed terms of such non-exempt continuing connected
transactions, please refer to pages 59 to 74.

Other material related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended December 31, 2021, which do not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions under
the Listing Rules, are disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report. Save as disclosed in this annual
report, during the year ended December 31, 2021 the Company had
not entered into any connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions which were required to be disclosed under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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TERREZERERS Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
BHRH Contractual Arrangements

AENELHESRERREREE RKEEKRL The Contractual Arrangements apply to the 30% and 10% equity

30% K 10% JEHE - BARILE BEBEE (5K interest in Yonghe Investment and Chengdu Yonghe, respectively.
EBIERLRIN) BUFEAR AR » Yonghe Investment is the holding company of our Medical Institutions

(other than Chengdu Yonghe).

LTEEFAEOREMIANERaE The following simplified diagram illustrates the flow of economic
U AEEAEENSRM ¢ benefits from our VIE Entities to our Group as stipulated under the
Contractual Arrangements:

EA/N|
(HE8HS)
the Company
(Cayman)

100%

\ 4
Yonghe Management
Consulting

(RBEXHS)
(BVI)

100%

FERBEBITI
(B®)
Yonghe Medical Holdings
(Hong Kong) E1
Offshore

) R
v 100% RERE SRIBEAE Onshore
BRRHE Mr. Zhang Yu Mr. Zhang Hui
T Contractual
_#t’?\//ﬁﬁ DA Arrangements 85% 15%
Beijing Haiyouyou

70%

A 4

v

. \ 30% L
ERRE _ A AR

Yonghe Investment - Beijing Xunyi

100%

Y
BEHE (RHBEREI)

Medical Institutions
(other than Chengdu Yonghe)

*90%

RXERZER - 10%
Chengdu Yonghe
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2. [— JERZEENEERRERERHE
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HERAHNRENEERENBAEINT
X - BEFEMENFE  F2HABKER
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(1) BREERB HZH

TRHRE - EFARE  FREERAE
Tl FEEE Bt UG KR 2021618
6H 20214 58H ~ 202148517
H 2021498308 2021410812
BRE2021F10 5205 L BR L ER
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AR EE  BFERREEIERAER
EZRIFENRAEBREMLE
A 80 AR 755 % Lt AR 765 1L 7 ol LA MR B AR 75
s o

BIFBREERS WE - BIRENRS
BEATRANEE  BERERE (i)
EREMTIARER  BEERLAZRE
BEEALEI (IWANBRER
(VTSR (VEBEREBRRS
B (iVREERFEEE  (VDEER
S TR B E R BT ¢ (vili) BB AR TS
BHEH (A EBRE)EMEREE
BREBBRERENRY - L8R
HEARGRBITHZS RGP al2
WMENBERESEERE - BREER
iR - BN AR A B &K
FARLFTARRATEFNZEEESNA
HERE - L FABERAE RS EE I A
FEAILREHRRERIEBREBEIRE
EBITRE P AN SEEER -

Notes:

1. Mr. Zhang Yu and Mr. Zhang Hui are the Registered Shareholders.

2. “"— " denotes direct legal and beneficial ownership in the equity
interest.

3. " a--p»" denotes contractual relationship.

4. Mmoo " denotes the entities that are subject to the Contractual
Arrangements.

A brief description of the specific agreements that comprise the
Contractual Arrangements is set out below. For details of the
specific agreements, please refer to the section headed “Contractual
Arrangements” of the Prospectus.

(1) EXCLUSIVE OPERATION SERVICES
AGREEMENT

The Registered Shareholders, Beijing Xunyi, Yonghe Investment
and the VIE Entities have entered into exclusive operation
services agreements with Beijing Haiyouyou on January 6, 2021,
April 8, 2021, August 17, 2021, September 30, 2021, October
12, 2021 and October 20, 2021, (the “Exclusive Operation
Services Agreement”), pursuant to which, the VIE Entities,
Registered Shareholders and Beijing Xunyi agreed to engage
Beijing Haiyouyou as their exclusive provider of technical
support, consulting services and other services in exchange for a
service fee.

Under the Exclusive Operation Services Agreement, the
services to be provided include but are not limited to (i)
business, financing and investment, (ii) medical technology
related consultation, medical resources sharing and medical
professionals training, (iii) human resources management, (iv)
market research, (v) strategies for marketing and business
expansion, (vi) supplier and inventory management, (vii)
operation and marketing strategy formulation and monitoring,
(viii) medical service quality control, (ix) internal management
and (x) other services relating to management and operation
of medical institutions. Beijing Haiyouyou has proprietary rights
to all the intellectual properties developed or created by itself
from the performance of these services. During the term of
the Exclusive Operation Service Agreement, Beijing Haiyouyou
may use the intellectual property rights owned by Beijing Xunyi
and the VIE Entities free of charge and without any conditions.
Beijing Xunyi and the VIE Entities may also use the intellectual
property work created by Beijing Haiyouyou from the services
performed by Beijing Haiyouyou in accordance with the Exclusive
Operation Service Agreement.
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Under the Exclusive Operation Services Agreement, the service
fee shall be an amount equal to the distributable net profit of
the VIE Entities of a given audited financial year, after deducting
losses from the previous financial years (if any) and any statutory
provident fund (if applicable). Apart from the service fees,
Beijing Xunyi and the VIE Entities shall reimburse all reasonable
costs, reimbursed payments and out-of-pocket expenses incurred
by Beijing Haiyouyou in connection with the performance of
the Exclusive Operation Services Agreement and provision of
services.

In addition, absent of a prior written consent of Beijing
Haiyouyou, during the term of the Exclusive Operation Services
Agreement, the Registered Shareholders, Beijing Xunyi and the
VIE Entities shall not directly or indirectly accept the same or
any similar services provided by any third party and shall not
establish similar corporation relationships with any third party.
Beijing Haiyouyou has the right to appoint any third party to
provide any or all of the services, or to fulfill its obligations
under the Exclusive Operation Services Agreement.

The Exclusive Operation Services Agreement shall become
effective from January 6, 2021, and shall remain valid for three
years and shall, subject to compliance with the Listing Rules, be
automatically renewed for three years each time when its term
ends, unless being terminated in accordance with the terms
therein.

According to the Exclusive Operation Services Agreement, unless
otherwise required by applicable PRC laws and regulations, none
of the parties to the agreement (except Beijing Haiyouyou) is
entitled to unilaterally terminate the agreement. Furthermore,
pursuant to the Exclusive Operation Services Agreement, it may
only be terminated in the event that (i) continued performance
of the obligations of the agreements will result in violation of or
non-compliance with the applicable PRC laws and regulations,
the Listing Rules or the requirements of the Stock Exchange,
(i) Beijing Haiyouyou or its designated person directly holds all
the equity interests in Beijing Xunyi, and all of the Registered
Shareholders’ equity interests in Beijing Xunyi or all of the assets
of Beijing Xunyi attributable to the Registered Shareholders are
transferred to Beijing Haiyouyou pursuant to applicable PRC laws
and regulations, or (iii) Beijing Haiyouyou unilaterally terminates
the agreement.
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AGREEMENTS

On January 6, 2021, April 8, 2021, August 17, 2021, September
30, 2021, October 12, 2021 and October 20, 2021, Beijing
Haiyouyou, the Registered Shareholders, Beijing Xunyi,
Yonghe Investment and the VIE Entities entered into exclusive
purchase option agreements (the “Exclusive Purchase Option
Agreements”).

Pursuant to the Exclusive Purchase Option Agreements, (i) each
of the Registered Shareholders irrevocably and unconditionally
grants an exclusive option to Beijing Haiyouyou which entitles
Beijing Haiyouyou to elect to purchase at any time, when
permitted by the then applicable PRC laws, all or any part of the
equity interest in Beijing Xunyi itself or through its designated
person(s), (ii) Beijing Xunyi irrevocably and unconditionally grants
an exclusive option to Beijing Haiyouyou which entitles Beijing
Haiyouyou to elect to purchase at any time, when permitted by
the then applicable PRC laws, all or part of the assets of Beijing
Xunyi itself or through its designated person(s), (iii) Beijing Xunyi
irrevocably and unconditionally grants an exclusive option to
Beijing Haiyouyou which entitles Beijing Haiyouyou to elect to
purchase at any time, when permitted by the then applicable
PRC laws, all or any part of the equity interests held by Beijing
Xunyi in the VIE Entities from Beijing Xunyi itself or through its
designated person(s), (iv) Yonghe Investment irrevocably and
unconditionally grants an exclusive option to Beijing Haiyouyou
which entitles Beijing Haiyouyou to elect to purchase at any
time, when permitted by the then applicable PRC laws, all or
any part of the equity interests of the Medical Institutions (other
than Chengdu Yonghe) held by Yonghe Investment, and (iv)
VIE Entities irrevocably and unconditionally grant an exclusive
option to Beijing Haiyouyou which entitles Beijing Haiyouyou
to elect to purchase at any time, when permitted by the then
applicable PRC laws, all or part of the assets of the VIE Entities
from the VIE Entities themselves or through their designated
person(s), Beijing Haiyouyou may appoint designated person(s)
in its sole discretion when exercising its option. The transfer
price of the relevant equity interests and assets shall be the
minimum purchase price permitted under PRC law, and each of
the Registered Shareholders, Beijing Xunyi and the VIE Entities
will undertake that he/it will, subject to applicable PRC laws,
return in full the consideration received in relation to such
transfer of equity interests or assets to Beijing Haiyouyou and/or
its designated person(s) within ten (10) business days.
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The Registered Shareholders and Beijing Xunyi undertake
to develop the business of the VIE Entities and not to take
any action which may affect their asset value, goodwill and
effectiveness of business licenses. Furthermore, in the absence
of prior written consent of Beijing Haiyouyou, the Registered
Shareholders and Beijing Xunyi shall not (i) transfer or otherwise
dispose of any option under the Exclusive Purchase Option
Agreements, or create any encumbrances thereon; and the VIE
Entities shall not assist in transferring or otherwise disposing of
any option under the Exclusive Purchase Option Agreements, or
creating any encumbrances thereon; and (ii) directly or indirectly
(by itself or through the entrustment of any other natural person
or legal person entity) carry out, own or acquire any business
compete with or likely compete with the business of Beijing
Haiyouyou or our Group.

In addition, the Registered Shareholders, Beijing Xunyi and the
VIE Entities undertake that, upon Beijing Haiyouyou issuing the
notice to exercise the option in accordance with the Exclusive
Purchase Option Agreements, they will implement necessary
actions to affect the transfer and relinquish any pre-emptive
right, if any. Each of the parties to the Exclusive Purchase
Option Agreements confirms and agrees that (i) in the event of
a dissolution or liquidation of Beijing Xunyi and the VIE Entities
(as applicable) under the PRC laws, all the residual assets which
are attributable to the Registered Shareholders and Beijing Xunyi
(as applicable) shall be transferred to Beijing Haiyouyou or its
designated person(s) at the minimum purchase price permitted
under PRC law, and each of the Registered Shareholders, Beijing
Xunyi and the VIE Entities undertakes that they will, subject to
applicable PRC laws, return in full the consideration received in
relation to such transfer to Beijing Haiyouyou or its designated
person(s), (ii) in the event of bankruptcy, reorganization or
merger of Beijing Xunyi, death or incapacity of the Registered
Shareholders or any other event which causes changes to the
Registered Shareholders’ shareholding in Beijing Xunyi and
Beijing Xunyi's shareholding in the VIE Entities, (a) the successor
of the Registered Shareholders’ equity interest in Beijing Xunyi
and the successor of Beijing Xunyi's equity interest in the VIE
Entities shall be bound by the Contractual Arrangements, and (b)
any disposal of shareholding in Beijing Xunyi and the VIE Entities
shall be governed by the Contractual Arrangements unless
Beijing Haiyouyou consents otherwise in writing.
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Exclusive Purchase Option Agreements shall become effective
from January 6, 2021. Each of the Exclusive Purchase Option
Agreements has an indefinite term and a termination provision
which stipulates that unless otherwise required by applicable
PRC laws and regulations, none of the parties to the agreements
(except Beijing Haiyouyou) is entitled to unilaterally terminate
the agreements.

Each of the Exclusive Purchase Option Agreements may only
be terminated in the event that (i) continued performance of
the obligations of the agreement will result in violation of or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations, the
Listing Rules or the requirements of the Stock Exchange, (ii)
Beijing Haiyouyou or its designated person directly holds all
the equity interests in Beijing Xunyi, and all of the Registered
Shareholders’ equity interests in Beijing Xunyi or all of the assets
of Beijing Xunyi attributable to the Registered Shareholders are
transferred to Beijing Haiyouyou pursuant to applicable PRC laws
and regulations, (iii) Beijing Haiyouyou or its designated person
directly holds all the equity interests in Beijing Xunyi and all of
Beijing Xunyi's equity interests in the VIE Entities or all of the
assets of the VIE Entities are transferred to Beijing Haiyouyou
pursuant to applicable PRC laws and regulations or (iv) Beijing
Haiyouyou unilaterally terminates the agreements.
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(3) SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS ENTRUSTMENT

AGREEMENTS

On January 6, 2021, April 8, 2021, August 17, 2021, September
30, 2021, October 12, 2021 and October 20, 2021, Beijing
Haiyouyou, the Registered Shareholders, Beijing Xunyi, Yonghe
Investment and the VIE Entities entered into the shareholders’
rights entrustment agreements (the “Shareholders’ Rights
Entrustment Agreements”).

Pursuant to the Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment Agreements,
(i) the Registered Shareholders irrevocably agree to authorize
Beijing Haiyouyou (and its successors or liquidators) or a natura
person designated by Beijing Haiyouyou to exercise all of its
rights and powers as a shareholder of Beijing Xunyi, including
the rights to vote at a shareholders’ meeting, sign minutes, and
file documents with the relevant companies registry, (ii) Beijing
Xunyi irrevocably agrees to authorize Beijing Haiyouyou (and
its successors or liquidators) or a natural person designated
by Beijing Haiyouyou to exercise all of its rights and powers
as a shareholder of Yonghe Investment and Chengdu Yonghe
(as applicable), including the rights to vote at a shareholders’
meeting, sign minutes, and file documents with the relevant
companies registry, and (iii) Yonghe Investment irrevocably
agrees to authorize Beijing Haiyouyou (and its successors or
liquidators) or a natural person designated by Beijing Haiyouyou
to exercise all of its rights and powers as a shareholder of each
of the Medical Institutions (other than Chengdu Yonghe) held
by it, including the rights to vote at a shareholders’ meeting,
sign minutes, and file documents with the relevant companies
registry. Pursuant to the Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment
Agreements, the power of attorney granted in favor of the
Company and actions it takes in relation to the Contractua
Arrangements will only be decided by officers or Directors who
are not the Registered Shareholders. As Beijing Haiyouyou is
a subsidiary of the Company, the terms of the Shareholders’
Rights Entrustment Agreements will give the Company control
over all corporate decisions of the VIE Entities and 100% equity
interests of Beijing Xunyi.
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Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment Agreements shall become
effective from January 6, 2021. Each of the Shareholders’
Rights Entrustment Agreements has an indefinite term and a
termination provision which stipulates that unless otherwise
required by applicable PRC laws and regulations, none of the
parties to the agreement (except Beijing Haiyouyou) is entitled
to unilaterally terminate it.

Each of the Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment Agreements may
only be terminated in the event that (i) continued performance
of the obligations of the agreement will result in violation of
or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations,
the Listing Rules or the requirements of the Stock Exchange,
(ii) Beijing Haiyouyou or its designated person directly holds all
the equity interests in Beijing Xunyi, and all of the Registered
Shareholders’ equity interests in Beijing Xunyi or all of the assets
of Beijing Xunyi are transferred to Beijing Haiyouyou pursuant
to applicable PRC laws and regulations, (iii) Beijing Haiyouyou
or its designated person directly holds all the equity interests
in VIE Entities and all of the Beijing Xunyi’s equity interests in
VIE Entities or all of the assets of VIE Entities attributable to
Beijing Xunyi are transferred to Beijing Haiyouyou pursuant to
applicable PRC laws and regulations; or (iv) Beijing Haiyouyou
unilaterally terminates the agreement.
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(4) EQUITY PLEDGE AGREEMENTS

On January 6, 2021, Beijing Xunyi, the Registered Shareholders,
Beijing Haiyouyou, Yonghe Investment and Chengdu Yonghe
entered into equity pledge agreements (the “Equity Pledge
Agreements”). Pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreements,
(i) the Registered Shareholders agree to pledge all of their
respective equity interests in Beijing Xunyi, and (ii) Beijing
Xunyi agrees to pledge all of its equity interests in Yonghe
Investment and Chengdu Yonghe to Beijing Haiyouyou to secure
performance of all their obligations and the obligations of the
Registered Shareholders, Beijing Xunyi, Yonghe Investment
and Medical Institutions (where applicable) under the Exclusive
Operation Services Agreement, the Exclusive Purchase Option
Agreements, the Shareholders’ Rights Entrustment Agreements
and the Equity Pledge Agreements underlying the Contractual
Arrangements.

If Yonghe Investment, Chengdu Yonghe and Beijing Xunyi
declare any dividend during the term of the pledge, Beijing
Haiyouyou is entitled to receive all dividends or other income
arising from the pledged equity interests, if any. In case of any
breach of obligations by any of Beijing Xunyi, the Registered
Shareholders and Yonghe Investment, Chengdu Yonghe, Beijing
Haiyouyou, upon issuing a written notice to the Registered
Shareholders or Beijing Xunyi, will be entitled to all remedies
available in the Contractual Arrangements including but not
limited to disposing of the pledged equity interests.
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In addition, pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreements, the
Registered Shareholders and Beijing Xunyi undertake to Beijing
Haiyouyou, among other things, not to transfer their pledged
equity interests and not to create or allow any pledge or
encumbrance thereon that may affect the rights and interest
of Beijing Haiyouyou without its prior written consent. Beijing
Xunyi, Yonghe Investment and Chengdu Yonghe undertake to
Beijing Haiyouyou, among other things, not to consent to any
transfer the pledged equity interests or to create or allow any
pledge or encumbrance thereon without Beijing Haiyouyou's
prior written consent.

The pledges in respect of Beijing Xunyi, Yonghe Investment and
Chengdu Yonghe take effect upon the completion of registration
with the relevant Administration for Market Regulations and
we have registered the equity pledges contemplated under the
Equity Pledge Agreements with the relevant PRC legal authority
pursuant to PRC laws and regulations.

Equity Pledge Agreements became effective from January 6,
2021. Each of the Equity Pledge Agreements has an indefinite
term and a termination provision which stipulates that unless
otherwise required by applicable PRC laws and regulations, none
of the parties to the agreement (except Beijing Haiyouyou) is
entitled to unilaterally terminate it.

Each of the Equity Pledge Agreements may only be terminated
in the event that (i) continued performance of the obligations
of the agreement will result in violation of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations, the Listing Rules or
the requirements of the Stock Exchange, (ii) Beijing Haiyouyou
or its designated person directly holds all the equity interests
in Beijing Xunyi, and all of the Registered Shareholders’ equity
interests in Beijing Xunyi or all of the assets of Beijing Xunyi are
transferred to Beijing Haiyouyou pursuant to applicable PRC laws
and regulations, (iii) Beijing Haiyouyou or its designated person
directly holds all the equity interests in Yonghe Investment and
Chengdu Yonghe or all of the assets of Yonghe Investment and
Chengdu Yonghe attributable to Beijing Xunyi are transferred
to Beijing Haiyouyou pursuant to applicable PRC laws and
regulations or (iv) Beijing Haiyouyou unilaterally terminates the
agreement.
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(5) SPOUSE UNDERTAKINGS

The spouses of each of the Registered Shareholders has signed
an undertaking (the “Spouse Undertakings”) to the effect
that each of the spouses has no right to or control over such
interests of the respective persons and will not have any claim
on such interests.

The Foreign Investment Law

On March 15, 2019, the NPC promulgated the Foreign
Investment Law of the People’s Republic of China (FFZEARH
MBASNEIREE)) (the “FIL”) and replaced effective on January
1, 2020. After the FIL comes into effect, the FIL replaced the law
on Sino-Foreign Equity Joint Ventures (FoNE BELMDEER)),
the law on Sino-Foreign Contractual Joint Ventures ( FR4MNA 1EAE
ZE5%)) and the law on Foreign-Capital Enterprises #M& 1B
%%)) and became the legal foundation for foreign Investment
in the PRC. The FIL stipulates three forms of foreign investment,
but does not explicitly stipulate the contractual arrangements as
a form of foreign investment

The FIL does not explicitly stipulate the contractual arrangements
as a form of foreign investment. The FIL does not mention
concepts including “de facto control” and “controlling through
contractual arrangements” nor does it specify the regulation
on controlling through contractual arrangements. Furthermore,
the FIL stipulates that foreign investment includes “Foreign
Investors invest in China through many other methods under
laws, administrative regulations or provisions prescribed by
the State Council”. There are possibilities that future laws,
administrative regulations or provisions promulgated by the
State Council may regard Contractual Arrangements as a
form of foreign investment, at which time it will be uncertain
whether the Contractual Arrangements will be deemed to be
in violation of the foreign investment access requirements and
how the above-mentioned Contractual Arrangements will be
handled. Therefore, there is no guarantee that the Contractual
Arrangements and the business of the VIE Entities will not be
materially and adversely affected in the future due to changes in
PRC laws and regulations. In the event that such measures are
not complied with, the Stock Exchange may take enforcement
actions against us which may have a material adverse effect on
the trading of our Shares.
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Save as disclosed above, there were no other new contractual
arrangements entered into, renewed and/or reproduced
between the Group and Beijing Xunyi and/or the VIE Entities
during the Reporting Period. There was no material change in
the Contractual Arrangements and/or the circumstances under
which they were adopted during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, none of the Contractual
Arrangements had been unwound on the basis that none of
the restrictions that led to the adoption of the Contractual
Arrangements had been removed. As of December 31, 2021,
the Company had not encountered interference or encumbrance
from any PRC governing bodies in operating its businesses
through its VIE Entities under the Contractual Arrangements.

Reasons for Adopting the Contractual Arrangements

Our Group engages in providing hair transplant services and
medical hair care services (the “Relevant Businesses”), which
involve the operating of medical institutions, and therefore
falls into the scope of the “restricted” category of the Special
Administrative Measures for the Access of Foreign Investment
(Negative List) (2020) (UMEIREEZEAFREERER(EEESE)
(2020 FHR)). As such, we do not own 100% equity interest in
the VIE Entities. According to the Provisional Measures for the
Administration on Sino-Foreign Equity and Cooperative Medical
Institutions (PINEEAIEBREBEILLTHE), operation of
“medical institutions” falls within the “restricted category” and
foreign investors are not allowed to hold more than 70% equity
interest in a “medical institution”. These investor qualification
requirements and establishment criteria may be relaxed where
the foreign-invested medical institution is to be established in
Central and Western China or areas inhabited by more elderly,
ethnic-minorities and poorer demographics. Further, according
to the Administrative Measures on Sino-Foreign Equity and
Cooperative Medical Institutions in the Sichuan Province (P4
NEFINEE SEBBBESIENE)), the equity ratio or
interests attributable to joint venture of foreign investor in the
Sino-foreign cooperative medical institutes shall not be more
than 90%. As such, we decided that, in line with common
practice in industries in the PRC subject to foreign investment
restrictions, we would gain effective control over, and
receive all the economic benefits generated by the businesses
currently operated by our VIE Entities through the Contractual
Arrangements between the Group and Beijing Xunyi and the
Registered Shareholders.
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Risks Relating to the Contractual Arrangements

There are the certain risks that are associated with the
Contractual Arrangements, including:

o If the PRC government deems that the Contractual
Arrangements do not comply with PRC regulatory
restrictions on foreign investment in the relevant industries,
or if these regulations or the interpretation of existing
regulations change in the future, we could be subject to
severe penalties or be forced to relinquish our interests
received through the Contractual Arrangements.

o Our Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective in
providing operational control as direct ownership and our
VIE Entities, Beijing Xunyi and Registered Shareholders may
fail to perform their obligations under our Contractual
Arrangements.

o Our Contractual Arrangements may result in adverse tax
consequences to us.

o Beijing Xunyi or the Registered Shareholders may
potentially have a conflict of interest with us, and they may
breach their contracts with us or cause such contracts to
be amended in a manner contrary to our interests.

o Substantial uncertainties exist with respect to the
interpretation and implementation of the Foreign
Investment Law and how it may impact the viability of our
current corporate structure, corporate governance and
business operations.

For details, please refer to the section headed “Risk Factors
— Risks Relating to Our Contractual Arrangements” of the
Prospectus.
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NEBEDHEBA TR - BRASEEL Our Group has adopted the following measures to ensure the
BREEAREBERESTE L ZHE effective operation of our Group with the implementation and

compliance of the Contractual Arrangements:

() BEREEFTEALHMAIER LR (@) major issues arising from the implementation and
B9 K R ok AT M R A ) BE compliance with the Contractual Arrangements or any
EEHENBERRERESZESE regulatory enquiries from government authorities will
B R am (M) be submitted to our Board, if necessary, for review and

discussion on an occurrence basis;

by EFGgKEZLEBFEEM—REN (b) our Board will review the overall performance of and

THERBEIT A RER compliance with the Contractual Arrangements at least
once a year;

(0 ARFBREHZRRTFHBRERE () our Company will disclose the overall performance
ERNLHENBREBRERITIREHAE and compliance with the Contractual Arrangements in
S EREREREEIREEMER its annual reports and interim reports to update our
NRIMEHIER - & Shareholders and potential investors; and

(d) ARFHEBFINBEEFEMSE (d) our Company will engage external legal advisers or
EEBEM (WVLE)  BHES other professional advisers, if necessary, to assist the
EEHNEHNLTHENER - AR Board to review the implementation of the Contractual
RERR - IERAE - BERE Arrangements and the legal compliance of Beijing
RAISRN R ERERENLHE Haiyouyou, Beijing Xunyi, the Registered Shareholders,
FHRFRHERETENEEER and the VIE Entities to deal with specific issues or matters

B ° arising from the Contractual Arrangements.
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Listing Rules Implications and Waivers from the
Stock Exchange

The transactions contemplated under the Contractual
Arrangements constitute continuing connected transactions of
our Company under the Listing Rules upon Listing as certain
parties to the Contractual Arrangements, namely Mr. Zhang
Yu, Mr. Zhang Hui and Beijing Xunyi, are connected persons of
the Group. Mr. Zhang Yu is one of our controlling shareholders
and Directors, Mr. Zhang Hui is one of our Directors, therefore
Mr. Zhang Yu and Mr. Zhang Hui are connected persons of our
Company. Beijing Xunyi is owned by Mr. Zhang Yu and Mr.
Zhang Hui as to 85% and 15% respectively, and therefore is
an associate of Mr. Zhang Yu and a connected person of our
Company.

In relation to the Contractual Arrangements, we have applied to
the Stock Exchange for, and the Stock Exchange has granted, a
waiver from strict compliance with (i) the announcement, circular
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the Contractual Arrangements pursuant
to Rule 14A.105 of the Listing Rules, (ii) the requirement of
setting an annual cap for the transactions under the Contractual
Arrangements under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules, and
(iii) the requirement of limiting the term of the Contractual
Arrangements to three years or less under Rule 14A.52 of the
Listing Rules, for so long as the Shares are Listed on the Stock
Exchange subject however to the following conditions:

(@) No change without independent non-executive Directors’
approval;

(b) No change without independent Shareholders’ approval,

()  The Contractual Arrangements shall continue to enable our
Group to receive the entire economic benefits derived by
the VIE Entities and Beijing Xunyi;

(d) The Contractual Arrangements may be renewed and/
or reproduce (i) upon expiry or (ii) in relation to any
existing, newly established or acquired wholly foreign
invested enterprise or operating company (including a
branch company) engaging in the same business as that
of our Group which the Group might wish to establish
when justified by business expediency, without obtaining
Shareholders’ approval, on substantially the same terms
and conditions as the Contractual Arrangements; and

(e)  Our Group will disclose details relating to the Contractual
Arrangements on an on-going basis.
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Annual Review by the Independent Non-executive
Directors and the Auditor

The independent non-executive Directors, upon review of the
overall performance of and compliance with the Contractual
Arrangements, confirmed that:

(a) The transactions carried out during the Reporting Period
have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Contractual Arrangements;

(b) No dividends or other distributions have been made by
the VIE Entities to Beijing Xunyi which are not otherwise
subsequently assigned or transferred to our Group; and

() Any new contracts entered into, renewed or reproduced
between the Group and the VIE Entities during the
Reporting Period are fair and reasonable, or advantageous
to the Shareholders, so far our Group is concerned and in
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Auditor has carried out review procedures in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 "Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants annually
on the transactions carried out pursuant to the Contractual
Arrangements. The Auditor has confirmed in a letter to
the Board that the transactions carried out pursuant to the
Contractual Arrangements during the year ended December
31, 2021 had received the approval of the Board, had been
entered into in accordance with the relevant provisions of
the Contractual Arrangements and that no dividends or other
distributions had been made by the Company’s VIE Entities to
the holders of its equity interests which were not otherwise
subsequently assigned or transferred to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company was not
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and no
litigation or claim of material importance is known to the Directors to
be pending or threatening against the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, every Director or other officers of
the Company acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company
shall be entitled to be indemnified against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he or she may incur or sustain
in or about the execution of his or her duties in his or her office; be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company;
provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect
of any fraud or dishonesty.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal action against its Directors and officers.

DONATION

During the Reporting Period, the Group made no charitable and other
donations.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company had, together with the
management and the auditor of the Company, reviewed the
accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group and the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 77 to 93 of this annual
report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued shares, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float
approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under the Listing
Rules, was held by the public at all times since the Listing Date and
up to the date of this annual report.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holdings, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any
rights (including entitlements to any relief of taxation) in relation to,
the Shares, they are advised to consult an expert.

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the auditors of the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2021. The accompanying
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Yu
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, March 24, 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Shares were listed on the Main Board on December 13, 2021. The
Board hereby presents to the Shareholders the corporate governance
report for the period from the Listing Date to December 31, 2021 (the
“Period”).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of its shareholders and to
enhance its corporate value and accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions as set out in the CG Code contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Board is of the view that during the Period, the Company has
applied all the applicable principles and code provisions as set out
in the CG Code except for the deviation from provision C.2.1 of the
CG Code. The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

Details of deviation are set out in the section headed “Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer” below in this corporate governance report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules for dealings in securities of the Company by the
Directors and relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Company.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code from
the Listing Date.

No incident of non-compliance of the Model Code by the relevant
employees was noted by the Company from the Listing Date.
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THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the businesses, strategic decisions and
performance of the Group. The Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith and in
compliance with the standards of applicable laws and regulations, and
have acted in the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all
times.

Delegation of Management Function

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company
including the approval and monitoring of policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, risk management and internal control systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflicts of
interest), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information to
ensure that Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed. Each Director is able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon
making request to the Board.

The Company adopted a Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism
on March 24, 2022. This mechanism is designed to ensure a strong
independent element on the Board, which allows the Board effectively
exercises independent judgment to better safeguard shareholders’
interest. The Board will review the implementation and effectiveness
of such mechanism on an annual basis.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management by the Board. The
delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Under
the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer, the management is
responsible for the daily operation of the Company.
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Board Composition
The Board currently comprises the following Directors:
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhang Hui

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhai Feng
Mr. Geng Jiaqi

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Wang Jiping
Mr. Chan Peng Kuan
Mr. Li Xiaopei

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant
to the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive Directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules. Mr. Zhang Yu is the elder brother of Mr. Zhang Hui.
Saved as disclosed, there is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship among the Directors. Biographical
details, including offices held in public companies or organizations
and other significant commitments of the Directors are set out in the
section “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

The Board has assessed the independence of all the independent
non-executive directors of the Company and considers all of them
to be independent having regard to (i) their annual confirmation on
independence as required under the Listing Rules, (ii) the absence of
involvement in the daily management of the Company, and (iii) the
absence of any relationships or circumstances which would interfere
with the exercise of their independent judgement. Throughout the
Period, the number of independent non-executive Directors on the
Board meets the one-third requirement under the Listing Rules.
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All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing
a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement
on corporate actions and operations.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) are appointed for a specific term of 3 years, subject to
renewal after the expiry of the then current term.

All the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meetings. Under the Articles of Association,
at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director (including those appointed for
a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. The Articles of Association also provides that all
Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election
by shareholders at the first general meeting after the appointment.
The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, all Directors will be subject to re-election at the
forthcoming AGM. None of the Directors who are proposed for re-
election or any other Directors has a service contract that is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive induction on
the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she
has appropriate understanding of the businesses and operations of
the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements. Continuing briefing and professional development for
Directors will be arranged whenever necessary.
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Directors are encouraged to participate in appropriate continuous
professional development (“CPD") program to develop and refresh
their knowledge. Internal briefings for Directors will be arranged by
the Company and reading materials on relevant topics will be issued
to Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expense.

The records of CPD relating to director’s duties and regulatory and
business development that have been received by the Directors for the
Period are summarized as follows:

EEgS EIER

Name of Directors Type of Training
ftat
Note

WITES

Executive Directors

RELLE AKB

Mr. Zhang Yu Aand B

SRIESE A ANB

Mr. Zhang Hui Aand B

ERTEE

Non-executive Directors

2t AKB

Mr. Zhai Feng A and B

BkFa st AKB

Mr. Geng lJiaqi A and B

BIUERNTES

Independent Non-executive Directors

Tt AKB

Ms. Wang Jiping A and B

BRI AKB

Mr. Chan Peng Kuan A and B

=N AKB

Mr. Li Xiaopei A and B

BT Note:

B 2ERy Types of Training

A HEEIRE  BEETRNE®R A
g ERATHEY

B: BIEMBIHENRA  #HE BT LA
BTy

A:  Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings,
seminars, conferences and workshops

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and
relevant publications
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Board Meetings

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year
involving active participation, either in person or through electronic
means of communication, of a majority of Directors.

Since the Shares were just listed on December 13, 2021, the Company
did not hold Board meeting and convene any general meeting, nor
the chairman of the Board held any meeting with independent non-
executive Directors without the presence of other Directors during the
Period.

The Company will fully comply with the requirement under the code
provision C.5.1 and C.2.7 of the CG Code to convene Board meetings
at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals and
arrange meetings between the Chairman and independent non-
executive Directors annually.

Practice and Conduct of Board Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings will be served to all Directors at
least 14 days before the meetings (or such other period as agreed).
For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information will be sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each
regular Board meeting or committee meeting (or such other period
as agreed) to keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments
and financial position of the Company and to enable them to make
informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary.

The senior management, where necessary, attends regular Board
meetings and other Board and committee meetings to advise on
business developments, financial and accounting matters, statutory
compliance, corporate governance and other major aspects of the
Company.

The Articles of Association contains provisions requiring Directors to
abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.
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The agenda of each Board meeting is in consultation with members of
the Board such that they are given an opportunity to include agenda
items, draft and executed Board minutes are sent in a timely manner
to all Directors for their comments and records, minutes of the Board
meetings recorded in sufficient details are kept by the Company
Secretary.

Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged the directors and officers liability
insurance in respect of legal action against the Directors during the
Period. The insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. However, Mr. Zhang Yu
is the chairman of the Board (“Chairman”) and chief executive
officer of the Company (“Chief Executive Officer”). With extensive
experience in the hair health industry and having served in the
Company since its establishment, Mr. Zhang Yu is in charge of
the overall strategic planning, business direction and operational
management of the Group. The Board considers that vesting the
roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer in the same
person is beneficial to the management of the Group. The balance of
power and authority is ensured by the operation of the Board, which
comprises experienced and diverse individuals. The Board currently
comprises two executive Directors (including Mr. Zhang Yu), two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors,
and therefore has a strong independent element in its composition.

During the Period, the positions of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer are held by Mr. Zhang Yu. The Chairman provides leadership
and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of the
Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Company’s business
development and daily management and operations generally. Their
respective responsibilities are clearly established and set out in writing.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee are posted on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to
Shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors. The Board committees are
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties, and upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of two independent non-executive
Directors being Mr. Chan Peng Kuan, Mr. Li Xiaopei and one non-
executive Directors being Mr. Geng Jiagi. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Chan Peng Kuan, who holds the appropriate
professional qualifications as required under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of
the Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the
Audit Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing the financial
information and reporting process, risk management and internal
control systems, effectiveness of the internal audit function, scope
of audit and appointment of external auditors, and arrangements to
enable employees of the Company to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters
of the Company.

Since the Shares were just listed on December 13, 2021, the Audit
Committee did not hold any meetings and not meet the external
auditors during the Period.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of two independent non-
executive Directors being Mr. Chan Peng Kuan and Mr. Li Xiaopei,
and one executive Director being Mr. Zhang Yu. The Remuneration
Committee is chaired by Mr. Chan Peng Kuan.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of
no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The
primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing
and making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management,
the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management; and establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

Since the Company’s shares were just listed on December 13, 2021,
the Remuneration Committee did not hold any meetings during the
Period.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company by band are set out on page 241 and
239 in the notes 34 and 33 to the Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2021.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of two independent non-
executive Directors being Mr. Chan Peng Kuan and Ms. Wang lJiping,
and one executive Director being Mr. Zhang Yu. The chairman of the
Nomination Committee is Mr. Zhang Yu.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The principal
duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating relevant procedures for the
nomination and appointment of Directors, making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and succession planning of
Directors, and assessing the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would
take into account various aspects as well as factors concerning Board
diversity as set out in the Company's Board Diversity Policy.
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In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s relevant
criteria as set out in the Director Nomination Policy that are necessary
to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity,
before making recommendation to the Board.

Since the Company’s Shares were just listed on December 13, 2021,
the Nomination Committee did not hold any meetings during the
Period.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity of the Board and is available on the
website of the Company. The Company recognizes and embraces the
benefits of having a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in maintaining the Company’s
competitive advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee
will review annually the structure, size and composition of the Board
and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and to
ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile. In relation
to reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee will consider a number of aspects, including but not
limited to skills, professional experience, educational background,
knowledge, expertise, culture, independence, age and gender.

The Company aims to maintain a truly diverse Board which will
include and make good use of differences in the skills, regional and
industry experience, background, race, gender and other qualities of
Directors. These differences will be taken into account in determining
the optimum composition of the Board. All Board appointments
will be based on merit while taking into account diversity (including
gender diversity).

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement
the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy to
ensure its effectiveness.

Director Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee.
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The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets
out the selection criteria and process and the Board succession
planning considerations in relation to nomination and appointment
of Directors of the Company and aims to ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the Company and the continuity of the Board and appropriate
leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

o Character and integrity;

° Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

o Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service;

o Requirements of Independent Non-executive Directors on the
Board and independence of the proposed Independent Non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

o Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for
the selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of
Directors at general meetings. During the Period, there was no change
in the composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy
to ensure its effectiveness.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

During the Period, the Board reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Written Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2021.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 130 of this annual report.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company's external auditors
of the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services
for the year ended December 31, 2021 amounted to RMB8,502
thousands and RMB1,627 thousands respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditors of the
Company, Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of audit services
and non-audit services for the year ended December 31, 2021 is set
out below:

e ERER

BR A% 38 Al Service Category (AR®T )
Fees Paid/Payable

(RMB’000)

AR LM EITEOZE R Audit Services in relation to primary listing 5,802
EAFEETRZERS Audit Services in relation to annual audit 2,700
FEIZ B AR TS Non-audit Services 1,627
— EMEHITE A — Internal Control Consulting 1,332
- B ~Tax Consulting 295

10,129
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CONTROLS

INTERNAL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Company's strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines with regular review for implementation
by key business processes and office functions, including operational
management, medical advertising, procurement and sales, financial
reporting, human resources and information technology. The Audit
Committee reviews annually the continued effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems dealing with
risk and financial accounting and reporting, the effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, compliance with laws and regulations, and
risk management functions. Up to the date of this annual report, the
Audit Committee had reviewed and confirmed to the Board, that the
Group’s risk management and internal control system are effective
and adequate.

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems
are featured with well-defined organizational structure with
appropriate segregation of duties, limit of authority, reporting lines
and responsibilities to identify and manage potential risks, and to
safeguard assets of our Group.

The management assessed the likelihood of risk occurrence, provided
treatment plans, and monitored the risk management progress, and
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on all findings and
the effectiveness of the systems.

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended December 31, 2021.
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The Internal Audit Department is responsible for performing
independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems. The Internal Audit
Department examined key issues in relation to the accounting
practices and all material controls and provided its findings and
recommendations for improvement to the Audit Committee. Any
urgent matters in relation to the relevant areas of internal control will
be reported in a timely manner. Review results and recommendations
in the form of written reports are submitted to the Audit Committee
for discussion and review. Follow up actions will be taken up by
the Internal Audit Department to ensure that material weaknesses
previously identified have been properly resolved.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report, reviewed the risk management and internal
control systems, including the financial, operational and compliance
controls, for the year ended December 31, 2021, and considered
that such systems are effective and adequate. The annual review also
covered the financial reporting and staff qualifications, experiences
and relevant resources.

Arrangements are in place to facilitate employees of the Company to
raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides a
general guide to the Company’s Directors, senior management and
relevant employees in handling confidential information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries. Control
procedures have been implemented to ensure that unauthorized
access and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Leung Ching Ching and Ms. Han Zhimei have been the Joint
Company Secretaries of the Company since June 1, 2021. Ms. Leung
Ching Ching is a Senior Manager of Corporate Services of Tricor
Services Limited, a global professional services provider specializing in
integrated business, corporate and investor services.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the joint
company secretaries on corporate governance and board practices
and matters. Ms. Han Zhimei, Finance Director and Joint Company
Secretary has been designated as the primary contact person at the
Company which would work and communicate with Ms. Leung Ching
Ching on the Company’s corporate governance and secretarial and
administrative matters.

During the Period, Ms. Leung Ching Ching and Ms. Han Zhimei have
received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training to
refresh their skills and knowledge in compliance with Rules 3.29 of
the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. At the annual general meeting, directors are
available to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Articles of Association has been amended and restated with effect
from the Listing Date. The Company has not made any changes to the
Articles of Association since the Listing Date. An up to date version of
the Articles of Association is also available on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange's website.

The Company has in place a Shareholders’" Communication Policy
to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The Board has reviewed the policy and confirmed that it is
effective and adequate.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends.
The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend payout
ratio. Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and
the Group and the conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend
Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the Board
during a financial year and any final dividends for a financial year will
be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings of the Company, including the election of individual
Directors. All resolutions put forward at general meetings of the
Company will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and
poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange after each general meeting of the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

In accordance with Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association, general
meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of any two
or more members of the Company deposited at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases
to have such a principal office, the registered office specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitions, provided that
such requisitions held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
General meetings may also be convened on the written requisition
of any one member which is a recognized clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) of the Company deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitions, provided that such
requisitions held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. If the Board
does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further 21
days, the requisition(s) themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene
the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisition(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands. However, Shareholders who wish to propose
resolutions may follow Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association
for requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting and including
a resolution at such meeting. The requirements and procedures of
Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association are set out above.

Putting Forward Enquiry/Requisition to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries or requisitions to the Board,
Shareholders may send written enquiries/requisitions to the Company.
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Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requisitions as mentioned
above to the following:

Name: Yonghe Medical Group Co., Ltd.

Address: Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must send the original duly
signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address, and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.
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REPORT OVERVIEW

The Report is prepared in strict accordance with Appendix 27
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide to the rules
of securities listing published by Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (HKEX), aiming to elaborate on the performance, policies
and strategies of the Group in terms of sustainable economic,
environmental and social development. The Report covers the period
from January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021 and involves Yonghe
Medical Group Co., Ltd. and the subsidiaries in consolidated financial
statement of annual report (the Group). For convenient expression, it
is also referred to as “the Group”, "Group”.

ESG reporting principles:

e Importance: The Report, following the importance principle
of HKEX, discloses the ESG matters deliberated by the Board
of Directors, communication of stakeholders, the process of
identifying substantive issues and the substantive issue matrix.

e  Quantification: The Report quantifies and describes the statistics
standards, methods and assumptions of key performance
indicators and/or calculation tools as well as the source of
conversion factors in relevant chapters.

e Balancing: The Report objectively presents the performance of
the Group in the reporting period and discloses the indicators
involving positive and negative information.

e  Consistency: The statistical methods used for disclosing data in
the Report are consistent.

ESG STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Yonghe Medical Group Co., Ltd. promises that the Group will strictly
follow the disclosure requirements of Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide published by HKEX. The Report disclosed
the progress and achievements of the environmental, social and
governance (ESG) work of the Group in 2021 in details, which has
been deliberated at the board meeting before disclosure. The Board
of Directors bears full responsibility for the Report.
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RESPONSIBILITY MANAGEMENT
ESG management

As the highest responsible and decision-making body for ESG
matters of the Group, the Board of Directors of the Group attaches
great importance to ESG work of the Group, including evaluating
and determining the ESG risks related to the Group, ensuring the
establishment of effective ESG risk management system for the Group
and approving the data disclosed in the ESG report of the Group.

In 2021, for continuous improvement of ESG management level, the
Group explicitly designated Audit Department to be mainly responsible
for ESG work, supervise the commitment and performance of ESG key
issues, evaluate relevant ESG risks of the Group and report the work
related to ESG and the progress to the Board of Director at regular
intervals. Meanwhile, the Audit Department also communicated,
coordinated and promoted other functional departments, subsidiaries
and branches to carry out other ESG work such as energy conservation
and emission reduction, ensuring medical safety and improving
customer service level. All functional departments, subsidiaries and
branches implemented the ESG work within the scope of responsibility
based on their own business and functions, and cooperated with the
Group in annual ESG information disclosure and reporting.

Stakeholder communication

The Group has established diversified communication channels
for stakeholders and kept normal communication. In 2021,
the Group summarized the expectations and demands of the
shareholders, the government, customers, partners, employees,
environment, community and other stakeholders through multi-
party communication and investigation during the preparation of ESG
report.
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Investors/shareholders

BT R B B e
Government and
regulatory authorities

BERPMEE
Customers and patients

Return on investment and growth

R IR

Rights and interests security
EEERARSMER

Information transparency and efficient
communication

EERERRER

Corporate governance and risk
management

BERER

Compliance with laws and regulations
BTG EE

Fulfilling tax liability
XEREEL S RE A ERR
Supporting sustainable economic,
social and environmental
development

REBEEE

Ensuring medical quality
REEBEERRY

Providing first-rate medical service
P B TR E

Customer rights and interests and
privacy protection

Regular reporting

N5 SRR

Timely information disclosure
KREERES

Meeting with investors

noe LB e B A g B IR
Enhancing risk control and anti-
corruption management
RS

General meetings

BRKE

Compliance operation

FOEEE R

Taking the initiative to pay tax
according to laws

BT ERRER

Practicing green and low-carbon
development

e $7S

Information submission

= EREE

Information disclosure

BB RG R

Customer consultation and service
hotline

BPmEE AR

Customer Satisfaction questionnaire
TER P ER B ILRERLE
Improving customer rights and
interests and privacy protection
measures
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Stakeholders Expectations and Demands Communication and Response
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Partners e Management over sustainable e  Standardizing supplier management
development of supply chain o FRIEBHEEGHE
o BEHE - HEBE e Carrying out project cooperation
e Win-win cooperation and common ¢ = SERHMEERE
development e Attaching importance to intellectual
property protection
8T o HEMEARE o B{tEFBENER
Employees e Remuneration and welfare e Optimizing remuneration and
o HEPBFTREREIES welfare system
e Promoting career development and o EHIEFHEZEE
skill enhancement e  Regular meeting and professional
o  EMEELE training
e Occupational health & safety o IERREEE
e Strengthening safety supervision
and management
RIE o HEMER e ERE=ZFEBMIBEIWEIRERE

Environment

Zan
Community

e Emissions management
o HTRE[EFE
e Energy saving and waste reduction

o ZHEMERHE

EQPaN

e  Participating in social welfare

7

e  Entrusting qualified third-party
institutions to recycle medical waste

o EUREESAIEANIR S HE

e Energy consumption monitoring
and garbage sorting

o ZEERARY

e Taking part in volunteer service

e FRAREEED

e Carrying out public service & charity
activities
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Identification of important issues

The Group evaluates the importance of relevant ESG issues to
stakeholders, the environment and the society based on the
communication with stakeholders and the development of the Group
in line with Appendix 27 Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide to the rules of securities listing published by HKEX,
screens and forms the substantial issues matrix as the core basis for
the Group's ESG practice and information disclosure.

HAEEOESY ]

Importance to the Group

FERMEEBRIER

Figure: Results of Identifying Important Issues
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Anti-corruption management

The Group strictly observes the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic
of China, Company Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Anti-money Laundering, Interim
Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery and relevant laws and
regulations, makes a stand against any acts of embezzlement,
corruption and malpractice, formulates Anti-Money Laundering
Policies, Manual on Risk Compliance Management, Management
System for Anti-malpractice Reporting Mailbox, Authorizations Related
to Fiscal Charges and other policies, ensures the reporting channels
open and encourages employees to reflect any acts of violation
to relevant departments via email, DingTalk reporting platform,
interview and others. Moreover, the Group vigorously promotes the
trainings and study on anti-corruption and anti-malpractice, cultivates
employee’s compliance awareness, and strives to create a corporate
culture of integrity, honesty and compliance and build a clean and
upright atmosphere.

In the reporting period, the Group was not engaged in lawsuit arising
from corruption or malpractice.

e  Enhancing the education of clean politics: include the contents
relating to anti-corruption and anti-malpractice into induction
training and organize relevant trainings irregularly in daily work;
encourage senior executives and staff of important posts to sign
the Letter of Commitment on Honesty and Ethics upon entry. In
the reporting period, the Group carried out online and offline
multi-departments anti-corruption trainings, with cumulative
training period of 742.33 hours and participation of 4,344
persons.

e Making the reporting channels open: set internal and external
reporting channels for employees and other stakeholders (e.g.:
third-party suppliers and customers). Set reporting mailbox
and open DingTalk reporting platform internally, encourage
all employees to take the initiative in company management
and timely supervise and report any acts of violation; offer the
feedback channels to other stakeholders via “sunshine terms”
of contracts, official service hotline and other means to accept
their supervision. Besides, the Audit Department evaluates and
classifies all reporting information in real time and designates
special person for follow-up investigation.

e Open reporting mailbox: jubao@zhifa.cn

e Internal DingTalk communication platform: “employee reporting”
module is set.
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1. MEDICAL QUALITY ¢ HAIRCARE MISSION
1.1 Reassuring Yonghe

As a leading medical group specialized in providing hair-related
healthcare services in China, it is the responsibility and baseline of
Yonghe and also the footstone for long-term development of the
Group to ensure the medical quality and safety. The Group strictly
observes the Administrative Measures on Medical Institutions, the
Administrative Measures for Aesthetic Medical Services, Regulations
on Supervision and Administration of Medical Devices, Drug
Administration Law of People’s Republic of China and other laws and
regulations, formulates Code of Conduct Management for Yonghe
Medical Institutions and Health Workers to Practice According to
Law, Unified Standard for Surgical Operation, “Eight Bans” System
for Medical Behaviors, “Critical Value” Reporting and Management
System of Yonghe, Guidelines for Prevention and Management of
Medical Accidents, Contraindications and Treatment Suggestions
for Hair Transplant Surgery, Working Rules of Medical Quality
Management Committee, Manual on Procurement Management,
Manual on Quality Inspection Management and other internal systems,
to enhance the medical safety management from the perspective
of oversight, requirements for practicing, supplies management,
diagnosis and treatment service and emergency management, increase
the service transparency through live surgery and do the utmost to
provide customers with safe and assured service.

e  Oversight management: set up Medical Quality Management
Committee and check the qualification, potential medical safety
hazard, compliance of medical supplies, first-aid management
and medical quality management of all clinics at regular intervals
in line with Working Rules of Medical Quality Management
Committee, "Eight Bans” System for Medical Behaviors and
other systems, encourage all clinics to perform self-check
according to Ten Medical Standards, timely rectify and optimize
upon any problem and improve the overall medical safety
management level. Set up Compliance Management Committee
and continuously monitor and irregularly check the compliance
management of important business of the Company in line with
the Rules of Procedure of Compliance Management Committee.
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Requirements for practicing: formulate Code of Conduct
Management for Yonghe Medical Institutions and Health Workers
to Practice According to Law and other policies, and ensure all
clinics obtain the medical institution practicing license before
opening, finish annual inspection on time and carry out related
diagnosis and treatment services within the scope of license.
All medical staff shall get corresponding qualification certificate
before work and receive the trainings on practicing safety and
clinical practice, and take up their posts only after passing the
assessment. After they take up their posts, trainings on medical
safety, surgical technique and other on-the-job intensive trainings
are carried out and top experts and well-known specialist
physicians are invited for clinical experience sharing meeting
at regular intervals, to constantly improve the responsibility
consciousness and technical level of physicians.

Supplies management: strictly control the quality of medical
supplies and clearly specify the admission standards for the drugs,
medical devices and medical consumables used in diagnosis and
treatment. Set up the standard procedure for quality inspection
in accordance with the System for Expiration Management of
General Warehouse and Clinics, Manual on Quality Inspection
Management, and Manual for Warehouse Work of Procurement
Department, and further classify the validity period of products
into “unexpired, near expiration and expired” to guarantee
product safety. In the reporting period, the Group was not
subject to product recall arising from product safety and health
issue.

Reassuring diagnosis and treatment: licensed physicians
shall sign 5+5 Carefree Guarantee commitment document
before surgery and ensure patient’s right to know; use digital
information system and intelligent devices to promote the
transparency of surgery via real-time data and live surgery, so
as to improve patient’s treatment experience and reassure the
customers and their families.

Emergency management: formulate “Critical Value” Reporting
and Management System of Yonghe, Adverse Event Reporting
System and other systems, and clearly define the emergency
handling procedures and methods, to improve the emergency
management level and guarantee customer’s health and safety.
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1.2 High-quality service

The Group is devoted to providing customers with thoughtful,
reassuring and convenient services and a good medical environment.
Customers can get real-time and intelligent reply to their online
consultation through intelligent consulting service software. With
data information system used, patients’ demands can be quickly
and accurately discovered, and professional service programs can be
worked out. Meanwhile, multi-brand service system composed of
Yonghe Hair Transplant, Svenson Medical Hair Care and Hafada Hair
Growth, and the Basic-level, Premium-level and Top-of-the-line multi-
level service system can satisfy diversified demands of customers.
As the Group attaches importance to the post-surgery experience
and comments of customers, Guidelines of Yonghe for Services of
Important Nodes after Surgery and Process of Yonghe for Customer
Complaint Handling are formulated to standardize the requirements
for follow-up service after surgery and the customer complaint
management process, hence guaranteeing the legal rights of both
the physicians and patients and continuously improving customer
satisfaction.

In the reporting period, the Group’s customer complaint rate was
0.06% and complaint feedback rate was 100%.

¢ Open communication channels: open up official hotline 400-
888-6667, Yonghe official complaint platform, online customer
service and customer satisfaction survey mechanism.

e Clearly defining the complaint handling principles and
precautions: when receiving a complaint, carefully listen to the
complainant’s opinions and record the details fed back, including
the time, place, course and persons involved; actively, sincerely
and timely handle to avoid any delay.
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Recheck and management promotion: supervise and
check the timeliness of accepting complaint and rationality
of handling scheme at regular intervals; recheck and
analyze the complaint data of each clinic regularly, organize
case analysis and experience summary and learning for
various complaints to continuously improve the service
level; conduct trainings on complaint handling and typical
complaint case sharing meeting on a regular basis, to

handling.

BER PR

Receive customer complaint

l

THREHRER

Get to know the situation

l

ZIZIRHEERIE

Whole-process follow-up for handling

IR RERE
Handling ends Archive the records

Bl EPIREFEIEIE
Figure: Process for Handling Customer Complaints

improve the timeliness, accuracy and rationality of complaint

103



104

EREBEEEAERAT  YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

BRI HERERBRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

1.3 BAFRE

KEETHEZORRE  BEEBER  TEAHK
ERREENR - HIELHECENE—Z N
B REERNRE) (EREFRT LR
BHE -FREE)EBERHE  HREE
2 BBENR HREREZHE  HEFR
B BMEIR RBRER BRELAER
ETARRE  BREFPEALANZEMER
MR -

e HIBEHRER: HTRAEMLAEREDT
FIRER - Mok R EREEMZIHRE
B3R AFREFZLBRBEL &
ISEEFAIFEE PR o REFH R
ABRGRETER - BYERENE
WEAEERE  HRENEMMENE
EREER  WHRERBNRREAH
iR ZAERNZHHENE  BR
RSN L M

e WEERE: PRMRERKEARSN - H
EMEEBEMEAEEEEENEER
- UWBRRBRERERE B2
i'%ﬁWﬁT%%$%F HEEE
MTTK EE - R—RE - EMH

CREEFRE WW%ME

c HBHEERWN: AREPEELEL
ERZHE  EPERELEE
HAARRESIRE -

%%/E\ ?_T
HesE -

o REHEBEABBIIVARTWHE
W EREABREIMRE L REE
MAEBHENE - HBRETHREG
Bl BRARTIIEMEZRN - xi%ﬁ
BTRXAHREHEHABSEI
IR SR %1%151%?324%&
BIIFEHE o

1.3 Privacy protection

The Group observes the requirements of national laws, supervision
laws and regulations and industry standards on information security,
formulates and follows such policies and systems as the Regulations
on Further Strengthening the Management of Medical Records in
clinic, Rules and Regulations for Yonghe Customer Service Center —
Information Security, and effectively protects the medical records,
contact information, treatment information, photo and other private
information of customers from the perspective of medical record
management, communication requirements and authorization
management, to protect customer privacy from any form of
infringement.

e Password permission management: set different permissions
for persons of different posts, and strengthen system permission
management and password keeping requirements. User
authorization must be strictly approved and only those getting
permission from the authorizer can access customer data.
Timely disable the system account of the separating employees.
Establish strict password approval and authorization process, set
requirements for password complexity and length, specify the
maximum password life and disable restorable password storage
function to ensure password security.

e Medical records management: make explicit stipulation that,
except specific person, any other institution or individual has
no access to patients’ medical records, and strictly standardize
the medical record retrieval process and stamping requirements;
all waste data with identifiable patient information cannot be
discard randomly and should be kept uniformly and destroyed
regularly to ensure confidentiality of patients’ medical records.

e  Self-check and rectification: carry out rectification on customer
information security and perform regular self-check on the
security of important data and customer information to prevent
leakage of relevant information.

e Confidentiality education: sign confidentiality agreement
with new employees and require them to fulfill confidentiality
obligations after dimission. Intensify the publicity and education,
enhance employees’ confidentiality awareness and emphasize
the importance of confidentiality work. Require new employees
to receive the induction training on confidentiality education
and receive on-the-job training at regular intervals to ensure full
coverage of confidentiality training and education.
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1.4 Responsible marketing

The Group strictly observes laws and regulations, including
Advertisement Law of the People’s Republic of China, Administrative
Measures on Medical Advertisements, and Enforcement Guidance
for the Medical Cosmetology Advertising, formulates Measures
for Advertising Management and other systems, specifies that all
marketing contents and forms must be reviewed by the Headquarters
and forbids exaggerated or false activities, to ensure the accuracy and
uniformity of brand image as well as the authenticity and rationality
of publicity. The Group's brand video Yonghe Paying Respect to
Fighters won many awards, including three awards of 2021 the
13th Beijing International Creativity Award and 2021 the 44th Times
Award, with the brand image highly recognized.

¢ Review management: the marketing advertisement of each
region must be jointly reviewed by the Brand Center, Medical
Management Center and Legal Department of the Headquarters
before release; online ads should also be re-reviewed by relevant
online media platform. Organize to troubleshoot the problems
according to the explicit regulations in laws and regulations
related to advertisement on a regular basis. Besides, a Medical
Advertisement Examination certificate should also be obtained
before release and be renewed.

e Release management: each region shall release the
review advertisement according to Measures for Advertising
Management and regularly analyze and evaluate the release
effect and influence after release. In terms of publicity and
presentation, show a uniform standard enterprise brand image
according to Manual for Standardization of Yonghe Brand Image,
to ensure the authenticity and uniformity of brand image and
publicity contents. Moreover, the Group investigates and makes
statistics on online publicity channels at regular intervals to
screen the potential risks.

e Sales management: ensure that the service price in marketing is
open and transparent and the discount is strictly approved; forbid
offering credit sales or any form of loan to customers for the
service fee; regularly provide appropriate sales service trainings
for sales and marketing teams and carry out spot check; forbid
overselling, fictitious promise and unnecessary diagnosis and
treatment.

e Training management: all marketing channels irregularly
organize trainings on marketing advertising production
requirements and release management and standardize the
advertising work; Legal Department and Audit Department
regularly organize trainings on the laws, regulations and internal
control compliance of medical advertisement, and enhance the
consciousness of each region on compliance publicity.

105



106

EREBEEEAERAT  YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

BRI HERERBRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

2. PHREERHAMR

2.1 Rl

AEBEE  ARERFHUEXBLENTR
BIRREMER - KEREGE R RIMF
A R TERBEMRELS  THaER
ERBERWE TIERMEN TIETR) (BR
MBEKEERRT) RABMEEAEHE -
REFBERIFNER - AR - SEZIRNIAT
BRERANITE  RRZETNEER - BB
HIMNBBERR BEEBRRRMSE
TS REERMRE - B HITERME
X HUBIET  ERNBERTERES
HiRE - SEBIABERR o

o IREERR : B KEETERA
TEETTH SO BAT LRI - LA IRE
JER - RENE - REREE - SFELE
ERAERSHR LHEZEZRD
Be - mERPZHIHERK - KRS
ERBRAE BBRIIESAE]
Wl B EHRANAERBSLEMRET
B RAREEFSLERMETHE R
BHRRNEBILHEEYEZIANE -
RBEAFER SN - 2MEEE
SREWNE - R XERCIE
FEEBBEFMERIN) HEE - B
SEBYRIFH mETER

o MEBERRKE BBET(PEARHE
MBEZEEEE)(PEARLENBEEF
SEY (P EE A REMBEEE) SHHEE
AR ARER - EF - TR ER
MBAEEERE  BREELEEHA
BEENAR - WAEB TREAENH
EREENENEFEHENZN - AR
ERNRDEMEBEZAMABEE  £8
RBSEHERESEERANTE
Ao RERBEERE R
ZEHE - HE2021FE » AEER R
TS EEEMEEERIBE2001% -
MEHRFISEREESD -

2. PLATFORM ¢ GROWING TOGETHER WITH
YONGHE

2.1 Innovation and joint development

The Group believes that research and development is of vital
importance to the sustainable growth of business operation. The
Group took the initiative in building up an innovative technology
platform, established Yonghe Medical R&D Department and released
the Program of Yonghe for Medical R&D Work and the Work of R&D
Department and Regulations on the Use of Medical R&D Expenditure,
to standardize the management of R&D projects and promote
continuous innovative development. Meanwhile, the Group is devoted
to market-oriented R&D, carries out multiple R&D projects and
continuously seeks breakthroughs in hair transplant technique through
technical cooperation with universities and medical institutions, hence
boosting technical progress of the industry. In the process, the Group
diversifies and innovates the R&D achievements under the premise of
protecting intellectual property rights and business information.

e Strengthening cooperation and communication: The
Group has carried out research on novel targets of androgenic
alopecia treatment, application of hair donation at sitting
position, long hair donation, long hair transplant, and clinical
application of comfortable hair transplant in cooperation with
West China Hospital of Sichuan University, and disseminated
such research achievements to several clinics in order to meet
the diversified needs of customers. The Group has reached
a strategic cooperation with Sun Yat-sen University to make
breakthrough in human hair follicle regeneration technology on
the research platform of hair follicle regeneration, and carried
out a number of R&D activities (e.g. anti-anxiety alopecia drugs)
through establishment of the “industry-university cooperation”
mechanism, so as to develop the latest technology in treatment
of alopecia. The Group has attended the National Hair Health
Seminar — Wuhan Station, and delivered a speech entitled
Development of Hair Transplant in Recent Years, through which
a good brand image of the Group is set up.

e Intellectual property protection: The Group strictly abides by
the Copyright Law of the People’ s Republic of China, the Patent
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Trademark Law of the
People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations related
to intellectual property. The Group publicizes and popularizes
knowledge and relevant laws on intellectual property, strictly
reviews the Group's intellectual property contracts, and provides
employees with advice on laws and patent affairs of intellectual
property. In order to protect the intellectual property rights of
the Company and other third parties, the Group standardizes
the fonts and pictures on publicity materials in various marketing
channels, and timely applies for the copyrights of related
trademarks, patents and software. By the end of 2021, the
Group had obtained more than 200 certificates for intellectual
property, and applied for 3 new patents in the reporting period.
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e  Commercial information protection: The Group formulates a
series of information management systems, including Information
Security Management System, Employee Online Behavior
Management System, Computer Room Management System
and Regulations for Management of Classified Document.
The Employee Handbook requires employees to strictly keep
confidential all sensitive information, including documents,
materials and photos, sign the Confidentiality Agreement for
Enterprise Employees at the time of entry, encrypt key data
information and electronic documents for management and
check identity of users in key systems regularly, and requests
information system administrators to conduct audits for business
cross logs regularly.

2.2 Focus on employees

The Group has been committed to creating a happy working
environment that is characterized by caring for physical and mental
health of employees, opposing workplace discrimination and
prohibiting forced labor and child labor employment; strictly abides
by relevant national laws and regulations, effectively protects the
legitimate interests of employees, and explores and helps employees
realize their personal values and grow together with the Group
by establishing a scientific and perfect development and training
mechanism of employees.

2.2.1Employment compliance

The Group strictly abides by the Labor Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China and other relevant laws and regulations, establishes a fair
and standardized recruitment and dismissal system, and formulates
scientific and reasonable working hours, attendance, vacation system
and salary management system, thus providing competitive salary for
employees and enabling the Group to maintain a long-term stable
development. In the process of recruitment, we strictly control the
age of candidates to exclude child labor, select talents according to
unified and transparent criteria and procedures, treat employees of
ethnic minority, female employees and disabled employees equally,
and support equal pay for equal work, thus striving to create an
equal, happy and non-discriminatory working environment.

No accident of child labor and forced labor occur for the Group in the
reporting period.
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2021FEIER Z2HREREN Employment, safety and health performance of employee in
2021

20214
B Indicators B Unit 2021
ETERE Employment of employees
BT HEH Total number of employees A Person 4,264
BHETAH Number of male employees A Person 1,106
ZMHE T A Number of female employees A Person 3,158
PHET A Number of full-time employees A Person 4,222
FEBE T AR Number of part-time employees A Person 42
30mEATEIAR Number of employees aged 30 and below A Person 2,851
315% —40m B LA Number of employees aged 31-40 A Person 1,190
415% —50pR B TAH Number of employees aged 41-50 A Person 180
51 A EE T A Number of employees aged 51 and above A Person 43
ZIEE T AH Number of employees in North China A Person 1,010
EEET A Number of employees in South China A Person 603
EHE T AH Number of employees in East China A Person 1,458
ERBTAH Number of employees in Central China A Person 486
FAlEE T A Number of employees in Northwest China A Person 304
FEETIAH Number of employees in Southwest China A Person 279
RILET AZK Number of employees in Northeast China A Person 124
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20214
BE Indicators By Unit 2021
BIRK Employee turnover
BT kX Employee turnover rate % % 23.00
HHEB T mAR Turnover rate of male employees % % 22.39
ZM B TRAE Turnover rate of female employees % % 23.20
30 RIA T B Tk E Turnover rate of employees aged 30 and below % % 24.91
315% — 40K B LIRAE Turnover rate of employees aged 31-40 % % 19.86
4158 —50pR A EE TAE Turnover rate of employees aged 41-50 % % 13.37
515 M A B TRAR Turnover rate of employees aged 51 and above % % 25.85
#EALB TRKAR Turnover rate of employees in North China % % 14.77
EEBLRAE Turnover rate of employees in South China % % 24.23
EFETRAE Turnover rate of employees in East China % % 29.71
b 5 TiRkR Turnover rate of employees in Central China % % 20.42
FadE B Tk = Turnover rate of employees in Northwest China % % 20.97
FEETRAE Turnover rate of employees in Southwest China % % 25.41
1= B e Turnover rate of employees in Northeast China % % 15.79
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20215 20205 20195
42 Indicators E{¥ Unit 2021 2020 2019
TEEE
Data of work-related injury
EI BT AR A
Number of deaths of work-related injury Person 0 0 0
EIETHE %
Death rate due to work-related injury % 0 0 0
EIISERIERH x
Lost days due to work injury Day 48 \ \

2.2.2 Z5| %

SERINEEEELAMS  RERBEN
ERNXTBESNERRFRERBIE - &
EHIECERETEEHE) (EREREZ
ERFEI(REASTEENEVEREAE
B BREZNESEXM - KRERFER

FoAL - ARMBEFRA FEREMT
BEATREEAKS  BYSRNANER

ERENIBANSEHERRAE - REBE
THESZE UREARERBEPHET
REMZRENZ R KEHETRBELNE
THREEL  STHESNTAEET X
FIRHNES  BREZ2BETHN LEAE
Fl - REISIEI - BEREER - SRE8EN
Al I ap A=A T e N VA E 5 Sl
—BE2EI - HEeRBEBEFI - AR
HHEEERENEIE - RAIREE - B
RIAEEEIHREMES -

2.2.2Training development

The Group has been committed to building a learning organization,
and accumulates reserve forces to implement the overall strategy
and realize a good mission. The Group formulates a series of guiding
documents for promotion management and performance appraisal
of employees, including Yonghe Promotion Management System,
Yonghe Performance Appraisal Management System and Senior
Management Personnel Management System. The Group adheres
to the fair, just and open competition principle, continuously
standardizes and improves the talent growth and promotion
mechanism, and establishes an efficient human resource management
system and a smooth promotion management channel. In order to
encourage employees to continue learning and meet the requirements
of employees skills and quality necessary for the development of the
Company, the Group organizes a series of online and offline training
activities for employees in all posts, including pre-job training, anti-
corruption training, vocational skills training and comprehensive
ability improvement training for all employees, and a series of courses
for clinical posts, including teaching training, integrated reception
training, special service project training and leadership training for
management, so as to improve the overall quality and competence of
employees.
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2021 FEE THEIIEN

Employee training performance in 2021

202145
Eiog: Indicators By Unit 2021
B TIEFIE Employee training rate % % 100
SMEIZIESL Percentage of trained male employees % % 100
ZUHEIXIAESL Percentage of trained female employees % % 100
BREREXIASL Percentage of trained senior management % % 100
PREREEXIBESL Percentage of trained middle management % % 100
—MEIXIEDL Percentage of trained ordinary employees % % 100
SMEIFEEIRE Average training hours of male employees NS Hour 26.53
M B T FEEIIRE Average training hours of female employees NS Hour 25.63
SREEEFHFIREK  Average training hours of executive management /N Hour 53.47
FREEETFIENIRRK  Average training hours of middle management /N Hour 33.14
—mE T FEEIIRE Average training hours of ordinary employees N Hour 26.25
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2.2.3Employee care

The Group attaches great importance to the physical and mental
health of employees, and has been committed to providing a happy
and belonging working environment for employees. The Group
strictly abides by the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China and
other laws and regulations, and provides reasonable annual leave,
marriage leave and funeral leave for employees, and entitle female
employees to maternity leave, antenatal care leave and breastfeeding
leave according to law, while entitles male employees to paternity
leave. The Group’s Employee Handbook stipulates welfare policy
provided for employees, including the free pre-employment physical
examination provided for employee, five social insurances and one
housing fund provided according to law, the nurses’ day benefits,
women's day benefits, birthday benefits and other holiday benefits.
The Group provided medical examination services for 4,469 employees
in the reporting period.
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Photo: Celebrating Nurses' Day

The Group attaches great importance to the health and safety of
employees, strictly abides by the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Infectious Diseases and other
laws and regulations, and formulates a series of emergency plans
for fire, fire prevention, anti-terrorism and counterterrorist, so as to
control the health and safety risks that may be brought to employees
in the operation process. The Group actively responds to the call
of epidemic prevention and control of the state, cooperates with
the requirements of epidemic prevention policy, tracks and collects
employees’ health trips, urges them to get vaccinated, and reminds
them to do self-health monitoring, so as to ensure health and safety
of employees.

Case: Share This Joy with My Colleagues — Happy Birthday Party

In order to enhance employees’ sense of belonging to the enterprise
and enrich their cultural and sports life, the Group holds birthday
parties for employees on a regular basis. At the birthday party, cakes
and snacks are provided and a variety of fun games are organized,
and birthday wishes and gifts are prepared for relevant employees, so
as to help employees adjust their physical and mental state after busy
work, promote mutual communication and sharing among employees,
and enhance enterprise cohesion.
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Photo: Team Construction Activity in Jinsha Lake
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2.3. Supplier management

The Group strictly abides by the open, fair and transparent
procurement principles, and formulates the Specification for
Management of Procurement Method and Procurement Process in
order to standardize the whole process management of procurement
business. The Group formulates the Supplier Management
Specification, standardizes the management mechanisms such as
supplier access standards, performance supervision and performance
evaluation, and conducts supplier inspection, audit and cooperation
exchanges on a regular basis, in order to build a common
development and cooperative relationship of equality and friendship
with suppliers while respecting their business rules and cooperation
willingness.

In the reporting period, the Group established a cooperation relation
with 46 suppliers, mainly including those from medical drugs, medical
devices, medical consumables and hair care formula fields. In the
process of supply chain management, the Group conducted classified
review by supplier’s transaction frequency and importance. The Group
conducted 34 times of supplier review in total in the reporting period.

HER IR EIE & 5 5

Proportion of Suppliers by Region

24%

FREIZEIL North China
9% FRE]ZE Central China
HEIEER East China
FRE]ZER South China

FIEE 3R 4L Northeast China

FEI7A R Southwest China

37% $ZHMEEI United Kingdom

e Supplier evaluation management: The Group formulates
systems such as Procurement Supplier Assessment and Supplier
Performance Evaluation and Graded Management Procedure,
carries out supplier evaluation in a comprehensive, concrete and
objective manner by QCDSTAP (Quality, Cost, Delivery, Service,
Technology, Assets, People and Process) performance evaluation
method, and conducts irregular field visits to suppliers in order to
continuously standardize management of them.
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e  Cooperation and communication with suppliers: The Group
communicates with suppliers on innovation requirements,
quality requirements, social environment and legal risks and
others, improves the quality control and social risk management
of suppliers, and encourages suppliers to prevent and reduce
negative impacts and expand positive impacts of environment and
society, includes the sunshine clauses and the reporting mailbox
in the cooperation contract with suppliers, and encourages
suppliers to timely report any fraud behavior encountered in the
cooperation process.

e Environmental and social risk management of suppliers:
The Group attaches great importance to the environmental
and social risks of suppliers. In the admission stage, besides
checking the qualification documents of suppliers according to
the relevant documents, the Group also conducts background
investigations on suppliers in respect of labor litigation,
environmental punishment and other aspects, takes into account
of the suppliers’ performance in fulfilling social responsibility,
and identifies the potential risks of suppliers by investigation.

e Preferred environmental protection and green products:
The Group advocates green procurement, and gives priority to
products or suppliers that are more in line with the concept
of green and low carbon during purchase of products and
decoration raw materials.

Case: Paying Field Visit to Supplier

On July 20, 2021, the Group’s supplier review team paid a field visit
to suppliers and organized inspects for production environment,
operation process, equipment assets, quality management and others
of suppliers. During this inspection, the two sides communicated the
technical requirements and quality standards of the target products,
unified their understanding of the cooperation process and direction,
and recorded the daily management status of suppliers in an objective
manner, thus providing the basis for qualification review, evaluation
and grading of suppliers.
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2.4 Public service and charity

The Group regards corporate social responsibility as a part of its core
growth concept, actively undertakes corporate social responsibility,
and donates money to Daliang Education Fund to support the
development of education in remote areas. The Group actively holds
popular science lectures, and educates the public about alopecia and
its treatment. There is a saying that “Epidemics have no mercy, but
humans do”. As a practitioner in the medical industry, the Group
is well aware of its responsibility and mission of fighting against
COVID-19. While ensuring the deployment of epidemic prevention
in all divisions and departments, the Group actively responds to the
call of the community of assigning personnel to the local epidemic
frontline. In Xi‘an, Xiamen, Shenzhen, Urumgi, Yangzhou, Foshan
Tianjin and other regions, employees were organized to render
volunteer service of nucleic acid sampling, thus to safeguard the
health and safety of the general public.

INEE AN
600 hou_is 360 houj;s
=L
Foshan

EHM

Yangzhou

N
hours 504 hours

70 b [ A BR BR A SRR AR T B

Figure: Length of Nucleic Acid Sampling Volunteer Service Rendered by Our Employees in Some Regions
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3. EEBTRRER

3.1 BEIRMEE
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aE)(BREMEEGD ) CEBEEY D E
B8 (2021 5 R) ) SERER - BIEAL B
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P - REHIE - REE @i AB - EER
- BSRRFEITEAT  BRRAGBERE-
o - EEBER S REREYREFHER
BRI - PR BETERFREBZM
EERERS - KK SEBESENRE)S
K- BEEVOBINER - BR100% A K
BRE °

Case: Volunteer Service of Nucleic Acid Sampling

Yonghe employees bravely assumed the responsibilities of medical
workers and actively participated in volunteer service of nucleic acid
sampling during small-scale clustered epidemics suddenly occurred in
many regions in China. In 2021, Yonghe employees provided 17,556
hours of volunteer service at nucleic acid sampling sites across the
country.

:
.

3. BOLD PLAY ¢ PRACTICE THE CONCEPT OF
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

3.1 Emission management

The Group attaches great importance to the management of emissions
and wastes, strictly abides by the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Wastes, the Regulations on the Management of Medical Waste,
the Classified Catalogue of Medical Wastes (2021 Edition) and other
laws and regulations, formulates and implements the Medical Waste
Management System and Norms, the Management System for Medical
Sewage Treatment and other policies and systems, and actively carries
out the daily investigation of potential hazards in medical sewage
and waste treatment, thus strictly standardizing the management of
medical wastes from system, process, post, personnel, instrument
and equipment, contingency plan and other aspects. In addition, the
Group organized several trainings on emergency plans for medical
waste in order to further strengthen self-protection awareness and
emergency response ability of employees. In the future, the Group
will continue to strengthen the management of sewage and medical
wastes discharge to ensure 100% compliant disposal.
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Sewage management: The Group standardizes the treatment,
operation and management of medical sewage. All sewage can
be discharged into the municipal sewage treatment system only
after it reaches the discharge standard after treatment by internal
treatment facilities and special personnel. The Group conducts
regular inspection for the sewage discharge system to ensure
it operates normally, and maintains continuous monitoring of
indicators of sewage such as total residual chlorine and PH, so
as to ensure that the discharge of CODcr, BOD5, SS, ammonia
nitrogen and other pollutants in the discharged sewage meets
the local discharge standards. In addition, the Group also
provides training on sewage treatment knowledge, detection
methods, equipment maintenance, health and safety for sewage
management posts every year to ensure the normal execution of
sewage treatment processes.

Medical waste management: The Group establishes sound
medical waste management standards, uniformly purchases
special medical waste containers, assigns special personnel
for classified management, and conducts regular cleaning and
disinfection of storage points; all medical wastes are collected
and transferred by qualified third-party organizations. The
Group also provides training in relevant laws and regulations,
professional technology, safety protection and emergency
treatment for medical waste management personnel.

Office waste management: Hazardous wastes generated during
daily office work, such as toner cartridges, ink cartridges and
lamps of printers, are sent to special garbage bins for separate
disposal, while other non-hazardous wastes are also classified
and recycled for proper disposal; conservative use of paper,
double-sided printing and use of recycled paper are advocated in
the process of office work.
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2021 FHBRWERK Emission performance in 2021
20214
HMEE Type of emissions B Unit 2021
VaKBERE Sewage discharge i t 3,571.02
SACTRYIBEMMEE  Total discharge of pollutants in sewage [ t 0.14
EEEEYELSMLE  Output of hazardous wastes i t 168.51
BEEEEYEE Density of hazardous wastes WA, Ton/RMB 0.0008
BT A 10,000 income
BEREEYELMLE  Output of non-hazardous wastes i t 815.44
EEREEYHIREE Output density of non-hazardous wastes 1§ Ton/RMB 10,000 0.0038
= N income
#HE1REREEBEME  Range 1: emissions of greenhouse gas  tCO2e tCO2e 15.25
WE2REREEHEME  Range 2: emissions of greenhouse gas  tCO2e tCO2e 8,649.08
RERBHRES Total emissions of greenhouse gas tCO2e tCO2e 8,664.33
(BIE1+50E2) (range 1+ range 2)
BERBHNEE Emission density of greenhouse gas tCO2e,/” tCO2e/RMB 0.04
STl A 10,000 income

R

Note:

BERBHEREREYE RAERF RN
(WRNMME AR HEXRIHEESS
(WBCSD)EMMCREREBZEBRED
ERZEEBEIZAE2012 (BRTHR) ) ~ B
HEREZEEHEMZEG(PCCKERIX
SR E2013) BRI - HREHE
PHBAERBHENET2RELREDS
(RERERBEHZE FERRE R
FIEE R (2021 FEETHR) )3 AL

RPZERBERZERERAZERER
AZEE

The greenhouse gas emissions are calculated according to
the Accounting and Reporting Standard of Greenhouse Gas
Accounting System for Enterprises 2012 (Revised Edition) issued
by World Resources Institute (WRI) and World Business Council
for Sustainable Development (WBCSD) and the Fifth Assessment
Report 2013 of Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
(IPCC), and the greenhouse gas emission factors of power sector
are taken from the Guidelines for Accounting Methods and
Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Enterprises issued by
the Ministry of Ecology and Environment (Revised in 2021).

The density data in the table is obtained by dividing consumption
by operating income.
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EEEME - HRBMABSH  ETR
RSB ZRBHE T EEEBRE(CMA)
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3.2 Green operation

The Group is aware of the importance of environmental protection to
the sustainable development of the Group and society. Therefore, we
have spared no effort in environmental protection, and are committed
to bringing environmental protection elements into the process of
business management and decision-making. The Group strictly abides
by the Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Technical Standards for Pollution Control in Interior Decoration
of Residential Buildings, the Code for Indoor Environmental Pollution
Control of Civil Building Engineering and other laws and regulations,
adheres to the bottom line of ecological and environmental
protection, consciously fulfills the main responsibility of health and
environmental protection, and strives to build an environment-friendly
and resource-saving enterprise. In the future, the Group will continue
to carry out energy conservation and emission reduction activities, so
as to reduce the consumption of energy and water resources in the
operation process in a continuous manner.

e Green building: In order to implement the concept of energy
conservation and environmental protection, the Group explicitly
requires construction contractors to purchase environmentally-
friendly decoration materials to prevent pollution from the
source; requires an environmental monitoring report issued by
an organization with CMA qualification at the time of project
delivery.!

e Green office: Save resources wherever possible when engaging
in diagnosis and treatment activities and daily office work, for
example, using LED energy-saving lamps, purchasing and renting
printers, advocating double-sided printing to save papers, and
encouraging employees to travel by environmental-friendly
means; ensure that worker turns off the lights before leaving the
office, actively carry out training on energy and water saving, and
promote all employees’ awareness of saving and the reduction
of greenhouse gas emissions. Use natural resources wherever
possible, compensate environmental and ecological benefits
through natural lighting and ventilation, and reduce the damage
to the environment and site.

! The Company was subjected to administrative punishment once due to
poor indoor air quality monitoring in the reporting period.
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2021 FEREAER Performance of resource utilization in 2021
20214
EREE Resource type By Unit 2021
b Gasoline 7t L 6,974
FIMEE ) Net outsourced electricity T EB Kilowatt-hour 12,895,423.08
FEINB RS Net outsourced heat a5 (G)) 10,176.79
el EREER Total consumption of comprehensive energy MAIZ(E Ton standard coal 1,592.69
FERREERE Density of comprehensive energy MEIZEE Ton of standard 0.0073
consumption BIrhlA coal/RMB 10,000
income
B KFEKE Municipal water consumption i t 118,531.38
EAFKESE Density of comprehensive water WE, &L A  Ton/RMB 10,000 0.55
consumption income
BERYVEEMEE  Total consumption of packaging materials 1 t 40.37
Y EMERZE  Density of packaging material use WE &It A Ton/RMB 10,000 0.0002
income
5 Note:

1. RPGAEEHERZRB(RA
BI(GB/T 2589-2020)) 1% & 15

BRI
2. %¢ BB E R BRI
3.3 RIRE{LEYH

FEESREEHRIKREL  FERCE
PRASBRFIMEER - — 0 E - REELE

BRET  BREBSERREDS Fﬁ?’&iﬁ
EIREREE - ERLD  REREFHE -
—FE RRELERALEEE JZ;T

BmRRHREEN  SEVELEECE
BERrERESEAR) CEhESRBESR)
(KK E2RERR) (RERNBESTEAR) -
PPN 2K ERFERmRRIENR - R
HESEBIERE  HBDRAHREEHOE
SRS AW RESEERBREERCH
R FEHITERE  HERERERY
RPGEETRHPMEZERNE -

1. The comprehensive energy consumption data in the table is calculated
according to the General Rules for Calculation of Comprehensive Energy
Consumption (GB/T 2589-2020);

2. The density data in the table is calculated by dividing consumption by
operating income.

3.3 Adaptation to climate change

The Group attaches great importance to addressing climate
change, and strives to make the greatest contribution to reducing
carbon emissions. On the one hand, the Group will always adhere
to the concept of green development and implement measures
such as energy conservation and emission reduction, green
office and green building in the operation process. On the other
hand, in order to ensure normal business operation and respond
to emergencies in extreme weather, the Group formulates and
implements the Emergency Plan for Medical Safety Management,
the Emergency Evacuation Plan for Fire, the Emergency Plan for Fire,
and the Emergency Plan for Counter-terrorism and Terrorism, thus
standardizing emergency procedures and promoting the handling
capability for emergencies under extreme weather conditions such as
fire, flooding and earthquake. In the future, the Group will continue
to facilitate reduction of greenhouse gas emission by promoting green
office and travel by environmental-friendly means, thus contributing
to the achievement of the goal of carbon neutrality and carbon peak.
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ERE# REEH

Index description Disclosure chapters

A1EERD

Aspect A1: Emissions

A1

Aspect A1: Emissions

—REE 3.1 HERmER
BEERIEERERNR - KR HHEES BEREEEEDN
ELXEH

(a

(b)

it

BR &
BTHETABEAZENARZERROINER -

BERFHBRASLY  RADREMTEZER RADIR

ﬁéﬂaa’@% Sfbhx - Bk - SRR - SEREaY - 2ELR
15

BEBREMEEAZROIMATES -

General Disclosure 3.1 Emission management

Relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste:

(a

(b)

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws and regulation that have a
significant impact on the issuer

Note: Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other pollutants
regulated under national laws and regulations.

Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide,
hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulphur hexafluoride.

Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations.

AT,

Al

THEBR R R AR R B - 3.1 HRER
2021 FHRB R
.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 3.1 Emission management

Emission performance
table in 2021
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ESGIEE BRI BEEH
ESG Indicators Index description Disclosure chapters
ATEERY A2 B (8EN) MEEER (BE2) Aa=RBASME (VABRET 3.1 HFRWER
)R (ER) BE (NASEEEN - BEREAE) 2021 FHEM A R R
Aspect A1: Emissions  A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas 3.1  Emission management
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. Emission performance
per unit of production volume, per facility). table in 2021
ATEERY MIFELEEEEYDEE CANGE) L (ER) BE (MAFE 3.1 HHRMER
28 - BERBITE) ° 2021 FHE D EBR
Aspect A1: Emissions A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where 3.1 Emission management
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per Emission performance
facility). table in 2021
ATEERY) A4 ﬁﬁ?‘iﬂiﬁﬁfm@%(u WERTE) K (@A) BmE (WAEE 3.1 HRhER
B BERMAE) - 2021 FEERUE MR
Aspect A1: Emissions Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where 3.1  Emission management
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per Emission performance
facility). table in 2021
ATBERYD A5 HIUPRRT L BERLE B 1R R RERE L B IR ERIR A 28R - 3.1 HEHMER
Aspect A1: Emissions  A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to 3.1 Emission management
achieve them.
ATBERRY A6 HIMEIBREMEEEREYNGE MBI IWREER 3.1 HRMER

N RE R E L B R PR 2 5% o

Aspect A1: Emissions  A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are 3.1 Emission management
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

A2EREH —HE 3.2 e

i<
i

BRERER (BERIR - KEEARTE) BEK

i BRFAREE 7 B BF BEFRES-
Aspect A2: General Disclosure 3.2 Green operation
Use of Resources

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water

and other raw materials.

Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage,
transportation, in buildings, electronic equipment, etc.

A2ERER A2V IRERIEI D ERE R SRR (E - feoh) BFEE (WL 32 HedE
BTETRNFHE) RBE (NAGESEEM - GERMTH) 2021 FEIREAERE

Aspect A2: A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. 3.2 Green operation

Use of Resources electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. Performance table of
per unit of production volume, per facility). resource utilization in

2021
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ESGIERE BRI BEEH
ESG Indicators Index description Disclosure chapters
A2ERER A2.2 BFOKEREE (NMAGES BN - BHERMAE) 32 #HBeE

2021 FEREAERE
Aspect A2: A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of 3.2 Green operation

Use of Resources

A2ERE A

Aspect A2:
Use of Resources

A2ERE A

Aspect A2:
Use of Resources

A2ERE A

Aspect A2:
Use of Resources

ABBRERARER

Aspect A3: The
Environment and
Natural Resources

ASRERRAER
Aspect A3: The

Environment and
Natural Resources

ALRIRE L

Aspect A4:
Climate Change

production volume, per facility).

A2.3 $EA PRI SZMBEIRIE At B AR A R A B 5 L B 1RPTERERK) 3.2

B o

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps 3.2

taken to achieve them.

A2.4 3Rl SREGE KR _E R A T EE
BERAERELR MR TR -

LARFTRI LMK mE 3.2

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water 3.2
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps

taken to achieve them.

A2.5 B RATABENAIMEE (UIETE) & (ER) B£EEMN 3.2

e -

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) 3.2
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

—ARINEE 3.1
IR BT ARG RAABREKERT 32
General Disclosure 3.1
Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the 3.2

environment and natural resources

A3 AR EHERERRABRNEX

MEERMEEAR 3.1

TENTTY © 3.2
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the 3.1

environment and natural resources and the actions takento 3.2

manage them.

— R

3.3

BRI EHEE AR EHETAEEY ENEARKBHEENK

% o
General Disclosure

3.3

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-
related issues which have impacted, and those which may impact,

the issuer.

Performance table of
resource utilization in
2021

i

RRE R

i

Green operation

Green operation

1

RREE

i

Green operation

HEmmE R
HELE

Emission management
Green operation

HEm e R

HEEE

Emission management
Green operation

RIRE RS

Adaptation to climate
change
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ESGIERE BRI REEEH

ESG Indicators Index description Disclosure chapters

AARIREL M RBRRAIGEEHETAEEVENEARBEEBEE - & 33 REZEY
FELTTED -

Aspect A4: Climate A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which 3.3 Adaptation to climate

Change have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and change

the actions taken to manage them.

B1{E(E — M= 221 &HER
2.2.2 HBilEE
ERTM R BERSA  LENE - BE - FE#He - % 223 BIEE

1t~ REBRAREAMFSREF -

(@) BE: &
(b) EFHETABEAZENHBERZLRONER -
Aspect B1: General Disclosure 2.2.1 Employment compliance
Employment 2.2.2 Training development
Relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and 2.2.3 Employee care

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

B1{E (& B1.1 MR - BIREE (MERERE)  FRAENMRENNE 221 6HER
B - 202V FETRR w28
AR R
Aspect B1: B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, 2.2.1 Employment compliance
Employment full-or parttime), age group and geographical region. Employment, safety and
health performance table
of employee in 2021
B1{ER B1.2 M5 - FikAR MtREIDMERRKLE - 221 ARIER
20V FETRR  22H
Aspect B1: B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 2.2.1 Employment compliance
Employment geographical region. Employment, safety and

health performance table
of employee in 2021
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ESG Indicators Index description Disclosure chapters
B2EREZ 2 —RIE 223 BEIEE
FARELZ2TERELREREHEBELREEN -
(@) BEE - K
(b) BFHETABEAZENHEMEZLRIINER -
Aspect B2: General Disclosure 2.2.3 Employee care

Health and Safety

B2ERHEZ 2

Aspect B2:
Health and Safety

B2f2RER %

Aspect B2:
Health and Safety

B2 EHZ %

Aspect B2:
Health and Safety

Relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer

B2.1 BEA=F (BREERTE) BFRITTHMHAS LI E - 2.2.1

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of 2.2.1

the past three years including the reporting year.

B2.2 AT{ZIBKTEAE -

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.

2.2.1

2.2.1

B2.3 AT IR IR R R 2 206 - UIBITRER L 2.2.1
2.2.3
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures 2.2.1

adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored. 2.2.3

SHER

2021 ETER 228
Employment compliance
Employment, safety and
health performance table
of employee in 2021

BRER

2021 FETRRE L2l
REM R

Employment compliance
Employment, safety and
health performance table
of employee in 2021

BRER

ETHE

Employment compliance
Employee care
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ESG Indicators Index description Disclosure chapters

B3 & /& K& —RE R 222 HBlERE
BERERARERITIEME RN AH R EEREUR - HlEED -
i BRI  UREREENEOAIIEIRE o

Aspect B3: General Disclosure 2.2.2 Training development

Development
and Training

B3 # R R &I
Aspect B3:
Development and
Training

B3 %R R
Aspect B3:

Development and
Training

B4% T X8|

Aspect B4:
Labour Standards

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal

and external courses paid by the employer.

B3.1 RMRIRESHER (NMESRERE  PRERES) AN

REBAH -

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee

category (e.g. senior management, middle management).

B3.2 WM HIREEERNE D - BREETKZ N FHEE -

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.

—RIEE
BEABLEETEHTH
(@ % &k

(b) FETHBITABBERFENHBMEIEZRROINER -

General Disclosure
Relating to preventing child and forced labour:
(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

2.2.2 FlER
2021 F B TIAIER
2.2.2 Training development
Employee training
performance table in
2021

222 HFilER
20214 B LB

2.2.2 Training development
Employee training
performance table in
2021

221 ARER

2.2.1 Employment compliance
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ESG Indicators Index description Disclosure chapters

B4% T4 B4.1 fsit st HEESAE DIRO e AR R B T o8 IS5 T - 221 &HERE

Aspect B4: B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to 2.2.1 Employment compliance

Labour Standards

B4% T XA
Aspect B4:
Labour Standards

B5{ftESEE IR

Aspect B5: Supply
Chain Management

B5 it FESE E T
Aspect B5: Supply
Chain Management
B5 it FESE E T
Aspect B5: Supply
Chain Management
B5 it FESE E T
Aspect B5: Supply
Chain Management

B5{ftEEE IR

Aspect B5: Supply
Chain Management

avoid child and forced labour.

B4.2 fi AR IRB R IBE N ER BRSSPI 25K -
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered.

—RIKE

EEMEENRE R ERBEER -
General Disclosure

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply
chain.

B5.1 iR EI DM HERFHE -
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

B5.2 it B BEEEMIED - EMITEBENIR MRS
B URBREGNMITRERAE

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B5.3 fit B MBI EE B ERENRE Rt g RBREIED - UK
BT RERAE -

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B S.4RM A BRE G BRI (E % RIRIRE m M RISEVE I - PAKAE
BT RERAE -

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

221 ARER

2.2.1 Employment compliance

2.3

2.3

2.3

2.3

2.3

2.3

2.3

2.3

2.3

2.3

e R

Supplier management

HEDER
Supplier management

HrEmE R

Supplier management

HrEmE R

Supplier management

HrEmE R

Supplier management
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ESG Indicators Index description Disclosure chapters
B6EmEL — MR 1.1 ZLER
12 BERH
BRFREERNBRENRERRZS  Bd  SEEKLBEEURE 1.3 BILRKRE
B ER 14 BEFLH
(@ BE: &k

(o) BTHBRITABEAZENHEBERIRIINER -

Aspect B6: General Disclosure 1.1 Reassuring Yonghe
Product Responsibility 1.2 High-quality service

Relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy 1.3 Privacy protection

matters relating to products and services provided and methods of 1.4  Responsible marketing

redress:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer
B6EmEE B6.1 EERRBEXERLHTRARBEREAMARNKNAEDL - 1.1 ZOEKR
1.2 BERS
Aspect B6: B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls 1.1 Reassuring Yonghe
Product Responsibility for safety and health reasons. 1.2 High-quality service
B6EmEE B6.2 MR E m MR IR FE B AR ER 0% - 1.2 BER®%
Aspect B6: B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received 1.2 High-quality service
Product Responsibility and how they are dealt with
B6EmEE B6.3 il Ba M E R ARIE B E A BRER - 1.4 BEMIZHE
2.1 A
Aspect B6: B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting 1.4  Responsible marketing
Product Responsibility intellectual property rights. 2.1 Innovation and joint
development

B6EMEE B6.4 il E B E AIE REmBIIET ° 1.1 ZLER
Aspect B6: B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 1.1  Reassuring Yonghe
Product Responsibility
B6EmEE B6.5 MUK B ERMRIE RIBALBK - N RABBIITRERFE 1.3 BiLirE
Aspect B6: Product B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, 1.3 Privacy protection

Responsibility and how they are implemented and monitored.



ANNUAL REPORT 2021

S

RE - #HEBRERRBE
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ESGIERE BRI REEEH
ESG Indicators Index description Disclosure chapters
BIRESS —RIKE RESEE
BRAGT B - 1% - MEFROL B
(@ BE: Rk
(b) BFHETABEAZENHEMEZLRIINER -
Aspect B7: General Disclosure Anti-corruption management

Anti-corruption

B7IRES

Aspect B7:
Anti-corruption

B7IRE’F
Aspect B7:
Anti-corruption

B7IRE’F
Aspect B7:
Anti-corruption

B8 ERE

Aspect BS:
Community Investment

B8 ERE

Aspect BS:
Community Investment

B8 ERE
Aspect BS:
Community Investment

Relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering:
(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

B7.1 RERMAKEITAXERERE U B BENE SHFARMH
2B MEFAER -

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.

B7.2 HHPy & R BRI T - A RABRNI T RER A -
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B7.3 fiimMZEE R E TRENRESHFI -
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors
and staff.

—RIKE

BN EL2ER THRAEMEHESENEREEREHSE B
& F) 2= AIBUR ©
General Disclosure

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the communities’ interests.

B8.1 BT HMEE (KA  RREFH  BIFK F X &8
B

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).

B8.2 T EFHIEFENAE R (WL HEFFRH) -
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

REFER

Anti-corruption management

RESER
Anti-corruption management

RESER
Anti-corruption management

)

Df

2.4 DNIEE

2.4 Public service and charity
24 PmEE
2.4 Public service and charity
24 DHEE
2.4 Public service and charity
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o AMMBHRRME BREIEEHK
REEMBERES -

EMWER
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AHTBRIREHZZALFENE G
BrRERGHReRE  WEEBREB(A
UGG B BR 1R e 2 A i -

RRNER

HMCRETESHMAGEMN(EESR
R HEITRET - WAIERFTER TRIE
MEECEARS B R A M5
WRAENET | MoPEE—THBA -

HPIEGE - BRPIAESHNBRITBRERERTER
EEHRRAINEERRMER -

To the Shareholders of YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Yonghe Medical Group Co.,
Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
set out on pages 138 to 245, comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2021;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
December 31, 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.



Byt

REFEGAMAERMN(EXGENE
TR (ATEREITA)  HFBIRE
SH VYEBRTTATHEGMEXERE
£ -

FAREFTEE

MRBAZTEERERMNEXHE - B8
HABMAEHPBBRRNBIRAEENS
B BUEERAISERMEAREEHUBER
KREHABRBETREN - HMPTEHE
LRRRHEBNER

BMAER PRI NBRESZTRTEND
BRERY -

ERETEIE
Key Audit Matter

BEETER -—BHERENMG

Impairment assessment of goodwill

BRMA MU BRRMEIS -
Refer to note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

2021512 A31H - EEEHENHRRED
RARB2SBET  EEMN202165 485 H
WEEmF AR (TWHED) -

As at December 31, 2021, the Group had
goodwill of approximately RMB25 million,
arising from the acquisition of a subsidiary
in May 2021 (the “Acquisition”).

HEmERET G EERERAZTATR—E
BEEMNEEM  WHERESREZZEEMAF -
For the purposes of goodwill impairment
assessment, management considered the
subsidiary as a separate cash-generating-unit
("CGU") and goodwill has been allocated to
that CGU.
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Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment
assessment of goodwill.

BMWETT N EERRENEE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BT T AT B EF R ARERF1E -
We have performed the following procedures to address this key audit
matter:

1 BEMERTEEBHEHERENTGEARE  BRERMETEEIES
REMEMER R EZEKE - 5 R R EE KR E A @
T

(i)  We obtained an understanding of management’s assessment
process of goodwill impairment and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors;

2 EMFETEEBEHNEEMARTENEGREY  UARBEBE S
BEEARAHEESENSHBRURRMEESEMIRAR

(i)  We evaluated the appropriateness of management’s
identification of the CGU and the allocation of goodwill to that
CGU by reference to the Group’s accounting policy and our
understanding of the Group's business;

3 EMEEEEBEFZHOIMNTEEROFEEN BEREIARTEIEE
173

We evaluated the competence, capability and objectivity of the
external valuation expert engaged by the Group;

(iii)
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BRETEE

Key Audit Matter
BEEEEHBRENTERERNEEEED
W TEEEITIR &R 2 TERRIEE & EA R AT U
Bl& % - AT e EHEE S R ZEE®R - 1A
BEAAR A RE - HEIERE - BRI
RE  FLHRBRONE A e R ATEAIKE
7o

The Group assessed the impairment of
goodwill by determining the recoverable
amount of the CGU based on value-in-use
calculation using cash flow projections
based on the financial budget approved
by management. The determination of
recoverable amount involved a variety of
assumptions, such as growth rate of revenue
within forecast period, terminal growth
rate and pre-tax discount rate. Changes in
the conditions of these assumptions could
significantly affect the recoverable amounts.

ERECEBEIISTEER  RETEEENT
Wm & R EEEN ) -

The Group has engaged an external
valuation expert to provide technical
support and assistance in determining the
recoverable amount of the CGU.

BN ETOMEERRETSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

(vi)

BPMEABEEZROIFT - FTEEERHERENR T ENEE
o WERERMBLASHEMA L ARRANRPESBRERIR
KRB AR FET R EREEREIMBRATRENSIE
M

We involved our in-house valuation experts to assess the
appropriateness of the methodology adopted by management in
the goodwill impairment assessment and the reasonableness of
the terminal growth rate and pre-tax discount rate by comparing
them with the long-term expected inflation rate and the pre-tax
discount rate as adopted by other comparable companies based
on our independent research;

BAFETHEEREPEANERERRNEEE  BESFRALR
REPERERNHEBER ELMHBERMTEERS (WER) #1T
LERR

We assessed the reasonableness of the key assumptions used in
the value-in-use calculation, including comparing annual revenue
growth rate with the relevant data in the financial budgets,
historical financial data and industry data, where applicable;

BB ERERN KBS NBHE BN ETHRSRETRNE
RELMARETHEE - WHEEREBERABEN A SEHEMESL
BRI EREN

We performed a retrospective review by comparing the
estimated cash flow forecasts as prepared by management for
the purchase price allocation of the Acquisition with the current
year's results to assess the reliability and historical accuracy of
management'’s forecasting process;



BREETTER
Key Audit Matter

ST IR B R BB ERT R By E R R A
st B TREUERS - RMRAEERE
sHEERRERFE -

Given the goodwill impairment assessment
is subject to high degree of estimation
uncertainty as significant management’s
judgement and estimates are involved,
we considered impairment assessment of
goodwill as a key audit matter.
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BN ETOMEERRETSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

7 N
(vii)

(viii)

BfeE T HERE P HEREREM
We checked the mathematical accuracy of the value-in-use
calculations;

BMFEEEEETAMIERREEXENGRESN - NE—F
PR ) (AR EBR) S EHMBRENREE

We assessed the sensitivity analysis performed by management
with potential impacts on the above key assumptions to
further understand the extent to which adverse changes, either
individually or in aggregate, would result in impairment of
goodwill;

BRI BERABARERERENTDIE -

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to
impairment assessment of goodwill in the context of the
applicable financial reporting framework.

ERA LRt - BB AEREEERERENETAEANHEGMNRRTA
FrES R RERMTAITIRERF T AR o

Based on the above, we considered that management’s judgements
and assumptions applied in the impairment assessment of goodwill
were supportable by the evidence obtained and procedures
performed.
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Hz8

BERREFAHHEMESRE - RERE
RERANMBES  BETEREEHTER
REBMIOZEEN RS -

BRHAHMBREANBERAL NRERLMBE
B BT TEZEEMEREREMERA

BV EEE A o

‘BABMYEHBBRROES  RANE
TREEREMER - HIBIET  ZEHM
EERBHEAHMBRRARMERTBE
AT BEERFEEREESRE LT FE
BEAHERRAWIER -

ERBFAERTHITE  WREMARSEMD
EEFHEEREREL  BMFEREZE
B fEEhE BRIVRBEEARS -

EENMELZEEGHEH
MBHRREEAENEE

BERRESAAERBEEESITMAGEN
(BRI @S 2R RBFACARERDD
MRBERERBEEMTENAHUBER
= THERBREAHUBREOEET
T 7 i 70 R 388 AR T 8 By B KB AR RO
Fr@BmAEHEHIa S -

ERBEHIBHRERE EFEETHESE
BREGCENREN  YEERBA T RER
HEBECERENER URERFBELER
SRER  RIEFAEREREBRNEF
& KPIEEMERNERTR -

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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s HEFRAFKBLESTERNKRE
HEH & - RIBMEDRNETR
& HERAFEESHENKIENER
BMERTHEENE  RMARERHE
SENBBEERNELERRE
MRBMBRFEERTHEEN - Al
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EAMUBHRRTPOEBERE - RE
BEONBEETR  MHMEZEERE
BEREER - RANERITERZE
BhRE HIEFTERIGEEERE - A
- ARREBELBAAVEEREEE

TREFSBRE -

s HEAHMBERNEEI®RSA
RENMAT  BREEE URAGHY
BRREATERMZ HMEIR -

s NESERNERBAXBIDIOMBE
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BREMEESN  RMREZZBESBAT A
FMERE BHHELH  BXRFER
% - BRERAEES B ER H AR ES e E
Al ERERFA -

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee of the Company
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee of the Company with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee of
the Company, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is George Yuen.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, March 24, 2022
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BE12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,

20215 20204
2021 2020
B sE AR¥T T ARKEFTT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
KEEPE LKA Revenue from contracts with customers 6 2,168,580 1,638,297
$HE K ARG A A Cost of sales and services 9 (588,604) (416,667)
EX Gross profit 1,579,976 1,221,630
HEREHERAEZ Selling and marketing expenses 9 (1,072,647) (779,611)
—REITHBRAX General and administrative expenses 9 (247,542) (162,022)
e Research and development expenses 9 (14,163) (11,815)
CREERBS Net reversal gains/(impairment losses) on
CRiEEE) F5 financial assets 3.1(c) 153 (487)
H A A Other income 7 3,603 6,304
Hib e /(&EB) — F58 Other gains/(losses) — net 8 6,715 (7,738)
KERHE Operating profit 256,095 266,261
AR UA Finance income 11 6,130 941
BATERAR Finance costs 11 (51,949) (36,288)
BTSN — R Finance costs — net 11 (45,819) (35,347)
R Bt 18 B3 A R B Profit before income tax 210,276 230,914
FriSfif s Income tax expense 13 (90,088) (67,582)
FREE Profit for the year 120,188 163,332
Ht2ElA Other comprehensive income 1,306 -
Hig gt B D E BV H B Items that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss
BEHhEEE Currency translation differences 761 -
BT BB D EEEm Items that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss
BEHhEERE Currency translation differences 545 -
FREZEKEEEE Total comprehensive income for the
year 121,494 163,332
AATEFZEAEEERFER  Profit and total comprehensive income
ZHIREERE for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company 121,494 163,332
AAREBFEAEREESRER Earnings per share attributable to
equity holders of the Company
BRERAEF (ARKT) Basic earnings per share (RMB) 14 0.29 0.39
BR#ERT (AKKT) Diluted earnings per share (RMB) 14 0.28 0.39

PA £ 896 6F 2 T Ui 2 5K 8 28 ) B B ) I R

—GtBIE -

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The above consolidated statements of comprehensive income should be
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EHEEEEX
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

®12A31H
As at December 31,
20215 20204
2021 2020
ih=s ARBTT ARETTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
BE Assets
kREBEE Non-current assets
WE - WER&E Property, plant and equipment 16 450,213 309,437
FAEEE Right-of-use assets 17 925,142 810,653
EmEEE Intangible assets 18 41,257 3,547
IREFTISTI A E Deferred income tax assets 29 32,544 29,012
TE IR -« ke R E At FE Y RIE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 21 1,508 4,095
EREEEEE Total non-current assets 1,450,664 1,156,744
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 22 53,138 26,996
Z 5 W GRIE Trade receivables 20 13,351 10,330
TR FIE « =e R EAth FE Y RIE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 21 115,958 107,430
ReERBLFED Cash and cash equivalents 23 1,566,192 292,856
MEEERE Total current assets 1,748,639 437,612
EERE Total assets 3,199,303 1,594,356
R Equity
AAREBRFEABILER Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company
[N Share capital 24 8 -
J& A5 (B Share premium 24 1,240,408 -
H Other reserves 155,454 153,971
REBEAEF Retained earnings 302,475 252,087
RSB Total equity 1,698,345 406,058
a& Liabilities
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
HEAR Lease liabilities 17 762,303 682,879
BEEFTSHARE Deferred income tax liabilities 29 975 219
JEmB A EEEE Total non-current liabilities 763,278 683,098
FBEE Current liabilities
B Borrowings 26 74,173 25,870
B 5 NEMmENRIE Trade and other payables 27 225,708 138,232
ARAE Contract liabilities 28 189,524 120,423
EHERaE Current income tax liabilities 63,220 73,624
HeEaE Lease liabilities 17 185,055 147,051
BB EERE Total current liabilities 737,680 505,200
EERE Total liabilities 1,500,958 1,188,298
e Y SRtk Total equity and liabilities 3,199,303 1,594,356
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EHEERMER

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

DAL B2 B E 18 2% 0 D B S O i
— B3 -

FI138E 245 BT IEHMERE N 202243
A24HEARREFSH AETHINTES
REREE -

MITEE  REXE

Executive Director: Mr. Zhang Yu

The above consolidated balance sheets should be read in conjunction
with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 138 to 245 were approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company on March 24, 2022 and were
signed on its behalf.

MITES - RIELE

Executive Director: Mr. Zhang Hui
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B EZEEE KR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EAEL: 32PN
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

kx  ROEE HERE RERN  BEEER

Share Share Other  Retained Total

capital  premium reserves  earnings equity

Wi AR®TR AR¥Tn ARETR ARETR ARET:R
Note ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

R2020F1 A1 AW Balance at January 1, 2020 - - 150,365 88,755 239,120
FRF|E Profit for the year = - - 163,332 163,332
2ANRLE Total comprehensive income - - - 163,332 163,332
HERREANRS Transaction with equity holders
MR BETE B Share-based compensation 25 - - 3,606 - 3,606
2020512 A31 B4 Balance at December 31, 2020 - - 153971 252,087 406,058
R2021F1B1AMNER Balance at January 1, 2021 - - 153,971 252,087 406,058
ERFHE Profit for the year - - - 120,188 120,188
ERAEES Currency translation differences - - 1,306 - 1,306
2EWEAE Total comprehensive income - - 1,306 120,188 121,494
HERREANRS Transaction with equity holders
B Issue of shares 24(a) 7 - ) - -
REREEMETLRR Issuance of ordinary shares upon

global offering 24(d) 1 1,217,986 - - 1,217,987
BROHBITHA Share issuance costs 24(d) - (66,267) = = (66,267)
[[ZY Investment Capital Ltd. Issue of shares to ZY Investment Capital Ltd.

BRI 24(b) -* 88,689 - - 88,689

ERPREORIEELRLE Deemed capital contribution from shareholders

in Reorganization - - 74,052 - 74,052
ERRLREHRRHERR Deemed distribution to shareholders for

RIERRRD R shares transfer of Beijing Haiyouyou in

Reorganization - - (74,052) - (74,052)
iR REREZ] Share-based compensation 25 - - 184 - 184
RENK Dividend distribution 15(a) - = = (69,800) (69,800)
R2021FE12A31ANES Balance at December 31, 2021 8 1,240,408 155,454 302,475 1,698,345
* LtgrgE A ARTE1,0007T © * The balance stated above was less than RMB1,000.
LA & B i 2 B % FEE R BE I A BT 5 — The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be

BFBIE -

read in conjunction with the accompanying note.
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EHRERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,

20215 20204
2021 2020
s AR¥T T ARKEFTT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
RETHMEBRERE Cash flows from operating activities
BIEMERE Cash generated from operations 30(a) 535,073 541,303
2 A E Interest received 6,130 941
EATFTISR Income tax paid (103,922) (40,673)
RETEMBRELEE Net cash from operating activities 437,281 501,571
RETEBFRBRERE Cash flows from investing activities
M - BB REBERR Payments for property, plant and
equipment (181,629) (142,204)
| EEMK Payments for intangible assets (9,012) (643)
HEWE - WEREEMEHIE Proceeds from disposals of property, plant
and equipment 499 178
HEFRRIFIERUA Proceeds from disposals of subsidiaries - 150
s FRARIAIR R kR Payment for acquisition of a subsidiary,
BESHERS net of cash acquired 32(b) (3.802) -
BERANBESABRZD Purchase of financial assets at fair value
CRIEE through profit or loss - (31,100)
HEZRARBENAERZD Disposal of financial assets at fair value
CRIEE through profit or loss - 31,231
RETEARESFE Net cash used in investing activities (193,944) (142,388)

BMETHFERERE

f& SR PT 1S FRIR

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 232,685 28,870

EEER Repayment of borrowings (184,853) (47,827)
2RFE Interest paid (3,946) (1,488)
YRBEEaE Payment of lease liabilities (204,743) (132,289)
1’!57%1ﬁmﬁ*1%ﬁ’]§ﬁﬁﬁllfﬁ$ Restricted cash of guarantee for borrowings (149,500)
EREFRERNZREIRE Proceeds from the restricted cash of
FriS#0R guarantee for borrowings 149,500 -
ZY Investment Capital Ltd. Capital contribution from ZY Investment
BERHE Capital Ltd. 24(b) 88,689 -
2IRBEM BT EBRA Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares
FriS#IA upon global offering 24(d) 1,217,987 -
T EmRE Payments of listing expenses (47,797) (3,382)
ERRE Dividends paid 15(a) (69,800) -
EHEPRENEALE Capital contribution from shareholders in
Reorganization 74,052 -
AT ERF A TR R RS Payment for consideration for shares
EEARE transfer of Beijing Haiyouyou in
Reorganization (74,052) -
METHME (TR BREFE Net cash from/(used in) financing
activities 1,028,222 (156,116)
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EHEERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,

20215 20204
2021 2020
M5 AR¥T T ARETTT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
ReRBRSEEYILITE Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents 1,271,559 203,067
FUHRe kRS EY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year 292,856 89,789
Re RESFEMNOIEH W= Exchange gains on cash and cash
equivalents 1,777 -
FRESRBRELEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of
the year 1,566,192 292,856

LA EME IR G = R B E R B M A9 BT 5 The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
—{F B o conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

—REHR

ERBEEEEERAR(TARF )R
20209 A7 HRER =S A0S
228 REE (1961 FFE35ER - &
Fe kg RAS ST A%
BeBARAAE - RARWEMFEER
ik AFloor 4, Willow House, Cricket
Square, Grand Cayman, KY 1-9010,
Cayman Islands °

ARBR—RREZBRAR - METF
RE(AWIAEE]) TERTEAR
A (THE]) #EREOEEZER
K(iBEEBE RS ([ R -

KATIR2021F12 A13BETBHA
REFERATER LT -

BREFHBEN  HEAHPBERE
NRARB(TARE]) 2% - BFE®
BOMNBAAZESEOANARE T T
(TAR®TTD) -

WEEHMBREREEEEZHN2022
F3IH24BHLETIEE -

TESERBE

A EREREIEEHI BRI
RAMEIBEFARRBE - REHHE
RSN ZERRERFBERINFEER
BER - MBHRRDASAARBLE
FRBEKEE MRS -

2.1 REEE

() MEBEBUBREENR
FRATAKRANKERE

AEBHAEHMBRETD
B IE & A W15 R & % A
(IBEAMBRELER]) &
F622F(EBRAEMH)
(TEAREED]) Bk E
RERE -

GENERAL INFORMATION

Yonghe Medical Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on September 17, 2020 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s registered
office is Floor 4, Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand Cayman,
KY 1-9010, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are primarily engaged in the
provision of (i) hair transplant and (ii) medical hair care services
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") (the “Business”).

The Company had its listing on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on December 13, 2021.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“"RMB”) and all amounts are rounded to the nearest
thousand of RMB (“RMB’'000"), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on March 24, 2022.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial
statements are for the group consisting of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with HKFRS and the disclosure
requirements of HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance ("HKCO") Cap. 622.
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HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements has been
prepared on a historical cost basis, as modified by
the revaluation of financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit and loss or revalued amount.

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The group has applied the following amendments
for the first time for their annual reporting period
commencing January 1, 2021:

° Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 -
amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

The group also elected to adopt the following
amendments early:

J Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond June
30, 2021.

The amendments listed above did not have any
material impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly affect
the current or future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

2 FEESHBEME(E) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 REEXE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(iv) MR ER R F (iv) New standards and interpretations not yet
L adopted
AREBYEIEFZERTY The Group has not early applied the following new
BB M8 MR AT ET and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued
EAYBHMEER LEHE but are not yet effective:
I

SISt 4l =k

F 2 A AR

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

BAMBGHRELRE 175 — RRELD

HKFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

EEEEAFE 1R 2ER] - BB EARYIIFRY

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

BB RAEITH 2B — BEIEEH — BITaN2KAK

Amendments to HKAS 37 — Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

BB G EAFE 16 2ER] — W - BEKREE - ERERSEAZ AEHIE

Amendments to HKAS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

BAMGHMELAE IR 2EF] — IRABLSIER

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Reference to the Conceptual Framework

EEVBIMELNE 10 RFEGAERF 28R 2 5] — WEEZHARE DA
BECEZENEELESTE

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

BB REER2018F £ 2020F 2 FE L
Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2018-2020

BEBGFEAF 12K 2B — HE-RXFGEANEERAEEHENELHIE
Amendments to HKAS 12 — Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

EREHENFIRE BBV BREENEBRAEE 2R ZIEFT — S HRME

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 — Disclosure of Accounting Policies

BEREERFESHR2ER] — SFTBEREKE

Amendments to HKAS 8 — Disclosure of Accounting Policies

BIEET g TS| E oA RE R A M E e stA (851851 855%)
Revised Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations (AG 5)

20231 H1H
January 1, 2023

2023F 1 A1H
January 1, 2023

20221 H1H
January 1, 2022

2022F1H1H
January 1, 2022

2022F1H1H
January 1, 2022

FEE

To be determined

2022F1H1H
January 1, 2022

2023F1A1H
January 1, 2023

2023F1H1H
January 1, 2023

2023F1A1H
January 1, 2023

2022F1H1H
January 1, 2022
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HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FEEFHEBE(R) 2

2.1 REEE (&)

(iv) T RRAEHETER K 42
Bad (&

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iv) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

R B Hsk 2 & FiaEY
FEBRAER

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after
RERRABE A
RBRIRY — BEWE
AR 5% 2 1ER] | S ER A
Applied when an entity
applies “Classification of
Liabilities as Current or
Non-current —
Amendments to HKAS 1”

BRBBAEHESN (2020%F) MBEHKRIIIE — (ERAL B S AT R 2 RKEE KK EH
B0 (FEBREBLSEESH (20209F))

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
(HK Int 5 (2020))

PEEER BRI mER These standards, amendments or interpretations are

SEHATERA S HIRE
HARR G HHEE BRI
KHAIEERRORZ HE
RERFTE

not expected to have a material impact on the entity
in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.

2.2 EAREAIRERSE
BIE

(i) *28 (i)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

Subsidiaries

FRBIEASEHAEE
MFEER - EAKEAR
HEFELEERME 2 ATE
E3R - BERENEBENE
BAS s TERTELSO
Wy AIASEZESZE
B FREBEHEES
EREEEHREMAHA
Bk o TAREIRGIER LY
BRI A GrARR

REBERBREST AL
EEA AR (MigE2.3) ©

SERARAHERS - &
REBRABRZZHARE
BT AL - RER
EETTAEE  BRIEX
HERBBRNAEEEE
HERME - FRAMEE
BRI FE2EHSEE
VA B R B 7 62 5] P BR 4 B9
R —E

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity where
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(Note 2.3).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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For the year ended December 31, 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

()

(ii)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, statements of
changes in equity and balance sheets respectively.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received
is recognised in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, or significant influence, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value with
the change in carrying amount recognised in profit
or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.
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2 FEESHBEME(E) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

22 EHARRAIRESES 2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity

B (&) accounting (Continued)

(i) BEEEREE (&) (ii) Changes in ownership interests (Continued)
fRAEE &5 N B H 1 7B R e If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced
wOR AMBDIRE R but joint control or significant influence is retained,
SERTEN - AIERTR only a proportionate share of the amounts previously
Ef2mB AR S recognised in other comprehensive income are
EE—THOMEBEETRS reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

BERD (WER) -

2.3 ¥KE6t 2.3 Business combinations
(i) FEHFEHTHELXS (i) Business combinations not under common

Bf control

AREERBWEeEE The acquisition method of accounting is used to

FMEXHBASHFAE  THm account for all business combinations, regardless

EhEWEEF T AsH of whether equity instruments or other assets are

hEE - WEFRRIME acquired. The consideration transferred for the

ENRERE acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. e EENARE o fair values of the assets transferred
&

. W EERIER A . liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
FELEE acquired business

o AR BB THY AR AN AE o equity interests issued by the Group
=

o KRR BLEHELEN o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
EMEEXBENR a contingent consideration arrangement, and
nEE Rk

o FRAEEMERIFE e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in

gD DR EE - the subsidiary.
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2 FEEFHERBE (&)

2.3 XBEH (&)

(i) FFHEEHTHELSH
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For the year ended December 31, 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Business combinations (Continued)

()

Business combinations not under common
control (Continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity's net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.
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HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Business combinations (Continued)

()

(i)

Business combinations not under common
control (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which
a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporates
the financial statement items of the entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been consolidated from the date
when the entities or businesses first came under the
control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are consolidated using the existing book values
from the controlling party’s perspective. No amount
is recognised in consideration for goodwill or
excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of
acquirer’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost at the time of common control
combination, to the extent of the continuation of the
controlling party’s interest.
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(ii) Business combinations under common control
(Continued)

The consolidated statements of comprehensive
income include the results of each of the combining
entities or businesses from the earliest date presented
or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the common control,
where this is a shorter period, regardless of the date
of the common control combination.

A uniform set of accounting polices is adopted by
those entities. All intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealized gains on transactions between
combining entities or businesses are eliminated.

2.4 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Segment reporting

2.6

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker.

The board of directors of the Company assesses the
financial performance and position of the Group and
makes strategic decisions and is identified as the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (“CODM") responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segment.

Foreign currency translation

()

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The Company’s functional currency is United States
Dollar (“USD"). As the majority of the assets and
operations of the Group are located in the PRC, the
consolidated financial statements is presented in
RMB. The Group's presentation currency differs from
the Company’s functional currency as management
rely on management accounts prepared in RMB for
review of the Group's historical financial performance
and decision making.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally
recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in
equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges
and qualifying net investment hedges or are
attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign
operation.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

o income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

o all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (if
any). Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
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Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over
their estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold
improvement and infrastucture of safety and medical
treatment, the shorter lease term, as follows:

o Medical equipment 5 years

° Electronic equipment 3 -5 years

o Office furniture and fixtures 5 years

o Motor vehicles 4 years

o Leasehold improvement and Shorter of remaining

lease term or
estimated useful
life

infrastucture of safety and
medical treatment

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended December 31, 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Intangible assets

()

(i)

Software

The software represents the purchased computer
software which are capitalised on the basis of the
costs incurred to acquire the specific software.
Based on the current functionalities equipped by
the software and the daily operation needs, the
Group considers a useful life of 10 years is the best
estimation under current business needs. Therefore,
these costs are amortised over 10 years using the
straight-line method.

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.3.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses (if any). Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at
the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes.
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(iii) Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at
historical cost. Trademark as acquired in the business
combination is recognised at its fair value at the
acquisition date. All trademarks are amortised on a
straight — line basis over their estimated useful lives
of 10 to 11 years. Trademarks are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (if
any). When determining the estimated useful life, the
Group considered the forecasted period during which
the trademark can bring the incremental economic
benefit to the Group and the operating history of the
trademark.

2.9 Research and development

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as
incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating
to the design and developing of new or improved products
and processes) are recognised as intangible assets when it
is probable that the project will be a success considering
its commercial and technical feasibility and its costs can be
measured reliably. Other development expenditures that
do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense
when incurred. Development costs previously recognised as
an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period.

Capitalised development cost is measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation of capitalised development cost is
calculated using the straight-line method over its expected
useful life from the date they are available for use.
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For the year ended December 31, 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

210 Impairment of non-financial assets

2.1

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end
of each reporting period.

Investments and other financial assets

(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
("OCI") or through profit or loss); and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Investments and other financial

assets

(Continued)

()

(i)

(iii)

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FvocClI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

211 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continued)

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are two measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised directly
in profit or loss and presented in other gains/
(losses) together with foreign exchange gains
and losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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Debt instruments (Continued)

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised
in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in profit or loss and presented
within other gains/(losses) in the statement of
comprehensive income as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.
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For the year ended December 31, 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.12

2.13

Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)
(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment

methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see Notes 20 and 3.1
(c) for further details.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the balance sheet where the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. Costs of purchased inventory are
determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

214

2.15

2.16

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. They are generally due for settlement within one
year and therefore all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See
Notes 20 and 3.1 (c) for further information about the
Group’s accounting for trade receivables and Note 2.11 for
a description of the Group’s impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new

shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
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2.18

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are
usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and
other payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting
period. They are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it
is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortized over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or
finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.
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HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

()

(i)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences, tax losses and
tax credits.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the Company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current income tax assets and liabilities and where
the deferred income tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current income tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.
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HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

220 Employee benefits

()

(i)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit obligations
in the balance sheet.

There were no forfeited contributions (by employers
on behalf of employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in such contributions) to offset
existing contributions under the defined contribution
schemes.

Pension obligations

The Group has only defined contribution plan in
which the Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans on
a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they
are due.

There were no forfeited contributions (by employers
on behalf of employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in such contributions) to offset
existing contributions under the defined contribution
schemes.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

220 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Medical and other benefits

The Group makes monthly contributions for
medical and other benefits to the local authorities
in accordance with relevant local regulations for
the employees. The Group's liability in respect
of employee medical benefits is limited to the
contributions payable in each period.

(iv) Housing benefits

The employees of the Group are entitled to
participate in various government-sponsored housing
funds. The Group contributes on a monthly basis
to these funds based on certain percentages of the
salaries of the employees. The Group's liability in
respect of these funds is limited to the contributions
payable in each period.

221 Share-based compensation

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to
employees, and information relating to these schemes is
set out in Note 25.

The fair value of awarded shares granted to employees less
amount paid by employees is recognised as an employee
benefits expense over the relevant service period, being the
vesting period of the shares, and the credit is recognised
in equity in the share-based compensation reserve. The
fair value of the shares is measured at the grant date.
The number of shares expected to vest is estimated based
on the non-market vesting conditions. The estimates
are revised at the end of each reporting period and
adjustments are recognised in profit or loss and the share-
based compensation reserve. Where shares are forfeited
due to a failure by the employee to satisfy the service
conditions, any expenses previously recognised in relation
to such shares are reversed effective at the date of the
forfeiture.
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Provisions for legal claims are recognised when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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Revenues are recognised when, or as, the control of
the goods or services is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
applicable, control of the goods and services may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the
goods and services is transferred over time if the Group's
performance:

o provides all the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

. creates and enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods and services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods and services.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of performance
obligation is measured based on direct measurements of
the value of individual services transferred by the Group to
the customer.

If contracts involve the sale of multiple goods, goods
followed by related services, or multiple services, the
transaction price will be allocated to each performance
obligation based on their relative stand-alone selling prices.
If the stand-alone selling prices are not directly observable,
they are estimated based on expected cost plus a margin,
depending on the availability of observable information.

When either party to a contract has performed, the Group
presents the contract in the balance sheets as a contract
asset or a contract liability, depending on the relationship
between the entity’s performance and the customer’s
payment.
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The Group offers some discounts to the customers, and
revenue is recognised based on the price specified in the
contract, net of the discount.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group has a right
to an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before
the Group transfers a good or service to the customer,
the Group presents the contract as a contract liability
when the payment is made or the receivable is recorded
(whichever is earlier). A contract liability is the Group's
obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration. A right to
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A refund liability is the constructive obligation to refund
some or all of the consideration received (or receivable)
from the customer and is measured at the amount the
Group ultimately expects it will have to return to the
customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund
liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction
price) at the end of each reporting period.

The following is a description of the accounting policy for
the principal revenue streams of the Group.

(i) Hair transplant

For hair transplant service, customers normally
receive treatment which contains various treatment
components (e.g. pre-surgery medical checking,
surgery treatment and post-surgery cleaning) that are
all highly relevant and regarded as one performance
obligation. Revenue from provision of hair
transplantation services recognised at a point in time
when the services have been rendered to customers.
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For the year ended December 31, 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition (Continued)

()

(i)

Hair transplant (Continued)

The Group usually receives the payment from
customers in advance before the services are
rendered. The majority of customers normally do
not ask for a refund of payment and the services
not yet rendered are recorded as contract liability.
The Group has estimated the refund in respect of
unsatisfactory services rendered based on the Group's
past experience with customers and recognised as
refund liabilities (see Note 4(b)). The contract liability
is recognised as revenue when the related services
are rendered.

Sales of hair transplant related goods are recognised
when the Group has transferred the products to the
customer, and the customer has obtained control of
the products.

Medical hair care

The Group provides medical hair care services in
package which is accounted as multiple elements
of services. Revenue from medical hair care services
is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation. The
progress towards the complete satisfaction of
performance obligation is measured by direct
measures of the value of individual service transferred
to the customer. Normally, there is no expiry date for
the packages while majority of the customers take up
all the services in the packages within two years.

The Group usually receives the payment from
customers in advance before the services are
rendered. The majority of customers normally do
not ask for a refund of payment and the services
not yet rendered are recorded as contract liability.
The Group has estimated the refund in respect of
unsatisfactory services rendered based on the Group's
past experience with customers and recognised as
refund liabilities (see Note 4(b)). The contract liability
is recognised as revenue when the related services
are rendered.
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HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Medical hair care (Continued)

Sales of goods related to medical hair care are
recognised when the Group has transferred the
products to the customer, and the customer has
obtained control of the products.

Others

The Group also provides routine hair care services
in package which is accounted as multiple elements
of services. Revenue from routine hair care services
is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation. The
progress towards the complete satisfaction of
performance obligation is measured by direct
measures of the value of individual service transferred
to the customer. Normally, there is no expiry date for
the packages while majority of the customers take up
all the services in the packages within two years.

The Group usually receives the payment from
customers in advance before the services are
rendered. Customers normally do not ask for a
refund of payment and the services not yet rendered
are recorded as contract liability. The contract liability
is recognised as revenue when the related services
are rendered.

Sales of goods related to routine hair care are
recognised when the Group has transferred the
products to the customer, and the customer has
obtained control of the products.
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For the year ended December 31, 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Earnings per share

()

(ii)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

o the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares;

o by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:

o the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares; and

o the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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2 FEESHBEME(E) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Leases
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The Group leases buildings as lessee. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 15 years.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments (if
applicable):

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the Company, which does not have recent third party
financing, and makes adjustments specific to the
lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following (if applicable):

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received; and

o any initial direct costs.
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2 FEESHBEME(E) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
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Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis
as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less.

A lessee normally recognises an asset and a lease liability
when it enters into most leases under HKFRS 16. The
Group considers the lease as a single transaction in which
the asset and liability are integrally linked, so there is
no net temporary difference at inception. Subsequently,
as differences arise on settlement of the liability and
the amortisation of the leased asset, there will be a net
temporary difference on which deferred tax is recognised.

The Group has adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16 — Covid-
19-Related Rent Concessions retrospectively from January
1, 2020. The amendment 16 provides a practical expedient
for lessees to elect not to apply lease modification
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic. The practical
expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as
a direct consequence of the pandemic and only if (i) the
change in lease payments results in revised consideration
for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than,
the consideration for the lease immediately preceding
the change; (i) any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before June 30, 2021;
and (iii) there is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease. The group has early adopted
Amendment to HKFRS 16 — Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond June 30, 2021, which extended the
practical expedient to lease payments that were due on or
before June 30, 2022.
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For the year ended December 31, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26

2.27

2.28

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as
a liability in the consolidated financial statements in the
year in which the dividends are approved by the entities’
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment and other non-current assets are
included in the non-current liabilities and are credited to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives
of the related assets.

Interest income

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).
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HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance. Risk management
is carried out by the senior management of the Group and
approved by the executive directors.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of majority of the entities
within the Group is RMB. Most of the Group's
transactions are based and settled in RMB. Foreign
currencies are used to settle the Group’s revenue and
borrowings out of Mainland China.

RMB is not freely convertible into other foreign
currencies and conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
Government.

Details of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
as at December 31, 2021, denominated in foreign
currencies, mainly HKD are disclosed in Note 23.

The management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange exposure should the
need arises.
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For the year ended December 31, 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

(c)

The Group's income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates and the Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets except for cash and cash
equivalents, details of which have been disclosed in
Note 23.

The Group has no long-term borrowings with variable
rates, which expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. And lease liabilities expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. The Group currently has not
used any interest rate swap arrangements.

Credit risk
(i) Risk management

The Group is exposed to credit risk primarily in
relation to its cash and cash equivalents as well
as trade receivables and other financial assets
at amortised cost. The carrying amount of each
class of the above financial assets represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to the corresponding class of financial
assets.

To manage this risk, deposits are mainly
placed with state-owned or reputable financial
institutions in the PRC. There has been no
recent history of default in relation to these
financial institutions.
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For the year ended December 31, 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has the following types of financial
assets subject to expected credit loss model:

. trade receivables

° other financial assets at amortised cost

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was insignificant.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics. The expected
credit loss also incorporate forward looking
information.
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For the year ended December 31, 2021

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost
include other receivables, and management
makes periodic assessments as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability
based on historical settlement records and
past experience. Forward-looking information
incorporated in the expected credit loss model.
The Group has performed historical analysis and
identified the key economic variables impacting
credit risk and expected credit loss. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-
looking information. Especially the following
indicators are incorporated (if applicable):

° internal and external credit rating;

o actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the debtor's ability
to meet its obligations;

o actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the debtor; and

o significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the debtor,
including changes in the payment status
of debtors in the Group and changes in
the operating results of the debtor.
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HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c¢) Credit risk (Continued)

(iii) Net impairment losses on financial assets
recognised in profit or loss

During 2021, the following losses were

BRERESRE recognised in profit or loss in relation to
ENEEER impaired financial assets:
BZ12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,
20215 20204
2021 2020
AR¥T T ARKEFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REBE Impairment losses
2 W GRIAEE Movement in loss allowance for
B (Ffsr20) trade receivables (Note 20) (59) (51)
H RIS E Movement in loss allowance for
BEBEEE (Misk21) other receivables (Note 21) 212 (436)
SRVEEMAEBULES/ Net reversal gains/(impairment
CRfEREs8) F58 losses) on financial assets 153 (487)
REE SR (d) Liquidity risk
REBEREAEFARHIR The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and

ERREFEY - AR
MEBNBEIEE - K&
BEBERTERENAT N
ReEEMERESNE
EE

cash equivalents. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, the Group maintains flexibility
in funding by maintaining adequate cash and cash
equivalents.
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(d)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

REESERE (&) (d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

TREBESREHRES The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
WEEHBFEAMM - & financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping
BT AR DT AER based on the remaining period at the end of each
HIETESREBE - kT reporting period to the contractual maturity date. The
WENSEAA N KRILE amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual

RERE -

undiscounted cash flows.

HME 122F 2855 SENE @t REE
Between  Between

Less than 1and 2and Over Carrying

1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount

ARBTR ARBTRT ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETx

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

#2021%12831R At December 31, 2021

&% Borrowings 75,099 - - - 75,099 74173

BHREMEMFIBEY  Trade and other payables* 121,274 - - - 121214 121,274

HEARE Lease liabilities 191,953 174275 452,477 332,452 1,151,157 947,358
388326 174275 452,477 332,452 1,347,530 1,142,805

R2020512 8318 At December 31, 2020

EE Borrowings 26,259 - - - 26,259 25,870

BHREMPEMFIES  Trade and other payables* 63,600 - - - 63,600 63,600

MEARE Lease liabilities 151,785 154,069 398,048 299,310 1,003,212 829,930

241,644 154,069 398,048 299,310 1,093,071 919,400

* T e EESET * Excluding non-financial liabilities of accrued employee
R EMFIE IE S R benefits and tax payable.

afE-
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M¥RRERE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.2 EsRARER 3.2 Capital risk management
TEEEEERNE RRRER The Group’s objectives on managing capital are to
SEFELENRE N R FRE safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
BRI RHERER - UARKRFRM concern and support the sustainable growth of the Group
513 % A H b B 2 A A & 1R AL in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
o WHBREERERBURA for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
ERfFEANRBEE - structure to enhance equity holders’ value in the long
term.
REFFFAEERERE  K&H In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
LEABRTTREORE the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
R BITHRG I EEER shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
DER debt.
TEERBEEEABHERERE The Group monitors capital on the basis of the asset-
o R RRBEERNBERE liability ratio. This ratio is calculated as total liabilities
HE ALEEEREERREL divided by total assets. The Group aims to maintain the
EEFEAIRKT o asset-liability ratio at a reasonable level.
R12H31H
As at December 31,
20215 20204
2021 2020
ARBT T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEE Total liability 1,500,958 1,188,298
BEE Total assets 3,199,303 1,594,356
EESMELR The liability-to-asset ratio 46.92% 74.53%

4 BAREETAET R A

{5 Re # B TH AR 1508 1 A8 B Je Ho b
= (BREFHEBATHARAKREFNG
BRIEH) 5B -

AEBEARREHMGTNRE - BA
BE  EEEFTE L EARER
BRAER - RAKESEHNETRF
ENEERBENKREEFLERH
BB MRERARAT o

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.
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For the year ended December 31, 2021

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Estimation of goodwill impairment

The group tests whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment on an annual basis. For the reporting periods,
the recoverable amount of cash-generating units (CGUs)
was determined based on value-in-use calculations which
require the use of assumptions. The calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period.

Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated growth rates stated in note 18. These
growth rates are consistent with forecasts included in
industry reports specific to the industry in which each CGU
operates.

Details of impairment charge, key assumptions and impact
of possible changes in key assumptions are disclosed in
note 18.

Estimation of variable consideration for refund to
customers

The Group estimates variable considerations to be included
in the transaction price for the refund to customers in
respect of unsatisfactory services rendered.

The Group has estimated the refund which is based on the
Group’s past experience with customers. Any significant
changes in experience as compared to historical patterns
will impact the expected refund estimated by the Group.
The Group updates its assessment of expected refund
on a regular basis and the refund liabilities are adjusted
accordingly. The amount recognised as refund liabilities for
the expected refund was approximately RMB10 million as
at December 31, 2021 (December 31, 2020: RMB8 million)
(Note 27).
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Recognition of share-based compensation
expenses

As mentioned in Note 25, an equity-settled share-based
compensation plan was granted to the employees. The
directors have used discounted cash flow method to
determine the total fair value of the underlying shares
granted to employees, which is to be expensed over the
vesting period. Significant estimate on key assumptions,
such as discount rate, risk-free interest rate, expected
volatility and discount for lack of marketability, is required
to be made by the directors in applying the discounted
cash flow method.

As the awards granted in equity-settled share-based
compensation plan are conditional on a Qualified Initial
Public Offerings (“QIPO"). The directors have estimated
the QIPO’s probability and QIPO date when they calculated
share-based compensation expenses at each reporting
period end. Since QIPO condition is considered as vesting
condition, the Group also needs to estimate on the basis
of the most likely outcome.

Income taxes

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in the PRC.
Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are some transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current income tax and
deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination are made.

Yonghe Investment is qualified as “High and New
Technology Enterprises” (“HNTEs”) and is entitled to the
preferential income tax rate of 15%. The qualification is
valid 3 years, and upon expiry the Company is required to
submit the application to relevant government authority
to certify the HNTEs qualification. If the Company
disqualified from the HNTEs certification, it cannot enjoy
the preferential income tax, and the change in tax rate will
affect the current and deferred income taxes in the period
in which the change takes place.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
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JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
(d) Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets relating to tax losses and
unused tax credits are recognised as management considers
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the tax losses and tax credits can be utilised.
Future taxable profit includes the profit from operating
results and taxable profits of future periods reversed of
taxable temporary differences. Estimates and judgement
are required in determining the timing and amount of
future taxable profit generated. In case where the actual
future taxable profit generated are less than expected, or
change in facts and circumstances which result in revision
of future taxable profit estimation, a material reversal or
further recognition of deferred income tax assets may
arise, which will be recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which such a reversal or further recognition takes
place. As of the respective balance sheet date, the Group's
unrecognised deferred income tax assets in respect of tax
losses and tax credits have been set out in Note 13.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the CODM. The CODM, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segment, has been identified as the board of
directors of the Company that make strategic decisions. The
Group is principally engaged in the provision of hair transplant
service which are subject to similar type of services, similar
class of customers, similar regulatory environment and similar
business risk. Resources are allocated based on what is beneficial
to the Group in enhancing the value as a whole rather than any
specific unit. Therefore, the CODM of the Company regards that
there is only one operating segment for the Group.

The major operating entities of the Group are all domiciled in
the PRC and major of the Group's revenue were derived in the
PRC during the reporting period.

As at December 31, 2021, majority of non-current assets of the
Group were located in the PRC.

There was no revenue derived from a single external customer
accounting for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue during the
reporting period.
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RKEEFEHHWA 6 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH

CUSTOMERS

BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,

20215 20204
2021 2020
ARETR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEBE Hair transplant 1,565,434 1,412,744
EREEE Medical hair care 582,290 213,214
At Others 20,856 12,339
2,168,580 1,638,297
BZE12A318LEE
Year ended December 31,
20215 20204
2021 2020
ARETR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REHERNETPIA Revenue from customer and recognised
at a point time
BEBE Hair transplant 1,565,434 1,412,744
BEESE-HEE®R Medical hair care — sale of goods 30,498 18,575
Hih — HEEMm Others — sale of goods 11,014 5,390
1,606,946 1,436,709
REEREROEP A Revenue from customer and recognised
over time
EEEE - RB Medical hair care — services 551,792 194,639
Hith — i Others — services 9,842 6,949
561,634 201,588
F Total 2,168,580 1,638,297
BZ12A31MBLEE
Year ended December 31,
20214 20204
2021 2020
ARBT T ARKEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R DHEL A Revenue from customer by region
el INp:i Mainland China 2,160,776 1,638,297
B Hong Kong 7,804 -
2,168,580 1,638,297
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7 HilkA

7 OTHER INCOME

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

20214 20204
2021 2020

AR®ETF T AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

HER MR ) Additional value-added tax credit (a) 2,781 1,802

T B (b) Government grants (b) 822 4,082

HAth Others - 420

3,603 6,304

(a) EAIERAEMME2019F4 A 1R (@) The amounts represent the additional value-added tax credit
BERRBNE T FRREAREER applicable to certain subsidiaries of the Group providing hair care
INEHER services since April 2019.

(b) HWABBENBN#HBEEERETR (b)  Government grants relating to income include various government
MEEEE  RHNESREMEE subsidies received by the group entities from the relevant
£ 4H B8 IR B P U ER 89 2% T8 BT 4 government bodies in connection with enterprise development,
B o FTEMRA RN RSB/ S HEIEE tax refund and employee related grants etc. All subsidies were

R ARARARI A 4 2 B RERR ©

recognised at the time when the Group fulfilled the relevant
criteria and the related expenses were incurred.

8 %Hﬁﬂﬂtliz%é/(ﬁﬁ)"}% 8 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET

BZ12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,

20215 20204
2021 2020
AR¥T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RERFRIEYMERENEE Compensation from the early-

termination of a property lease 6,521 -

HEWE - HERZHEES Losses on disposal of property, plant
and equipment (1,127) (3,984)
B Donation = (1,000)
TNTFREPHBESH Compensation expenditure to customers = (2)
Hih Others 1,321 (2,752)

6,715 (7,738)
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9 EXPENSES BY NATURE

For the year ended December 31, 2021

Expenses included in cost of sales and services, selling and
marketing expenses, general and administrative expenses and

research and development expenses are further analysed as

follows:

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®ETF T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EERAMAZ (3E10) Employee benefits expenses (Note 10) 700,258 494,886
HE R HEEER Promotion and marketing related expenses 684,274 507,667
FREESERE (MEik17) Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(Notes i and 17) 107,729 82,990
FERFEMKA Cost of inventories and consumables 101,220 63,951
WE - BE REEITE (f3E16) Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 16) 92,029 75,732
KEE HIEBNMMRAZEASY  Utilities, maintenance fee and office
expenses 51,647 35,749
Tt 18 Rt o & Taxes and surcharges 44,820 30,103
EWRX Listing expenses 42,519 3,827
EIRRBERZ Travelling and entertainment expenses 37,131 27,922
HHIFEM S (M5E17(b))  Rental expenses for short-term leases
(Note 17(b)) 18,693 13,956
1% 25 A 37 B Auditors’ remuneration 7,158 1,959
- B LT BT ERTS — Audit services in relation to primary
listing 4,458 1,200
- FEZERS — Annual audit services 2,700 759
BRI E Consulting service fee 6,048 3,268
S Rk = Technical fee 6,000 2,616
M EERE (KMEE18) Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 18) 1,217 403
HEREX Other expenses 22,213 25,086
#Et Total 1,922,956 1,370,115
()  MAEMEZZEZE2021F12A31 (i)  The depreciation of right-of-use assets for the year ended

BLEFENFERAEELEETEDH
B R A MESRN S E R
FOMEZTT (20204 : HARKE

6A &) (IFE17(b)) °

December 31, 2021 as presented above have been net
off the rental reduction or waives due to COVID-19 of nil
(2020: approximately RMB6 million) (Note 17(b)).
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10 EERABX

For the year ended December 31, 2021

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

20214 20204

2021 2020

AR¥T AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

TE  #Hehita Wages, salaries and bonuses 609,612 458,974
LA B A7) 7 Tt 60 357 B 7l 2 Share-based compensation expenses 184 3,606
BESRA — REHKEE Pension costs — defined contribution plans 38,538 1,914
HAth it G IREK AR Other social security costs 21,970 12,540
FEERL Housing benefits 16,542 11,255
&R R H AR Welfare and other expenses 13,412 6,597
700,258 494,886

(i)

(if)

REE R B/AS P BT IR
T B IR NGB R B SR (R 8 -
REB AT EIF LRI T
TRAERENEEFENEER
DHEE - UREEER KRR

RHEES -

HE2021F12A318ILEE -
7 8 A 4% AT {r] B2 0 5 BRAT P 48
ERREERFEEEOERR
UTHEFR o

BEZERA - RERFFER
2020F B AR - TERAR
2020F R EH B A ST ™
BFHaREZSRRBEK

(i)

Employees of the Group are required to participate in a
defined contribution plan administrated and operated
by the local municipal government in the PRC. The
Group contributes funds which are calculated on certain
percentages of the employee salary as agreed by the local
municipal government to the plan to fund the retirement
benefits of the employees.

The Group did not have any forfeited contribution for the
year ended December 31, 2021 in connection with defined
contribution plan operated by local governments.

Pension costs — defined contribution plans decreased in
2020, primarily due to the reduction and exemption policy
of pension by the local municipal government due to
COVID-19 outbreak in 2020.
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HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
(Continued)

(iii)  Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments are the highest in
the Group for the year ended December 31, 2021 include
one (2020: one) director whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis shown in Note 34. The emoluments payable
to the remaining four individuals during 2021 (2020: four)
are as follows:

BZ12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,

20215 20204
2021 2020
AR¥T T ARKEFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

TE - - B4 -FHE Wages, salaries, bonuses, housing
NEeREMESRET funds and other employees benefits 4,669 6,482

BESHRA — REHNKEE Pension costs — defined

contribution plans 170 3
LARR A A Z i B0 37 BN A =2 Share-based compensation expenses 16 7
4,855 6,492

&I K M A BB & 7 A

The emoluments of the four and four individuals fell within the

T#E - following bands:
BZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,
202145 20204
2021 2020
A AE
Number Number
of individuals of individuals
esE : Emoluments bands:
£ 21,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 -
1,000,001 7c£ 1,500,000 7C  HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 3 -
1,500,001 022,000,000/ 7C  HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 2
2,000,001 7L £2,500,0007C HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2
4 4

RBERR BEESHIAER
= 37 A £ B 2 5 B WACER A 1T B
T ERRSIMAREEE - 0
AR B1& K B F A 52 B 1) 22D
HAERRERAE -

During the Reporting Period, no director or the five highest
paid individuals received any emolument from the Group as an
inducement to join, upon joining the Group, leave the Group or
as compensation for loss of office.
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11 B — FE 11 FINANCE COSTS — NET

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®ETF T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B A Finance income
RITE ARSI Interest income on bank deposits 6,130 941
B3 B A Finance costs
RITIERF BHAX Interest expenses on bank borrowings (3,946) (1,488)
HEBEMNBMX Interest expenses for lease liabilities (48,003) (34,800)
(51,949) (36,288)
MR A — FEE Finance costs — net (45,819) (35,347)
12 +AF 12 SUBSIDIARIES
AEER2021F12A31THHNEZFAQ The group’s principal subsidiaries at December 31, 2021 are
FHEHGNR T o B BIEHBIN » 2% set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital
FATINEANERE@EAEK - A consisting solely of ordinary shares that are held directly by the
NEBBEEEE  MAEEMREES group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals
RERE LI T B FT R AR o the voting rights held by the group.
FRBFEEER
EiRtR ERALBEREARR ITEBREEHY BEARAREHRSHE EL 11
Particulars of issued  Proportion of interest
Place of incorporation and Principal activities and share capital and  and voting power held
Name of entity kind of legal entity place of operation debt securities by the Group
AR®TR  02F  200%
RMB'000 2021 2020
ERER
Directly Owned
Yonghe Management Consulting Co. Ltd. EBRABE  AREALT TERRIBEENETER 1REBR 1% 100% 100%
Yonghe Management Consulting Co. Ltd. The BVI, limited liability company Consulting in the BV 1 ordinary share, USDS$1
BRls
Indirectly Owned
IREERBHERAA ([ LREhER ) T EEERE ERERNEERE RERER 11,765 100% 100%
Beijing Haiyouyou Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC, wholly foreign-owned enterprise ~ Investment and management
("Beijing Haiyouyou") in the PRC
IREREEREEEARAT (HRER)) hE BREARA ERERNEERE RERER 14,286 100% 100%
Beijing Yonghe Medical Investment Management ~ The PRC, limited liability company Investment and management

Co., Ltd. ("Beijing Yonghe") in the PRC
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12 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

FRBFERER
ERRILEREAER IEEHREEHE BRARARERRSHE RERLA
Particulars of issued  Proportion of interest
Place of incorporation and Principal activities and share capital and  and voting power held
kind of legal entity place of operation debt securities by the Group

ARETT  201F  200%F
RMB'000 2021 2020

FRESEEEHRERLT

Beijing Hafada Hair Increase Technology Co,, Ltd.

IREREREERARLT
Beijing Yunyihui Medical Management Co., Ltd.

FREREERARERERAT
Beijing Yonghe Hair Transplant Technique
Research Laboratory Co., Ltd.

FEHEE (LR)ARAF
Svenson Hair Care (Bemng) Co., Ltd.

FHR RERT AR EE DY MERLT
Chengdu Wuhou Yonghejimei Medical
Cosmetology Clinic Co., Ltd.

TRERZEFDHERAT
Beijing Yonghe Meidu Outpatient Department

Co., Ltd.

ENERBREANY SERAR
Guangzhou Yonghe Medical Cosmetology
Outpatient Department Co., Ltd.

LSERERFMDHERAT
Shanghai Yonghe Love Clinic Co., Ltd.

REABRERZEEEZNERAA
Tianjin Hexi Yonghe Meidu Medical
Cosmetology Co., Ltd.

INERXEBRXRIHERLR

Zhengzhou Yonghe Meidu Medical Beauty
Clinic Co., Ltd.

ERERBEEAYHERLT
Qingdao Yonghe Medical Beauty Clinic Co., Ltd.

hE - BRELAA EhREREERERT 8000 100% 100%
The PRC, limited liability company Wig business in the PRC
hE - BRELAF EhREREEZEENES 10000 100% 100%
The PRC, limited liability company Hair consulting in the PRC
hE - BRELAA EhREREEZERRES 50 100% 100%
The PRC, limited liability company Hair research in the PRC
hE - BRELAA EhREREEZERERS 8,752 100% 100%
The PRC, limited liability company Hair care in the PRC
hE - BREAAT EhAEREEZERRRS 55 100% 100%
The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services

in the PRC
hE - BREALA EhEARREEZERRRE 1500 100% 100%
The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services

in the PRC
hE - BREALA ErERRE S ERERRH 50 100% 100%
The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services

in the PRC
RE BRALLF ErERRE S ERERRH 500 100% 100%
The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services

in the PRC
RE BRALLF ErERREEERERRH 500 100% 100%
The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services

in the PRC
hE - BREELT ETERNEE EERERE 1,500 100% 100%
The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services

in the PRC
hE AREELT EPERNEEEEEERE 500 100% 100%
The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services

in the PRC

195



196 HEXRBEEEARLQT  YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

B O B 15 R Y R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

12 ¥ 5 (&) 12 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
FREFHRER
BiER EAUAEETEINE] TERBREEHE BRARARERRSHE RERLA
Particulars of issued ~ Proportion of interest
Place of incorporation and Principal activities and share capital and  and voting power held
Name of entity kind of legal entity place of operation debt securities by the Group

ARETR 01E 2020%
RMB'000 2021 2020

RIEREXERXATOR hE - BRELAA EPREREEZEERET 1,000 100% 100%
Shenzhen Yonghe Jimei Medical Cosmetology Clinic ~ The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services
in the PRC
AREREIANFAD HERLE hE - BRELAA EPREREEZEERET 1,000 100% 100%
Hefei Yonghe Plastic Surgery Outpatient The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services
Department Co., Ltd. in the PRC
RRRERERRBERAR hE - BRELAA EPREREEZEERETY 2000 100% 100%
Shijiazhuang Yonghe Medical Service Co., Ltd. The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services
in the PRC
BEERBRXAERARBRANIMDI BE - BRELAA EPEEREEZEERNS 2,000 100% 100%
Medical Cosmetology Surgery Clinic of Nanning ~ The PRC, limited liability company Hair-related healthcare services
Yonghe Medical Cosmetology Co., Ltd. in the PRC
(a) EXREH (a) Significant restrictions
AR®386B&E T (Mi23) Cash and cash equivalents of RMB386 million (Note 23)
(20204 : AR¥E293EETT) W (2020: RMB293 million) are held in mainland China and
R MRS S EWR R E N are subject to local exchange control regulations. These
B WRE B INEE BIHEBIAR local exchange control regulations provide for restrictions
PR o b5 & B9 SN B IR BIAR on exporting capital from the country, other than through
E o RiBA RS - REE normal dividends.

g H B -
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13 INCOME TAX EXPENSES

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

20214 20204
2021 2020
AR¥T T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BNERFT1S Current income tax 93,649 75,715
FEIEFTISE (H5E29) Deferred income tax (Note 29) (3,561) (8,133)
FriS®if = Income tax expense 90,088 67,582
(a) HEHE (a) Cayman Islands
ARARFHESHESRERSHS The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
NEPEEMA S AERRER A an exempted company with limited liability under the
A A EREBNFESESA Companies Act of the Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is
1B - exempted from Cayman Islands income tax.
(b) KEBELZEE (b) British Virgin Islands
BIERLBEREZBEEIRTEN Under the current laws of the British Virgin Islands, the
TRBEZESEMAK AT subsidiaries incorporated in British Virgin Islands are not
RNEBEBNET - subject to income tax.
(c) BEERAREH (c) Hong Kong Profits Tax
REBEMK LB FREARE The subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong is subject
EEBABNEM G ERBFE to Hong Kong profits tax at the rate of 16.5% on any
RIHE16.5%MMBBFEH - estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.
(d) FEITCEMRESH (L% (d) PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT")

Frig®l)

P80 B4E 7 2 m) ek L e
<60 B0 B RAEAE PR 15 51 » o B
8 R B T R AT
PIFR AR IR « R F X
B3 T8 it 1 ST 7 LA AR B
EX

MN2021F12 8178 - ERBRE
FEBTRMEEER HER
15%MEBEMBMBEER - %5
NEEREEE - FEHFEE
MBI ESHZRTRR - It
Hh - IRIE P B BRI AR A KoK
B EPENETTREFAN
MIEER -

The income tax expenses consist of current and deferred
income taxes payable in the PRC by the subsidiaries.
Income tax provision in respect of the operations in the
PRC has been calculated at the applicable tax rate on
the estimated assessable profits for the year or period,
based on the existing legislations and interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.

On December 17, 2021, Yonghe Investment was qualified
as HNTEs and is entitled to the preferential income tax
rate of 15%. This status is subject to a requirement that
Yonghe Investment reapply for HNTEs status every three
years. In addition, certain of the subsidiaries in the PRC are
qualified as small and micro enterprises under the relevant
tax rules and regulations of the PRC.
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13 FrERBEX (&) 13 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)
(d) FEECXRERH ([ (d) PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") (Continued)

Fia% 1) ()
% Pt FAFISN 0 E bR E Other than the above-mentioned subsidiaries, the other
ML E TR AEROYER operating entities in the PRC are subject to standard
SE R AR L IR 1R 25 % I #E B income tax rate of 25% pursuant to the enterprise income
ERERATL o tax law and related regulations.
BAEBKRAER AT EEW The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs
B BE A% E TR R E from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
BrmEscENEEMT statutory tax rate of 25% are as follows:

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

20214 20204

2021 2020

AR¥T T AREET T

RMB’000 RMB’'000

Fx FT 15 55 B A1 B Profit before income tax 210,276 230,914

1B 25% 5 E B R G E TR

MTIHBHRIEZE
W ERERIEEMEREEN
REABIEE ()

B ABERERNHIAER
RRIEB X

BT AR R

WEMERBIEREHREEDN
HIRE 1R

BEMENTE

R BI TR AT L)

Bl RN BN EE
HIFTIS

Tax calculated at statuary tax rate of

25% 52,569 57,729
Tax effects of:
Unused tax credits for which no

deferred income tax assets was

recognised (i) 25,374 21,434
Utilisation of previously unrecognised

tax losses (18) -
Expenses not deductible for tax

purposes 1,165 1,400
Research and development tax credit (2,607) (2,180)
Tax losses for which no deferred

income tax asset was recognised 448 1,064
Impact of preferential tax rates (7,.879) (11,865)
PRC withholding income tax (ii) 12,697 -
Income tax of shares transfer of

Beijing Haiyouyou in Reorganisation 8,339 -

90,088 67,582
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13 FriSBipix ()
(d) REICEFRER ([L¥

Fi&

()

(ii)

Bil) (%)

RIBEEMBHERM
BAR  BEEFAXHK
HAEMRNE F YA
MI15% - i oA
REEERFEAN - I
B ESRSARB AR
AR HRELFSHE
E RESASESEE
RENHER R EHEEIA
hREXY  BEERR
A TR R AR R AR B8
RZERERH AL R

MR20219F12A8318 » I
EREEEN IR ES
ASXHERELCEHMSHE
ENRSHARERE2S
BHOBARELNBET
(202012 A31H : A
R¥391EETT)

PEBRHMER

BIE2007F12 A6 H %
HREEMSH AR
&5 - 720084181 H
% LAFRERRIEERF)
BREEIMEEE DR
A% BB 10% ML R 8
MIEFNFTISEL - HEHRER
HF AR EETER AT
REBEMK LIS F
B i B AR 2R T MO R UK
WELHE - AJEARIED
5% TEHFEHE o

M2021F9H6H + bR
R AEREETERE
RARZTIREEARKE
126 & TT - BN FTISHL
A AEROARE13
BETTHBEINAMAERH o

HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

13 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

(d) PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") (Continued)

()

(i)

Pursuant to the EIT Law and related regulations, the
pre-tax deduction for advertising expenses is limited
to the 15% of the revenue in the current year, and
the excess could be carried forward for deduction
in the following years. Deferred income tax assets
relating to unused tax credits of advertising expense
are not recognised as management considers it
is not probable to utilise these unrecognised tax
credits in the foreseeable future because the Group
will continue to invest on promotion and marketing
activities to expand its businesses.

As at December 31, 2021, unused tax credits for
which no deferred income tax assets has been
recognised in respect of deductible advertising
expense carried forward amounted to approximately
RMB492 million (December 31, 2020: RMB391
million).

PRC withholding income tax

Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations
for Implementation of the EIT Law issued on
December 6, 2007, dividends distributed from the
profits generated by the PRC companies after January
1, 2008 to their foreign investors shall be subject to
withholding income tax at the rate of 10%, a lower
5% withholding income tax rate may be applied
when the immediate holding companies of the
subsidiaries in Mainland China are incorporated in
Hong Kong and fulfill the requirements to the tax
treaty arrangements between Mainland China and
Hong Kong.

On September 6, 2021, the dividend of RMB126
million to Yonghe Medical Holdings Limited was
declared by Beijing Haiyouyou and the withholding
income tax of approximately RMB13 million was
recognised in income tax expenses.
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HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

13 FIEFiAX (&) 13 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)
(d) FELEFREHR ([ (d) PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) (Continued)

FrE®il) (&)
(i) PEFRHMAER (H)

M2021F12 8318 » &
SEWEBE P E AT
NAM R D IREF R
EABENMAERH  BRE
2k EARE 85N 0 AEE
I — B8l DR E
PERM T AR SR
A (202012 A318 :
7)o

(ii)

PRC withholding income tax (Continued)

At as December 31, 2021, the Group has not accrued
any withholding income tax for the undistributed
earnings of its subsidiaries in Mainland China as the
Group does not have a further plan to distribute
these earnings from its subsidiaries in Mainland China
except for the above dividend (December 31, 2020:
nil).

MA12H31H8
As at December 31,
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®T T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’000

WARFBA25%FTEHEA  Unused tax losses for which no
HEBERELEANSHEE  deferred income tax assets has
HIARB) R IR IE & 18 been recognised for entities

subject to the income tax rate

of 25%

4,666 2,946
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13 FRrERiB (8)

(d) PERELERER (13
FrE®il) (&)

(i) FEBHAEH (&)

HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

13 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

(d) PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) (Continued)

(ii) PRC withholding income tax (Continued)

HESEEAGBRANRK The expiry dates of the unused tax losses as of the
PAREBEBENIBHAN respective balance sheet dates are listed as below.
—F °
A12H31H
As at December 31,
202145 20204
2021 2020
AR¥T T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEATERL : Year ended/ending:
20224 2022 413 413
20234 2023 815 863
20244 2024 699 722
20254 2025 948 948
20264 2026 1,791 -

4,666 2,946
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HE2021F 128318 ILFE

14 BRER

(a) BREXRZER

SREAEFT
HEEY -

For the year ended December 31, 2021

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE

BRIALATIER 1%

o  AREREDFAAEIEF

B (T es

57 B8 SR i

NMRBEBHARENRD
Fo& ) (MiEE25)

B DA B B F B N EE 1T 1R SN
B EmRNET IS - I
REANDBHITERR (T
BREMEERGOEFE
B 1Y) AR FI A (B &E
25) c BEHRRAR AR
R KRR 2021
F11AI2BERBHRER
EERETHROSIFEH
BHAE  BOZERH
E2020F 1 A1 BURE#K
AT o

(a) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to equity holders of the
company, excluding undistributed earnings
attributable to unvested restricted shares during the
vesting period (Note 25);

by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the
year and excluding shares held for employee share
scheme (Note 25). The shares subscribed for the
interests in the Company upon the Reorganization
and the share split pursuant to the shareholders’
resolution passed on November 12, 2021 had been
adjusted retrospectively as if those shares have been
issued since January 1, 2020.



ANNUAL REPORT 2021 =—Z=—%%#%f 203

CRERELE:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 BREF (&)

(a)

BRESFRER ()

HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(a) Basic earnings per share (Continued)

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

20215 20204
2021 2020
ARBTT ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000

RRNE R A AR
FAFNE(ARBTT)

o R SRR R
5B HIAEER AR DR
N (ARETT)

Profit for the year attributable to equity

holders of the Company (RMB'000) 120,188 163,332
Less: undistributed earnings attributable to

unvested restricted shares during vesting

period (RMB'000) (2,618) (16,368)

ARt ESRERRTN D
ARRIEBESFEA
FEMEAE (AR TT)

Profit attributable to the ordinary
equity holders of the Company used in
calculating basic earnings per share

(RMB’000) 117,570 146,964
BE{TLEAINEFIIE Weighted average number of ordinary
(F%) equity shares in issue ('000) 400,750 375,890

HERNER R PR
BARENEZ Sk
EAREH (A

Basic earnings per share for profit
attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company during the year

ARETTIR) (expressed in RMB per share) 0.29 0.39
(b) EREBERR (b) Diluted earnings per share

BERESRFNARANEETER Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the

ERBAET - A5t : determination of basic earnings per share to take into

account:

s  BEHAREEXRSK e undistributed earnings attributable to unvested
DGR IRAFINEZ restricted shares during the vesting period added
oFf & back to the numerator, and

. BB B EITEINGE e  the weighted average number of additional ordinary
EEETRREERNE shares that would have been outstanding assuming
SN AT H R SN AR Y the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary

IREFEE - shares.
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HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

14 SREF (&)
(b) SREBBER (K)

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share (Continued)

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

20215 20204
2021 2020

ARG EESREARRFR
ARBEBERTEARE
HFE(ARETT)

m: REBXRHIN NGB
HAEEORD AT
(AR®TT)

Profit attributable to the ordinary

equity holders of the Company used

in calculating basic earnings per share

(RMB'000) 117,570 146,964
Add: undistributed earnings

attributable to unvested restricted

shares during vesting period

(RMB'000) 2,618 16,368

ARt ESREER NN
ARREBESFEA
FEMEAE (ARETT)

RIEtEBRER BN D&
B & B BN S B (AR

AT EEREERNHE

BRI (T

Profit attributable to the ordinary

equity holders of the Company used

in calculating diluted earnings

per share (RMB'000) 120,188 163,332
Weighted average number of ordinary

shares used as the denominator in

calculating basic earnings per share

('000) 400,750 375,890
Adjustments for calculation of diluted

earnings per share:

Restricted shares ("000) 29,418 43,172

RIEtEEREERN MO &
O A S B B R AN
T8 (TR

LEARARR RIS A ARG
MEZz SR ER T
(AR ARETIIR)

Weighted average number of ordinary

shares and potential ordinary

shares used as the denominator in

calculating diluted earnings per

share ("000) 430,168 419,062
Diluted earnings per share for profit

attributable to equity holders of

the Company during the year

(expressed in RMB per share) 0.28 0.39
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14 8RER (&)

(c)

RBEZIENER

RN EZRFERTREINR
R il B £ 70 57 I 2 B AR AR A3 7
B - SREARFNEEL R
FEARR IR o ZRHIRHR
BEAANERESROEAN -
7 F FETLAR 57 B 1O 32 IR | B 0 FE
HEVR D ECARFIE L TR - N5+
HEREARNE - ZFERHT
BREELBBRINEFIEA -

BREERNNEECHAZR
B - HEREARF KR
BB ESERE SRS F
H o

B RS RGO BN
25

HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(c)

Information concerning the classification of
securities

Restricted shares granted to employees under share award
schemes are not regarded as outstanding until they are
vested. The restricted shares have not been included in
the determination of basic earnings per share. Restricted
shares are entitled to undistributed earnings during the
vesting period, and the numerator should be adjusted for
undistributed earnings attributable to unvested restricted
shares. These shares are excluded from the weighted
average number of ordinary shares for the calculation of
basic earning per share.

Restricted shares have been included in the determination
of diluted earnings per share. The adjustment to basic
earnings per share are added back to the numerator in
diluted earnings per share.

Details relating to the restricted shares are set out in Note
25.
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HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021
15 RE 15 DIVIDENDS
BZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,
202145 20204
2021 2020
AR®T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
% 2.5k (a) Dividend distribution (a) 69,800 -
BERHREER Proposed final dividend of
AR#0.0767T(b) RMBO0.076 per share (b) 40,058 -

16

(@ M2021%F11 /8128 » AAA]
ERBEEKRELHAREEE9.80
AEL - IERARKO. 1645
JC ° IR BB R2021F 11 A25
RIS o

(b) BZ=2021F12A318IEFE
EFRARE0.076 THIIRE (&
BRENHARARKL006B S
70) B R AR AR 2021 F LR
BAERE LEI - KPBEHRE
WA R ZIEEMNRE

(@) On November 12, 2021, the Company declared a cash
dividend of approximately RMB69.80 million, being
RMBO0.1645 per share. The dividend has been paid on
November 25, 2021.

(b) A dividend in respect of the year ended December 31,
2021 of RMBO0.076 per share, amounting to a total
dividend of approximately RMB40.06 million, is to be
approved at the 2021 annual general meeting of the
Company. These financial statements do not reflect this
dividend payable.

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

RENFEER

BARR Z2RERAR
BERE ETRA RZ& RE ERRiE @t

Leasehold

improvement

and

infrastucture

Office of safety

Medical  Electronic furniture Motor  and medical
equipment  equipment and fixtures  vehicles treatment Total
ARBTT ARBTR ARMTR AR%T:R ARBTT AR¥TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000

A Cost:

#202051R18 At January 1, 2020 15,668 19,472 12,769 217 266,725 314,851
HE Additions 12,905 8,258 6,050 574 130,408 158,195
e Disposal (566) (995) (414) - (49,449)  (51,424)
#2020%12A318 At December 31, 2020 28,007 26,735 18,405 791 347,684 421,622
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HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

16 Y% - BERS%E (&) 16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
HENFEER
HINE Y ZE2RBRAR
BR%ME ETRfE RFA "E ERRE @t
Leasehold
improvement
and
infrastucture
Office of safety
Medical  Electronic furniture Motor and medical
equipment  equipment and fixtures  vehicles treatment Total
ARETR ARETn AR®Tn AR%TR ARETR AR%ETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
120211818 At January 1, 2021 28,007 26,735 18,405 791 347,684 421,622
WEEF AR (532) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 32) - 228 - 34 262
NE Additions 11,417 11,606 6,510 4 204,632 234,169
HE Disposal (1,427) (1,728) (1,286) - (24,741)  (29,182)
120215128318 At December 31, 2021 37,997 36,841 23,629 795 527,609 626,871
ZEHHE Accumulated depreciation:
1202051818 At January 1, 2020 (3,582) (7,572) (3,054) (169) (69,338) (83,715)
ik Depreciation (3,858) (6,512) (3,062) (72) (62,228)  (75,732)
HE Disposal 267 685 214 - 46,096 47,262
720205124318 At December 31, 2020 (7,173) (13,399) (5,902) (241) (85,470)  (112,185)
202151818 At January 1, 2021 (7,173) (13,399) (5,902) (241) (85,470)  (112,185)
il Depreciation (6,418) (7,840) (4,049) (136) (73,586)  (92,029)
e Disposal 616 1,538 661 - 24,781 27,55
R2021512 A31H At December 31, 2021 (12,975) (19,701) (9,290) (377 (134,315)  (176,658)
REFE: Net carrying amount:
72020128318 At December 31, 2020 20,834 13,336 12,503 550 262,214 309,437
R20215124318 At December 31, 2021 25,022 17,140 14,339 418 393,294 450,213
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HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

16 Y% - BERS%E (&) 16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
EMXE ABFEIRE G 2 E K Depreciation expenses have been charged to profit or loss and
REI@WT presented in the consolidated statements of comprehensive

income as follows:

HZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,

20215 20204
2021 2020
ARETR ARKEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HE KRG A Cost of sales and services 79,012 65,457
—M AT General and administrative expenses 3,628 2,607
HEREHAX Selling and marketing expenses 9,226 7,519
R Research and development expenses 163 149
92,029 75,732
==
17 HE 17 LEASES
(a) REHEEEBRERN (a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance
S sheets
A12H31H
As at December 31,
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®ET T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEREEE Right-of-use assets
HEgF Leased buildings 925,142 810,653
HEEE Lease liabilities
E Current 185,055 147,051
FEMED Non-current 762,303 682,879

947,358 829,930
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17 HE (&)

(a) REHEERBRERAN
=8 (%)

REHEERBRNEREEE

HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

17 LEASES (Continued)

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance
sheets (Continued)

The movement in right-of-use assets in the consolidated

HEWT balance sheets are as follows:
BZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,
202145 20204
2021 2020
AR¥T T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2% Cost
REH] At beginning of the year 1,032,566 631,817
NE Additions 380,569 436,853
FHEDH Lease expiration (44,511) (16,561)
HEE LRI Termination of lease contracts (32,006) (19,543)
AEEMRG) Lease modification (i) (86,075) -
RER At end of the year 1,250,543 1,032,566
A& Accumulated depreciation
REL) At beginning of the year (221,913) (136,832)
FRITERE Depreciation charge for the year (159,679) (109,278)
HERE Lease expiration 44,511 16,561
HEEOIE Termination of lease contracts 11,680 7,636
RER At end of the year (325,401) (221,913)
REFE Net book amount
RER At end of the year 925,142 810,653

0)

REER2020F5 AR A
— XA E—REWE M
EHATF - AR EBEANE
¥ AEENR202147 A31
ARIEZAEASH  RER
2021458 A2 HEFTHABA R
RN — 0 theE o RECEZ AT
HEBWELE -

=

(i) The Group has leased a property for a new clinic in Beijing
in May 2020 with a term of six years. Due to the change of
the lessor, the Group terminated this lease contract on July
31, 2021 and then entered into another agreement with the
new lessor on August 25, 2021. The change has no impact
on the operation of the clinic.
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HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

17 FHE (&)
(b) RA2EKBRERN

17 LEASES (Continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
k| statements of comprehensive income

BZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,

202145 20204
2021 2020
ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TREEENERX Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets 107,729 88,557
EFEMmAMmMEHAME %  Rental reduction or waives due to
(B$3£2.25) COVID-19 (Note 2.25) = (5,567)
FER S (FEE11) Interest expense (Note 11) 48,003 34,800
MHRERREAX Expense relating to short-term leases 18,693 13,956
(c) {Eﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬁédﬁéﬁ)\bﬂf (c) Depreciation of right-of-use assets are charged
Eh - to the following categories:
BZE12A318LEFE
Year ended December 31,
20215 20204
2021 2020
AR% T ARKEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
SHE AR A AN Cost of sales and services 98,862 81,796
—MRITHAE General and administrative expenses 3,544 3,208
HEREHMAX Selling and marketing expenses 5,323 3,553
N Subtotal 107,729 88,557
BRI AREWEREN  Capitalised as leasehold improvement
e RERAEAREE and infrastucture of safety and
medical treatment 51,950 20,721
159,679 109,278

(d) #=2021512A831HI-FE -
HERESRHBRBOAARE
221EB T (20205 : AR
147EBETT) °

(2020: RMB147 million).

(d) The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended
December 31, 2021 are approximately RMB221 million
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HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

B4 [ Be st
Software Trademarks Goodwill Total
ARBTRT AR%®TR AR®ETR AR%®TxR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

B Cost:
20201 A1H At January 1, 2020 3,733 - - 3,733
NE Additions 643 - - 643
202012 A31H At December 31, 2020 4,376 - - 4,376
MR2021F1A1H At January 1, 2021 4,376 - - 4,376
WA (fiEE32) Acquisition of a subsidiary

(Note 32) - 4,758 25,157 29,915
AE Additions 8,240 772 - 9,012
& Disposal (197) = = (197)
M2021F12A31H At December 31, 2021 12,419 5,530 25,157 43,106
Eqg ol Accumulated amortisation:
20201 A1H At January 1, 2020 (426) - - (426)
b2 Amortisation (403) - - (403)
202012 A31H At December 31, 2020 (829) - - (829)
R2021F1 818 At January 1, 2021 (829) - - (829)
ji3is Amortisation (1,174) (43) - (1,217)
HE& Disposal 197 = = 197
7M2021%F12H31H At December 31, 2021 (1,806) (43) - (1,849)
BRTENFHE ¢ Net carrying amount:
2020512 4318 At December 31, 2020 3,547 - - 3,547
202112 A31H At December 31, 2021 10,613 5,487 25,157 41,257
(a) BEFRIFABRIREHEE (@) Amortisation expenses have been charged to profit or

WHRKREHNWT -

loss and presented in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income as follows:

BE12A31BLEE
Year ended December 31,

20215 20204

2021 2020

ARETR ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

—MRITHRAE General and administrative expenses 1,206 401
HEREHMAX Selling and marketing expenses 2 2
e Research and development expenses 9 -

1,217 403




212

EREBEEEAERAT  YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

B O B 15 R Y R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE2021F 128318 ILFE

18 |BILEE (&)

(b)

202145 A31 8 - BUREFEH
BEHRLERAR ([BEFEE])
EENHENARESBEETE
DEEBEFEENRSELSEM
([REEEBM]) - UETRE
BIFR - A2021F12A31H &
B E R EEITRE S - Bk
BELEMEEEEEBRHITIR
Bl &30 mE (EERES - T
REFEAEE(FREE]DFTE
BE - EFTRERNRELER
BRENHAFHMBEENE

METER

THREHHMN2021F12A8318E
BEETRSRETEMNAETE
BRENHMKENSEEER

= .
B -

2022 F WA 10%
(% FIEREK)

2023 F2025F A 15%
(% FIEREK)

2026 F WA 8%
(% FIEREK)

BRI RE 2%

B B AT AL IR 2R 18.3%

MR2021F 128318 @ IREFEA
BEFENRSEEBMA IR
L4 ARKI6EETREEA
RE¥33EETHNEREBEARES
BHETL EREEDEZEETNEHE
HEBBRENAETLEES A
7 45 5% 51 (E () 7] 86 5| B AR E B iR
WERRE S FERIIBR ©

EEEEETHERENROH
REDHT o TREFIN20214F
12A31BRAEINREZEREH
FiBE A ge 28 R NME A EERE
FR B N B AE S 5 BR TR SRR KR A &
& :

FPAERE
BB

-0.7%
1.3%

For the year ended December 31, 2021

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(b)

The goodwill of approximately RMB25 million arising
from the acquisition of Nu/Hart Hair Solutions Limited
(“NU/Hart”) on May 31, 2021 has been allocated to the
cash generating unit ("CGU") of NU/Hart for impairment
testing. As at December 31, 2021, management performed
an impairment assessment on the goodwill. The recoverable
amounts of the hair transplant business operated by NU/
Hart have been assessed by an independent valuer and
determined based on value-in-use (“VIU") calculation.
The calculation used cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by
management.

The following table sets forth each key assumption on
which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill as at December
31, 2021:

Revenue 2022 10%
(% annual growth rate)

Revenue 2023 to 2025 15%
(% annual growth rate)

Revenue 2026 8%
(% annual growth rate)

Terminal growth rate 2%

Pre-tax discount rate 18.3%

As at December 31, 2021, the recoverable amount of
the CGU of RMB36 million calculated based on VIU
calculation exceeded its carrying value of RMB33 million by
RMB3 million. Management has considered and assessed
reasonably possible changes for other key assumptions
and have not identified any instances that could cause the
carrying amount to exceed their recoverable amount.

Management has undertaken sensitivity analysis on the
impairment test of goodwill. The following table sets
forth all possible changes to the key assumptions of the
impairment test and the changes taken in isolation in
the VIU calculations that would remove the remaining
headroom as at December 31, 2021:

-0.7%
1.3%

Annual revenue growth rate
Discount rate
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HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The directors of the Company considered there is no
reasonably possible change in key parameters would cause
the carrying amount of each CGU to exceed its recoverable
amount.

By reference to the recoverable amount assessed by the
independent valuer as at December 31, 2021, the directors
of the Company determined that no impairment provision
on goodwill for 2021.

The trademark of approximately RMB5 million is identified
in the acquisition of Nu/Hart on May 31, 2021. As of
the valuation date, the revenue of NU/Hart mainly comes
from hair transplant services with the Nu/Hart trademark.
Management considered that NU/Hart will provide
continuous service by using the trademark after acquisition
and by reference to the valuation report, this trademark
will make revenue contribution for 11 years and after that,
the incremental economic benefit became immaterial.
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19 €T EDE 19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
LREE ®12H31H
Financial assets As at December 31,
202145 20204
2021 2020
B et ARETT ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REIERATTEN S Financial assets at amortised cost:
BE
g 7 EUGRIA Trade receivables 20 13,351 10,330
Be RAMEWFIE Deposits and other receivables 21 57,442 52,038
REMRSFEY Cash and cash equivalents 23 1,566,192 292,856
1,636,985 355,224
TRAasE R12H31H
Financial liabilities As at December 31,
20214 20204
2021 2020
B aE AR¥TT AREEFTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
RE R AT EN S Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
af& -
R Borrowings 26 74,173 25,870
2 5 R HEMER A Trade and other payables (excluding
(T BIEENTIER tax payables and accrued
FEEHE EEFI) employee benefits) 27 121,274 63,600
HEAE Lease liabilities 17 947,358 829,930
1,142,805 919,400
ASEERM ML ESm T AREA The Group's exposure to various risks associated with the
MZIEER - RRERRAENREA financial instruments is discussed in Note 3. The maximum
FERRBHROR EASHEIERERE exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the
2 BRTEE - carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned

above.
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20 TRADE RECEIVABLES

M12H31H
As at December 31,
20214 20204
2021 2020
ARET T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
REFFLONE ZEWRTE Trade receivables from contracts with
customers
—8=75 — Third parties 13,489 10,409
OB R Less: allowance for impairment (138) (79)
13,351 10,330
(a) rxEBE—RELEAET P WER (@) The Group usually receives the payment from customers

B BHRERRFBEBEERERE
FESBERMEHEE =N
FEEBENTNEREELE
ZHAXNFERE RETFE=
B FEamEERRERE
EEEF  —MREBEHAISAR -
2021F - AEBERBRATER
FPiH#Emm —REEHACHE
A BBEZAHETNEHER

in advance. The trade receivable is primarily the receivable
from financial institutions or the third party payment
platforms which the customers have already settled their
payment through financial institutions or the third party
payment platforms. The credit term given to the third
party payment platforms are determined on an individual
basis with normal credit period within 15 days. The Group
starts to sell goods to the corporate customers in 2021
and generally offers them a credit term of 6 months. The

RIERBROITAT - ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on invoice
date is as follows:
®12A31H
As at December 31,
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR¥ T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
=@ AR Up to 3 months 12,305 10,403
=ZEXEA 3 to 6 months 1,184 6
13,489 10,409
B R EEE Less: allowance for impairment (138) (79)
#agt Total 13,351 10,330
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20 EZRWFE (8) 20 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
(b) EZRERWRENAREE (b) Fair values of trade receivables

R E YRR B E
HEEERRREEAABERK

B -
(0 BERER ()

REMEE3.1(0) ATl - 720204
F2021F12A31HWME S EW
REEBREBETDOT

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables,
their carrying amounts are considered to be approximately
the same as their fair values.

Impairment and risk exposure
On the basis as described in Note 3.1(c), the loss allowance

for trade receivables as at December 31, 2020 and 2021
are determined as follows:

W12A31H
As at December 31,
20215 2020F
2021 2020
A8 EBERE B EEEE
BEX KRELE HE BEX KELE BE
Gross Loss Gross Loss

Expected  carrying allowance  Expected carrying  allowance
loss rate  amount provision loss rate amount  provision

ARETT ARBTRT ARETFT ARBTT
RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000

B ENRE Trade receivables
- SEkE - Financial institutions 0.08% 10,958 9 0.22% 8,191 18
-E=H%NEAE ~ Third party payment platforms 1.63% 673 " 2.75% 2,218 61
-(hEER ~ Corporate customers 6.35% 1,858 118 - - -

13,489 138 10,409 79
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21 FE{IEE - 4B EM 21 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

=+
P& W K18 RECEIVABLES
R12H31H
As at December 31,
20215 20204
2021 2020
ARBT T ARKEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARBEE Included in current assets
AT RRIE Prepayments
BE ks SRR & Advertising and information technology
services fee 27,410 37,454
MERYEEERE Rental and property management fees 6,585 5,342
BERRERBE Professional and agency service fees 2,737 2,315
BERFE Purchase of inventory 8,240 4,441
Eh Others 5,861 2,473
50,833 52,025
AR A IR SR E Deductible input VAT 7.683 3,367
H{th fE W g Other receivables
% (a) Deposits (a) 52,809 43,606
AT IEERE S (D) Cash advance to employees (b) 649 479
JRE L A B O 7R Amounts due from related parties = 133
Hith Others 6,250 10,298
59,708 54,516
AL E A E UK IB AR E B () Less: provision for impairment of other
receivables (c) (2,266) (2,478)
57,442 52,038
NET Subtotal 115,958 107,430
SAERBEE Included in non-current assets
Y - BE REEENRIE Prepayments for property, plant and
equipment 1,508 4,095
et Total 117,466 111,525
(a) REFEZVREMHSRES (a) Deposits consists primarily of security deposits for rental.
(by B_NFREEMNRESAEERT % (b) Cash advance to employees are unsecured, interest-free

BRIZENRER

and repayable on demand.
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21 FE{IEE - 4B EM 21 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

FEWEhIE (& RECEIVABLES (Continued)
(0 REREER (c)  Impairment and risk exposure
BN E3. ()Pt B & - R On the basis as described in Note 3.1(c), the loss allowance
EHRIZEEK AT ENEMS for other financial assets at amortised cost as at the end of
BEEMNEEEGETHOT ¢ reporting periods are determined as follows:
®12A318
As at December 31,
20214 20204
2021 2020
B BRRE TEH BERE
BEE KREARE HE BEX  KELE BES
Gross Loss Gross Loss

Expected carrying allowance  Expected carrying  allowance
loss rate amount provision loss rate amount  provision

ARETR AR%TrR ARETT ARETT
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
HitEKHE Other receivables

- &% - Deposits 4.10% 52,809 2,164 5.14% 43,606 2,242
-4 FEEMEE - Cash advance to employees 0.77% 649 5 0.84% 479 4

— e ERRE R — Amounts due from related
parties - - - - 133 -
— B fb YR - Other receivables 1.55% 6,250 97 2.25% 10,298 232

59,708 2,266 54,516 2,478
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22 78 22 INVENTORIES
A12H31H
As at December 31,
20214 20204
2021 2020
ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
) & B R M Pharmaceuticals and medical consumables 17,617 11,305
BimEEREM Medical hair care consumables 12,883 8,621
SRR EIREE fh Wash and hair care products 16,894 3,876
HAh Others 5,744 3,194
53,138 26,996
W FERERE Less: allowance for impairment of
inventories - -
53,138 26,996
BHZE2021F12A31HLFE - BRA Inventories recognised as cost of sales and services during the

23

HERRBKXANTFENBARE 101
BET (2020512831 : AR#64H

years ended December 31, 2021 amounted to approximately
RMB101 million (December 31, 2020: approximately RMB64

Bi) o million).
ReERBAESEEY 23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AEH ®12A31H
The Group As at December 31,
20215 20204
2021 2020
AR®BTT ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
RITFR Bank deposits 1,565,882 292,763
FERS Cash on hand 310 93
ReRBEEFED Cash and cash equivalents 1,566,192 292,856
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23 WERBEEEEY (&) 23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Continued)
$%Eﬁiﬁ$\&£ﬁﬁ%{;§;%ﬁ’gﬂﬁﬁﬁ The carrying amount of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
TRVAT B HSEHE - are denominated in the following currencies:
R12H31H
As at December 31,
20215 20204
2021 2020
ARETR ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE RMB 385,502 292,856
v usb 7,250 -
BT HKD 1,173,440 -
1,566,192 292,856
AT ®12831H
The Company As at December 31,
20215 20204
2021 2020
AR¥T T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
RITER Bank deposits 1,176,033 -
HekReZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,176,033 -
ARANBE e AR EEMHEREE The carrying amount of the Company's cash and cash
THRATEHETE - equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:
MA12H31H
As at December 31,
20214 20204
2021 2020
ARBTT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
E usD 7,218 -
BT HKD 1,168,815 -

1,176,033 -
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NAFR2020F9 A1 7HERERE
ML ARRCNERAR - HE
MR BE - AR R HIAETE R
7K &50,000% 7T+ 9 45,000,000,000
B E A% E{E0.00001 ETHIBED -

(a)

(b)

202069 A17H » RE%XAE
RIBEA  BEALAE - UEHL
£ BEEZ LT BEEERRK
MELEEBBRESATRBE
ZEHBSEMKIMNFEREHA
Al P RREEA LR R
BEFREOIRERNRTRMD
20214961 A29A - LK LiFR
i@Yonghe Hair Service Holdings
Limited (HEXRBRE X HST
MEC %R EBE R AR) » CYH
KHu & Yan ' 9 RliEHEEELL
TEBROFRLEORBERD
Akt c RERMNBEAHA
100,000,000% °

D REZENIRSRERN2021
F6HARRELS  ARHIR
MR2021F5 1085 °

R2021F 48268 » AR A
EREARKSIGEELAZY
Investment Capital Ltd.Z77
6,382,979 B R EE0.00001
ETHRG - HERRGET
FERKE AR R B #96.0% ©
I - BRAS R H A R A
REA4ATRARESIBETT ©
RER2021F5 A17ABEX
(NI

HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

24 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

On September 17, 2020, the Company was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability. As of the date of incorporation, the initial authorised
share capital of the Company was US$50,000 divided into
5,000,000,000 shares with a par value of US$0.00001 each.

(a)

On September 17, 2020, Mr. Zhang Yu, Mr. Zhang Hui,
Mr. Nie Lei, Mr. Geng lJiagi, Ms. Duan Sigi, Mr. Tan Xu
and Mr. Song Linfeng subscribed shares in the Company
in proportion to their ultimate shareholdings in Beijing
Haiyouyou respectively through their respective special
purpose vehicles incorporated in the BVI. On January 29,
2021, Panmao Shanghai through Yonghe Hair Service
Holdings Limited, its special purpose vehicle incorporated
in BVI, CYH and Hu & Yan subscribed shares in the
Company in proportion to their shareholdings in Beijing
Haiyouyou respectively. The number of subscribed shares is
100,000,000 in total.

The cash considerations for the share subscriptions was
fully settled on June 4, 2021 and the shares exchanges
were completed on May 10, 2021.

On April 26, 2021, the Company issued 6,382,979 shares
with a par value of US$0.00001 each to ZY Investment
Capital Ltd., representing approximately 6.0% of the
shares of the Company in issue upon completion of
the share issuance at a consideration of RMB89 million.
Therefore, the share capital and other reserves were
increased by RMB414 and RMB89 million, respectively. The
consideration was fully paid on May 17, 2021.
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24 BARR B RE (&)

(o]

R2021F11 8128 » KRR
RERE— L mMEEEITRG
A ABRGBAHF]) - BHOE
BB SM0.00001ETEE A
FAZ0.0000025% 7T - BEREZ
BHHiFE - RRARNB T
fE A A425,531,916 1 F R EE
0.00000253 LK IS ©

R2021F12H138 » AR AR
BIAEF15.808 THEREER
BEARNNFFARMEEO0.0000025
ETNEBER(BEESAMAE
9,443,000 %10 & B R 2 &
84,981,000 1) - £ & At
ARGIBRATERLEM < I
DBREMSREREONAARE
1,218B&ETT - 2HEENRM
BIIRANBARE6BEETT -
W50 AR AR 1 )6 B B 1R o

For the year ended December 31, 2021

24 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

(Continued)

(o]

On November 12, 2021, the shareholders of the Company
resolved to conduct a share split (the “Share Split”) on a
one-for-four basis, and the nominal value of the Shares
will be changed from USD0.00001 each to USD0.0000025
each. Immediately after such Share Split, the issued
share capital of the Company is 425,531,916 shares of
US$0.0000025 each.

On December 13, 2021, the Company was listed on Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with
the global offering with a par value of ordinary share
of USD0.0000025 each of the Company including, a
public offering in Hong Kong of 9,443,000 shares and an
international offering of 84,981,000 shares, in each case
at a price of HKD15.80 per share. The gross proceeds
from the share offering were approximately RMB1,218
million. The share issuance cost of the global offering were
approximately RMB66 million and recorded as a deduction
of share premium.

il e gE! A& B 7 4 18
Number of Share Share
ordinary shares capital premium
ARBTTT AREBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
EE Authorized
M2021F12A31H As at December 31, 2021 5,000,000,000 323 -
BEITREE Issued and fully paid
7A2020512A831H As at December 31, 2020 - - -
BTN (a) Issue of shares (a) 400,000,000 7 -
MZY Investment Capital Issue of shares to ZY
Ltd. 1T (b) Investment Capital Ltd. (b) 25,531,916 - 88,689
HENEEmET Issuance of ordinary shares
T (d) upon global offering (d) 94,424,000 1 1,217,986
F& 1D BT TRC AN (d) Share issuance costs (d) = = (66,267)
BT R Issued and fully paid
7A2021%12831H As at December 31, 2021 519,955,916 8 1,240,408
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25 R AEREN T 25 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

(a) KiDEEEETE

(a) Share award schemes

M2020F3 A318  tFFHK
B % B B AR A T DA BR (D A A A
HEF T BIFES (RIERBIEE)
HITER B 1) BEBAKR
AEIRER M T8 KRR (B
EFABRINUARBIITEE
THRERRELERI18EZA
B EEHEALEUMARF
B (8% B naTEI]) : 2)
RABBAARBSIBEE TN
ERRELEEEITH6% AR
A (6% EERMGEE) °
ALt + 202053 H31 BHR ALK&
HTE AR AEMA AR D
HE (L EHED -

8% EERMHHE

202194238 » KARE
GREXRERRBRERIN) ([E
EAD RIE8%EEB R MDA EIM
THMEERERATRES
BHE R AR A A5 Bl e iR 4 at
5,000,000 /% ¥ 3,000,000 A% 3% {5
(D BUEAR AT B BTG HI5%
K3%) o RMDEREIZEREAS
BRARR AT FI#ST o

RIEZATE RERER118%
tEREE ([6EKER] 25
JE1% 5,000,000 4% % 3,000,000 f%
[ R o % F iR E A AWML BR
IHREERE - BRTAEERE
BRBRMIENAERE XA ARE
Bk BHEEREERK—T
HRBHRBE - EP30% W%
ERMAIRBEBECEKREEES
BB R AREERTRRFR
TEERRE BB - 30% ISR |]
REBEEREEESERANR
ANHABERTTR = FIRISER S
B #$T40% AN BEEERE
BEABRERAMBEERTK
WFERISHR SRS - WE EBE
BRZBBTBEZRRAAR
TR H B hEB B AL
EERVINEEERS M 5%
REFR (@A) EITEEE -

On March 31, 2020, the shareholders of the Beijing
Haiyouyou communicated the details of the share-based
compensation scheme including the performance criteria
with the grantees, pursuant to which, 1) shareholders
(other than Beijing Xunyi) of Beijing Haiyouyou who would
convert to the shareholder of the Company would transfer
in total 8% of the shares of the Company to Mr. Zhang Yu
and 118 eligible employees at a consideration of RMB111
million (the “8% Employee Share Plan”); 2) the Company
would issue approximately 6% of the shares of the
Company to Mr. Zhang Yu at a consideration of RMB89
million (the “6% Employee Share Plan”). Accordingly,
March 31, 2020 is considered as the grant date (the “grant
date”) of the selected share-based compensation.

8% Employee Share Plan

On April 23, 2021, shareholders (other than Mr. Zhang Yu
and Mr. Zhang Hui) of the Company (the “Transferors”)
transferred in total 5,000,000 and 3,000,000 shares
(representing 5% and 3% of the issued shares in the
Company, respectively) to Yunuo Technology Holdings
Limited and Zhirui Technology Holdings Limited,
respectively, under the 8% Employee Share Plan. The
shares transferred was in proportion to the Transferors
respective shareholding in the Company.

Under the plan, Mr. Zhang Yu and 118 eligible employees
(the “eligible employees”) were granted 5,000,000 and
3,000,000 shares, respectively. The shares granted to Mr.
Zhang Yu would be vested when the consideration have
been paid. The shares granted to eligible employees would
be vested when such eligible employees complete a certain
service period after QIPO. In which, 30% of these shares
could be vested when such eligible employees complete a
two-year service period after QIPO, 30% of these shares
could be vested when such eligible employees complete
a three-year service period after QIPO, and the remaining
40% could vest when such eligible employees complete a
four-year service period after QIPO. If an eligible employee
ceases the employment by the Company within this period,
the awarded shares will be repurchased by employee
incentive platform, at the price that the employees initially
purchased, and if applicable, plus 4.5% per annum
interest.
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25 LR AEERNE®M 25 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
(%) (Continued)

(a) KBS ()

(a) Share award schemes (Continued)

8% EE R EHE (&)

LER AR 13.89 T ERAR
NEBEREBEHARBI1IMEELE
HEREELEMZSAEREERD
M2021F5 AEHEN - B T4
RESEMBROEESRES -

THEAEERAR AR ([ TEl)
R2021F1 A1 HERE R 2B
SHEHMKY - AREEEEEH
Ao BERBIEBRAR A ([
=) R2021F1 B15BERE
BB SEMA - ARERER
HIEH A EREENEESE

Fha
6% ERR P&

202148268  KARQFA]
REcewEERMOEMZY
Investment Capital Ltd. 27T
6,382,979k - IEA QT
f& 5 #16.0% ° ZY Investment
Capital Ltd.1E 3R JEE 2 5k
K- BRESLRELEHRE o &
TTRELAENROPNREES
NRERE -

BITHEEERARKE13.89 T
HEMRREBARBSIEELERN
2021 F5AZT - mMAAERKRGE
EHB -

8% Employee Share Plan (Continued)

The total consideration for the shares calculated at the
price. of RMB13.89 per share of approximately RMB111
million were fully paid by Mr. Zhang Yu and those eligible
employees in May 2021 and the shares granted to Mr.
Zhang Yu had been vested.

Yunuo Technology Holdings Limited (the “Yunuo”) was
incorporated in the BVI on January 15, 2021 and wholly
owned by Mr. Zhang Yu. Zhirui Technology Holdings
Limited (the “Zhirui”) was incorporated in the BVI as a
limited company on January 15, 2021 as an employee
incentive platform for the eligible employees, which is
controlled by the controlling shareholders.

6% Employee Share Plan

On April 26, 2021, the Company issued 6,382,979 shares,
representing approximately 6.0% of the shares of the
Company, to ZY Investment Capital Ltd. under the 6%
Employee Share Plan. ZY Investment Capital Ltd. was
incorporated in the BVI and wholly owned by Mr. Zhang
Yu. The share issued to Mr. Zhang Yu would be vested
when the consideration have been paid.

The consideration of RMB89 million in total at an exercise
price of RMB13.89 each share were paid in May 2021 and
the shares granted had been vested.
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(%)

(a)

(b)

B0 SR BT & ()

REBEFABBRRESREAE
R ERMETEE THEER Y
RELBHNARBEEE AT
AR 14.197T - B ERR (0
ARIRE R AR RRIBIER) & E
HEFEHEEEETE c BEESR
BOFEIETRON AR EEE

HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

25 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
(Continued)

(a) Share award schemes (Continued)

The Group has applied discounted cash flow method
to determine the fair value of the underlying shares of
RMB14.19 per share under the respective Employee
Share Plan on the grant dates. Best estimates of key
assumptions, such as discount rate and projections of
future performance, are required to be determined by
management. Key assumptions used in determining the

FArRERHBEET - fair value of shares under the Employee Share Plans are as
follows:

8% EERMDTE 6%EERMBEE
8% Employee 6% Employee
Share Plan Share Plan
ALIR & Discount rate 13.5% 13.5%
2 L P ) Risk-free interest rate 3.21% 3.21%
R Volatility 53% 53%
Tz EE I AT R Discount for lack of marketability 10% 10%

BERMEE T EBROEA W
HERFEIMT

(b) Set out below are the movement in the number of
awarded shares under the Employee Share Plans :

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

20214 20204

2021 2020

TR T

‘000 ‘000

REF] At the beginning of year 14,382,979 -

e Granted - 14,382,979

B Vested (11,382,979) -

RER At the end of year 3,000,000 14,382,979
R AR H I Shares not yet granted at the end of

year
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25 LU 0 B E 11 & BN
(%)

() UBRHRERNZINARS

EENRX

For the year ended December 31, 2021

25 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
(Continued)

(c) Expenses arising from share-based payment

transactions

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

202145 20204
2021 2020
ARETR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
RIEE BT 83T Share award schemes issued under
B 1 22 mh =+ &1 the Employee Share Plans 184 3,606

M2021412 8318 - UEH A
EMINRIEENRFIFATLY
BARKE3ISEET  HEFA
LARRAD B BB S BN R -

26 B

As at December 31, 2021, the accumulated expenses arising
from share-based payment transactions amounting to
approximately RMB3.8 million, with the corresponding credit to
the share-based compensation reserve.

26 BORROWINGS

M12H318
As at December 31,
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR¥T T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
52 ERIRTTIE X Short-term bank borrowings
— IR — Unsecured 74,173 25,870
@t Total 74,173 25,870

(a)

(b)

(o]

MR2021F12H318 » RITER
BN F4.00% E4.90% K [E F F
FZE B (202056128318 ¢
EFRENTF3.89%%F4.35%) °

MR2021F12H318 » RITER
AR —F(2020F12H318
—F)ANEE -

MR2021F12 8318 » RITER
BEER (20205612A8318 -
AREXERERBETERLIE
R) e

MR2021FE K%20205F12H318 -
AREFREEATE  FitZ
LEFNAREEREETDER

“++

Eo

MR2021FE %2020 12 H318 -
EFNEmMEAAREE -

As at December 31, 2021, the bank borrowings carry
interest at fixed rate ranging from 4.00% to 4.90% per
annum (December 31, 2020: from 3.89% to 4.35% per
annum).

As at December 31, 2021, the bank borrowings are
repayable within one year (December 31, 2020: one year).

As at December 31, 2021, the bank borrowings are
unguaranteed (December 31, 2020: guaranteed by Mr.
Zhang Yu and his spouse Ms. Li Qian).

The fair values of borrowings approximate their carrying
amounts as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 due to the
short maturities of these borrowings.

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the carrying amount
of the borrowings are denominated in RMB.
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27 EZRHEHMEMNKE 27 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
A12H31H
As at December 31,
202145 20204
2021 2020
AR%TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

B 5 ENFIE Trade payables 36,059 44,676

fEEHE B8 Accrued employee benefits 83,712 71,077

EREEG) Refund liabilities (i) 10,293 7,581

fEETER Accrued expenses 42,122 4,219

FES T8 Tax payables 20,722 3,555

RER Security deposit 4,270 3,135

FEST RS 5 38 (MF5E33(0)) Amounts due to related parties (Note 33(c)) 25,354 30

HAh Others 3,176 3,959

225,708 138,232

() AEECREBEANEENBARS (i) The Group has estimated the refund liabilities which is

KEREFHR B E (H7E2.23) - based on the Group's past experience with customers (Note
2.23).

(i) MBREEHME B KEME (i)  The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are
NRIENREEREREEAR considered to be approximated to their fair values, due to
BEESE - their short-term nature.

(i) ME|ESHR - BEFZEA R (i) Aging analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date
EHE 5 RN FIER AR D T 0 at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

T
R12H31H
As at December 31,
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR¥ET T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
=EAR Up to 3 months 29,120 37,948
=ZEREHA 3 to 6 months 3,291 3,851
NEAE—F 6 months to 1 year 1,378 2,344
—FEMF 1 to 2 years 1,961 408
HBIBRE Over 2 years 309 125

36,059 44,676
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28 EEIA®E

28 CONTRACT LIABILITIES

A12H31H
As at December 31,
202145 20204
2021 2020
AR®T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
cEERE Contract liabilities
BEEBE Hair transplant 12,268 11,196
BEERE Medical hair care 167,488 97,706
Hith Others 9,768 11,521
189,524 120,423
REEBBZEARAE EALRHE The Group classifies these contract liabilities as current because

AN

A
& R RN 5 B 0 A A R A
HEEEREMRED12(EH o

the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer for at
least 12 months after the reporting period.

(i) EREENEXRES (i) Significant changes in contract liabilities
AREKER  EESEAOH Contract liabilities for medical hair care contracts have
ARAEARTE - increased as a result of business expansion.

(i) MERFEBEEZANWA (ii) Revenue recognised in relation to contract

liabilities
TRINTAREGHEAREE SR The following table shows how much of the revenue
BEEIZHRALEE recognised in the current reporting period relates to
carried-forward contract liabilities:
BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR¥ T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BERE Hair transplant 3,862 3,075
BEEREER Medical hair care 85,251 3,285
HAh, Others 4,385 3,179
93,498 9,539
(iii) KETEY (iii) Unsatisfied contracts

EIEETER - R2021F12A31
HRX OGP ABITEESEY
ARBI7TEEIIL(2020F12A
31 : HARB6IEETL) BRE
R—FAERBRA - BEEHR
—FRIER -

Management expects that the amount of approximately
RMB97 million of the transaction to unsatisfied
obligations as at December 31, 2021 (December 31,
2020: approximately RMB61 million) will be recognised
as revenue within next one year. The remaining will be
recognised in more than one year.
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29 EEFTEH 29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
(a) EEFMEMEESITWOT ¢ (a) The analysis of deferred income tax assets is as follows:
M12H31H
As at December 31,
202145 20204
2021 2020
AR¥T T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ELEFTSHEE - Deferred income tax assets:
— BABE12E A %IEHE - Deferred income tax assets to be
FEIEFTISTHEE recovered after more than
12 months 29,739 27,115
— 1218 A AU EIEREIE - Deferred income tax assets to be
TSt &E recovered within 12 months 3,092 2,076
32,831 29,191
MRIR I S  SCH SH IR A Set-off of deferred income tax liabilities
FrEfiarE pursuant to set-off provisions (287) (179)
EEFTSHEAEFE Net deferred income tax assets 32,544 29,012
BEFTSHAE Deferred income tax liabilities:
— BRBBI12E R B&EER - Deferred income tax liabilities to be
BLEFSHAE settled after more than 12 months 852 67
— 2B A NEAEEREE - Deferred income tax liabilities to be
SR asE settled within 12 months 410 331
1,262 398
RIEH S GO SHIR T Set-off of deferred income tax assets
FrIeM&EE pursuant to set-off provisions (287) (179)
REFTSTH AEFE Net deferred income tax liabilities 975 219
(b) EEFBHREAFEESNT (b) The net movement on the deferred income tax account is
as follows:

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

20214 20204

2021 2020

AR®ET T AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000
REF] At beginning of the year 28,793 20,660

FTARGEHAZ (HE13) Credited to income tax expense

(Note 13) 3,561 8,133
Ut F | (MEE32) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 32) (785) -

RER At end of the year 31,569 28,793
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29 R/ (&) 29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
(©)  FR2021F K2020F A » IEIEFT () The gross movements in deferred income tax assets and
BHREEMBELEMSHEERRE deferred income tax liabilities during 2021 and 2020 are as
BEIOT - follows:
(y IRIEFTBFHEE (i)  Deferred income tax assets:

REAKER  NRGAER

HEEE HE BYAE BENERE B WM st
Provision for Intra-group
Tax Refund  impairment unrealised  Share-based

losses Leases liabilities of assets  profit or loss  compensation Total

ARBTT ARETR ARETRT  AR%TRT  ARBTR ARBTRT AR¥TR

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000

#2020%1518 As at January 1, 2020 11,537 7,901 1,256 375 298 - 21,367

HABR Credited to profit or loss 387 6,036 639 119 102 541 7,824
#2020 As at December 31,

12A31H 2020 11,924 13,937 1,895 494 400 541 29,191

R2021F1518 As at January 1, 2021 11,924 13,937 1,895 494 400 541 29,191

ABH Credited to profit or loss  (4,050) 7,395 678 (39) 371) 27 3,640
R2021% As at December 31,

12A31H 2021 7,874 21,332 2,573 455 29 568 32,831

(i) BRIEFTSHERE (i) Deferred income tax liabilities:
HE BREE et
Intangible

Leases assets Total

ARETR AR¥Tn AR®Tx

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

7"2020F181H As at January 1, 2020 707 - 707

FFAER Credited to profit or loss (309) - (309)

72020%12A831H As at December 31, 2020 398 - 398

e a (MEE32) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 32) = 785 785

FFAEZ® Credited to profit or loss 133 (54) 79

A2021%F12H31H As at December 31, 2021 531 731 1,262
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30 REREER 30 CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(a) EEMERE (a) Cash generated from operations
M20215F 220204 - BRFTISH Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash
AIAE B 2B P15 3R 2 MR generated from operations for 2021 and 2020:

BZ12A31HLEE
Year ended December 31,

20214 20204
2021 2020
B 5T ARET T ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MR PGB R RS Profit before income tax 210,276 230,914
BRUATEEELRFZL ©  Adjustments for:
PrE R Depreciation and amortisation 9 200,975 159,125
LARR 7 72 EE 188 & 5 BM Share-based compensation 10 184 3,606
HEWE - WER Losses on disposal of property, plant
REEE and equipment 8 1,127 3,984
EATS AR Finance costs 11 51,949 36,288
23N Finance income 11 (6,130) (941)
SMEEAREMEEE Fair value change of financial assets - (131)
WX Listing expenses = 3,827
SRVEEREBUES  Net reversal gains/(impairment losses)
OUREEE) F58 on financial assets (153) 487
EBADEE Change in working capital:
- 78 — Inventories (26,117) (12,510)
— B 5 RHEA R — Trade and other receivables,
FIE - FRNREIER prepayments and deposits
7e (8,211) (45,835)
— B RHEMERFIE - Trade and other payables 42,296 65,420
—&RABE — Contract liabilities 68,877 97,069

BEMERE Cash generated from operations 535,073 541,303




232

EREBEEEAERAT  YONGHE MEDICAL GROUP CO., LTD.

B O B 15 R Y R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE2021F 128318 ILFE

30 REREER (&)

(b) FREEMETH

(c)

For the year ended December 31, 2021

30 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Non-cash financing activities

BZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,

202145 20204
2021 2020
ARET T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
REFHAEEE Addition of right-of-use assets 380,569 436,853
EHEERmEzFA Reduction in right-of-use assets and lease
BEENHEBGRD liabilities due to lease modification
(FFEE17(a)) (Note 17(a)(i) (86,075) -
EEBYHR (c) Net debt reconciliation
R12831H
As at December 31,
20214 20204
2021 2020
BT AR® TR ARET T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BeMIBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 23 1,566,192 292,856
(R Borrowings 26 (74,173) (25,870)
HEAE Lease liabilities 17 (947,358) (829,930)
FER Net debt 544,661 (562,944)
ReERBELEED Cash and cash equivalents 23 1,566,192 292,856
BIET Gross debt (1,021,531) (855,800)
FEB Net debt 544,661 (562,944)
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30 IREFREEL (8) 30 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
(c) BEBHER(E) (c) Net debt reconciliation (Continued)
BMETBREaE
Liabilities from financing
activities
ReRBES
RE &% ZEM @gt
Cash and cash
Leases  Borrowings equivalents Total
ARETRT AR®TR AR®TRT AR®TrR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2020181 8MFEE  Net debt as at January 1,

2020 (508,040) (44,827) 89,789 (463,078)
BeRs Cash flows 132,289 18,957 203,067 354,313
e New leases (436,853) - - (436,853)
HEAYEIE Termination of lease contracts 11,907 - - 11,907
BRI B RS AR Finance costs recognised (34,800) - - (34,800)

E T i A& e 8 Rental reduction or waived due
kR to COVID-19 5,567 - - 5,567

20205128318 HK Net debt as at December 31,
FER 2020 (829,930) (25,870) 292,856 (562,944)

R2021FE1 18K FEE Net debt as at January 1,

2021 (829,930) (25,870) 292,856 (562,944)
RERE Cash flows 204,743 (47,832) 1,271,559 1,428,470
MEEE New leases (380,569) - - (380,569)
HEBRLR L Termination of lease contracts 20,326 - - 20,326
HEEH Lease modification 86,075 - - 86,075
BHERR B A A Finance costs recognised (48,003) = = (48,003)
BN (B518),/ ek Exchange (loss)/gain = (471) 1,777 1,306

72021%128318K Net debt as at December 31,

BE® 2021 (947,578) (74,173) 1,566,192 544,661
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31 A 31 COMMITMENTS
(a) BEAAEIE (a) Capital commitments
REREE RO ET LB RIERE Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of
BEMBEAEARRAZNOT : the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as
follows:
A12H31H
As at December 31,
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®ET T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEMERIERLZE2NEE Leasehold improvement and infrastucture
SRR R of safety and medical treatment 74,158 72,346
HEmE - BEKk& Other property, plant and equipment 521 1,112
74,679 73,458

(b) HEEXE

EHEE (B mREREE R
BENRHEEEE) THAEEE
HZ RARRREEENKEREN

(b) Lease commitments

The Group's future aggregate minimum lease payments
due under short-term leases (which are exempted from
recognising the related right-of-use assets and lease

I liabilities) are as follows:
A12H31H
As at December 31,
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR¥ T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FR Within 1 year 4,683 3,774
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32 ¥ 5 6t
(a) WEEEME

R2021F5A318 » REEA
R #30,000,000 8938 & K (E M
MM EEREBRAF
([#rapE ) W B AEERER
TR EEM100% RAE -
MR EmHEEXEES
RARZEREE - MEEBRY
PEEABREPL(BEREE)
(M Citron PE Holdings Limited
(TCPEl) BEEMBREBNLE)
A -

WEERELNEHENARK2S
BET DEGEARBEEFEDN
EBAELENHFERE - Bt
AR MBS T A LA S BN

WERE  FRBFEEREE
SES

HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

32 BUSINESS COMBINATION

(a) Summary of acquisition

On May 31, 2021, the Group acquired 100% equity
interest in NU/Hart, a renowned Hong Kong hair
transplant service provider, with RMB30,000,000 as cash
consideration, from Zhuhai Xinsiyu Management Service
Co., Ltd. ("Xinsiyu”), a wholly-owned by Zhuhai Siyu
Industrial Development Company Limited, which is in turn
owned by Shenzhen Zhongxiu Xinsheng Investment Center
(Limited Partners), a limited partnership managed by Citron
PE Holdings Limited (“CPE").

The goodwill of approximately RMB25 million arising from
the acquisition is attributable to the synergy of business
combination arising from the Mainland China and Hong
Kong. None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be
deductible for income tax purpose.

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets
acquired and goodwill are as follows:

AR®T R
RMB’000

EBERE (2B TXD) : Purchase consideration (refer to (b) below):
[EANEGA Cash paid 6,000
FERTRAE ) Consideration payables (i) 24,000
MIEERE Total purchase consideration 30,000

() WBEEEWHZE BTRE
15 8E202145A31 B %K
Hz®&EmNEAZE2021
F5A3TEZEER TN
@A -

(i)  According to the purchase agreement, the remaining
consideration will be paid from the expiration of six
months after the completion day May 31, 2021 and
until the expiration of eighteen months after May 31,
2021.
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32 XS (&)
(a) Wi EIEME ()

ABEERERZEENAEN

For the year ended December 31, 2021

32 BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(a) Summary of acquisition (Continued)

The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the

T: acquisition are as follows:
AR®T T
RMB’000
ReRBELEED Cash and cash equivalents 2,198
TEFRIE -« e REAFERFRIE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 729
s Inventories 25
M BEREE Property, plant and equipment 262
BREE Intangible assets 4,758
2 5 R H M ER A Trade and other payables (2,120)
ARAE Contract liabilities (224)
FEEMSHAR Deferred income tax liabilities (785)
Fr i B mT 3 ol & VB Net identifiable assets acquired 4,843
EES Goodwill 25,157
=N 325 . .
(b) BERE-RERH (b) Purchase consideration - cash outflow
ARBT
RMB’000
WEF AR ZIRE ML - MBRAUEE  Outflow of cash to acquire subsidiary, net of cash
Re acquired
RERE Cash consideration 6,000
B ReRREeEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (2,198)
BembFsE —REEe Net outflow of cash — investing activities 3,802

RUEE BHIZE 2021412 A31H
HM o BEpEERAEEEE
WA ARESE ST RFFE
ARBE2EETT » Wi EER 2021
F1ATH#ET AAEEEZE
202151231 BILEEHNA G
HERARFBEEDEHAR
2175 BBTRARKE138E

- —

BT °

NU/Hart contributed revenue of approximately RMB8
million and net profit of RMB2 million to the Group for
the period from the acquisition date to December 31,
2021. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2021,
consolidated pro-forma revenue and profit for the year
ended December 31, 2021 of the Group would have been
approximately RMB2,175 million and RMB138 million,
respectively.
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33 BB AR S

m—FAkRNEEZNEEEHS—H
BHB—FETBERIEERE LB
BAVE ¥ HRBEEBEY -
S 2R R AR — 25 s LR
# B TR 4R A B B $%IIK
EIEANB REFBRIENK B TR
T -

BREAHMBHRREMEHMKE
%9\\’50#&%?&?? 7 55 [ £ K R B
ﬁ%ﬁﬁTQDTEK?&% ARREE

RE - BRI DRBEEERBRE
Ethﬁ‘ilEﬁiXQﬁﬁH 77 P 5E 9 16
BT ARBEBBR I XHNER
BERIEMBETHEERERE -

() BB TS EWRE
HE%

HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operation decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if
they are under common control or joint control in the controlling
shareholder’s families. Members of key management and their
close family member of the Group are also considered as related
parties.

Same as those disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the following significant transactions were
carried out between the Group and its related parties during the
reporting period. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the related party transactions were carried out in the normal
course of business and at terms negotiated between the Group
and the respective related parties. The Group's pricing policies
of the transactions with related parties are determined on the
basis of mutual negotiations between the relevant parties.

(a) Names and relationships with related parties

BMEBLnE  £B BEADNFNEE

Name of related parties Relationship with the Company

RERAE AARBEmRRENRES

Mr. Zhang Yu Beneficial shareholder and director of the Company

RIS AAAEmRRRES

Mr. Zhang Hui Beneficial shareholder and director of the Company

KAREE LB R RTRR

Yonghe Yuhui Former shareholder of Beijing Haiyouyou

e LB R R RTRR

Beijing Xunyi Former shareholder of Beijing Haiyouyou

EriRyC HCPEEBNBREBEEMERER  MCPERAEX LIENEREEA
BRR

Xinsiyu A company indirectly owned by a limited partnership managed by CPE,

which is the shareholder of the general partner of Paomao Shanghai
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33 BBA RS (&) 33

(b) HEBETNEARRS

For the year ended December 31, 2021

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Significant transactions with related parties

HZE12A31HLLEE
Year ended December 31,

20215 20204
2021 2020
AR% T ARKEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
WiEFae Acquisition of a subsidiary
EiiEsC Xinsiyu 30,000 -
() FREAMFE S VLR () Year ended balances with related parties
M12H31H
As at December 31,
20214 20204
2021 2020
ARET T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EWEE S IE - FES5 Amounts due from related parties -
non-trade
KAREE Yonghe Yuhui = 97
b= Beijing Xunyi = 36
- 133
EABE®EFHIE - FES5 Amounts due to related parties -
non-trade
SR ¥ 5 A Mr. Zhang Hui - 30
EoipcC Xinsiyu 25,354 -

AL B R LT A4S TR B S
HEBREIFE S E N A bR
B TR BERRR o B4R
REEFEARTERN 2022 F45 -

The Group settled the outstanding balances with other
related parties expect for Xinsiyu, which were non-trade in
nature, before the Listing. The outstanding balance with
Xinsiyu is expected to be settled in 2022.
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33 BB ARZ (&) 33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(d) #E& (d) Guarantees
®12A31H
As at December 31,
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR®T T ARKEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ok & A ERERTT Bank borrowings guaranteed by
B (HizE26) Mr. Zhang Yu (Note 26) = 25,870
(e) FEEEEAESHFMH (e) Key management personnel compensation
TEERERRES RS AE Key management includes directors and senior officers.
8- HEERBENIENEE The compensations paid or payable to key management for
BEENFHBET employee services are shown below:
BZE12A31MBLEE
Year ended December 31,
20214 20204
2021 2020
AR%TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
TIT&  #Hae it Wages, salaries and bonuses 5,730 5,086
BESRA — AEHRR Pension costs — defined contribution
BEl plans 295 36
H At A RBCAR Other social security costs 199 140
FEEF Housing benefits 201 171
VARS A7 A 505 19 557 B Share-based compensation 24 3,484

6,449 8,917
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3 EEwRARELR 34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
RRERH  UTESERT - As the date of the report, the following directors were
appointed:
HITES Executive Directors
RE AL (HiFE@)I)) Mr. Zhang Yu (Note (a)(i))
RIS A (FiFE@)3)) Mr. Zhang Hui (Note (a)(i))
FHITES Non-executive Directors
254 (K1 (a)ii) Mr. Zhai Feng (Note (a)(ii))
B E B 5ok (M EE(a)i)) Mr. Geng Jiagi (Note (a)(ii))
BYFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
25\ 2 A (R (a)TT)) Mr. Li Xiaopei (Note (a)iii))
BRIE$9 % £ (Bt 7E(a) (i) Mr. Chan Peng Kuan (Note (a)(iii)

F#s 2+ (FEEE(a)ii) Ms. Wang Jiping (Note (a)(iii)
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34 EER/AI N () 34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)
(a) EEB &

(a) Directors’ emoluments
HZE2021F%2020512 A31H
IEFE - EEE NS EUE B
S (EHEEZTAEEZA1D R
UehERERES FMH)E&T

The directors received emoluments from the Group (in
their role as senior management and employee before their
appointment as directors respectively) for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020 were set out below:

N
ExEe
TERER ExeA— URHBERY
Hft2E ik BEEL  REMRHE FHEX @t
Basic
salaries,
housing Pension
allowances costs - defined ~ Share-based
and other Discretionary ~ contribution  compensation
allowances Fees bonuses plans expenses Total
Wi ARETR ARETR ARETR AREFR ARETR  ARETR
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BZ20215128318  For the year ended
LEE December 31, 2021
yi7Es Executive Directors
RE5ik M. Zhang Yu 0 1,304 - 140 54 - 1,498
RERE Mr. Zhang Hui () 496 - 247 54 7 804
1,800 - 387 108 7 2,302
BUkYES Independent non-executive
Directors
FMERE Mr.Li Xiaopei i) - 14 - - - 14
gt Ms. Wang Jiping (i) - 14 - - - 14
RRBEE Mr. Chan Peng Kuan (i) - 14 - - - 14
- 42 - - - 42
BZ20205128318  For the year ended
LEE December 31, 2020
HTES Executive Directors
RE5ik Mr. Zhang Yu 0 1,265 - 251 4 3,467 4,987
KL Mr. Zhang Hui () 482 - 226 3 5 716
1,747 - 477 7 3,472 5,703
(i) iR & % A RSR I St A 722020 (i) Mr. Zhang Yu and Mr. Zhang Hui were appointed as the
FORNTHEZERASEE Group's directors on September 17, 2020 and re-designated
HIWH2021F6 A1HFAT A as executive directors on June 1, 2021.
BWITESE -
(i) ZBHREERUEHEEER (i)~ Mr. Zhai Feng and Mr. Geng Jiagi were appointed as the

20209 1 7B EZ X AN
EEESUR2021F6A1H
FAERIENITES - BEAEHR
TERERBRTERUERTE
MAEBERHRBEO S I IE
AAREEFE - AR ARAE
BERBLEAENIELE -
BRSO ESRERNSE
@ °

Group's directors on September 17, 2020 and re-designated
as non-executive directors on June 1, 2021. The emoluments
of the non-executive director Mr. Zhai Feng and Mr. Geng
Jiagi in relation to their services rendered for the Group
were not borne by the Group. Their emoluments were not
allocated to the Group as the management of the Company
considers there is no reasonable basis of allocation.
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HE2021F 128318 ILFE

34 EEENRER (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EEME (&)

iy TN LE - RAHEERS
INEF AT 20216 A1 BEZ
EERNEENB I IENITES -

ESRARBERER

HZE2021F12A831HIEFE -
BERAANREET MR EE
BEAEF (20204F : £E) -

RERUESREGSE=
FRENKE

HZE2021F12A831HIEFE -
MEREREESRBERE=F
TRHEARE (20204F : #) o

BENES  EEHH
ERENHEREEELASS
ANER - BUERRE
bR 5 HE

HZE2021F12A31HIEFE -
RABENES EFZHH
ERLAHBEERAY R ANE
P FEUERREAMR S (2020
Ffm)o

EERRS  THEREY
MEAER

RELE 20204 K& 2021412 A31
AIEFEFRKAMERE - S
FAEAEESELANQRES
REFHEEAE= (BREE
sfifE) BEAREEEBAER
RMERRS - BHEREH -

For the year ended December 31, 2021

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(i)~ Ms. Wang Jiping, Mr. Chan Peng Kuan and Mr. Li Xiaopei
were appointed as the Group’s independent non-executive
directors on June 1, 2021.

Directors’ retirement and termination benefits

No retirement or termination benefits have been paid to
the Company’s directors for the year ended December 31,
2021 (2020: nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No consideration was provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services during the year ended
December 31, 2021 (2020: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans or other
dealings in favor of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

No loans, quasi-loans or other dealings were entered into
by the Company in favor of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such directors
during the year ended December 31, 2021 (2020: nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group's business to which the Group
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the years or at any time during the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2021.
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36

HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

CONTINGENCIES

The Group has been involved in some lawsuits arising in the
ordinary course of business. Provision has been made for
the probable losses to the Group on those claims when the
management can reasonably estimate the outcome of the
lawsuits taking into account of the legal advice. No provision has
been made for those pending lawsuits where the management
considered that the outcome of the lawsuits cannot be
reasonably estimated or management believes the outflow of
resources is not probable.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

The Company partially exercised the over-allotment option on
January 5, 2022, in respect of an aggregate of 7,124,500 shares
(the "Over-allotment Shares”) at a price of HKD15.80 per share.
The Company received additional net proceeds of approximately
HKD107.5 million, after deduction of underwriting fees,
commissions and other offering expenses payable by the Group.
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37 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

37 ApREEEERKR

M12A31H
As at December 31,
20215 20204
2021 2020
B aE AR¥ET T ARETTT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
&= Assets
ERBEE Non-current assets
RFRRIZIEE Investment in subsidiaries 265,039 -
IR EERE Total non-current assets 265,039 -
REBEE Current assets
JERTFIE - e REM  Prepayments, deposits and other
e FRIA receivables 102,104 -
ReRBEESEED Cash and cash equivalents 23 1,176,033 -
MBEERE Total current assets 1,278,137 -
EEHRE Total assets 1,543,176 -
&= Equity
R& AR Share capital 24 8 _
B 10 B Share premium 24 1,496,389 -
HEm#EE Other reserves 538 -
RETEE Accumulated losses (11,171) -
EEEE Total equity 1,485,764 -
=L Liabilities
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
MBI B ERRE Total non-current liabilities - -
=N Current liabilities
B 5 R E M ER FRIA Trade and other payables 57,412 -
mEN B EETE Total current liabilities 57,412 -
BEAE Total liabilities 57,412 -
EEREEHETE Total equity and liabilities 1,543,176 -

KA EEBERER202243
A24aBEESSHETHUATAL

REREE

HITES  REXE

Executive Director: Mr. Zhang Yu

MITEE : RIESE

The balance sheet of the Company were approved by the Board
of Directors on March 24, 2022 and signed on its behalf:

Executive Director: Mr. Zhang Hui
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HZE2021F12A3181EFE  For the year ended December 31, 2021

37 AATEEBEERRE 37 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

w28 (H)

(a) RAFEZLE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(a) Equity movement of the Company

kA& ROEE  HitRE  REEX ag
Share Share Other Retained
capital premium reserves earnings Total

ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR ARMTR ARET:R
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

1202051710 MEH Balance at January 1, 2020 - - - - -
R2020512 31 B8 Balance at December 31, 2020 - - - - -
R2021FE1 1B &S Balance at January 1, 2021 - - - - =
ERHE Profit for the year - - - 58,629 58,629
ERAERE Currency translation differences - - 545 - 545
2HkEAE Total comprehensive income - - 545 58,629 59,174
BREEBEEANRS Transaction with equity holders
Bk Issue of shares 2 7 - ) . -
RERBEMBITLER Issuance of ordinary shares

upon global offering 24 1 1,217,986 - - 1,217,987
RDETRA Share issuance costs 24 - (66,267) = = (66,267)
[ZY Investment Capital Ltd Issue of shares to ZY

BIIRH Investment Capital Ltd 24 - 88,689 = = 88,689

ERRREMR(FEALE Deemed capital contribution from

shareholders in Reorganization - 255,981 - - 255,981
BEAE Dividend distribution 15(a) - - - (69,800) (69,800)
R2021F12 831 AfAH Balance at December 31, 2021 8 1,496,389 538 (11,171) 1,485,764
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[RREAFAE]
“AGM"

[ASERaA ]
“Articles of Association”

MezUg & |

“Beijing Haiyouyou”

MR E |

“Beijing Xunyi”

[EEg ]

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

[KBELHS ]
“BVI"

[HREFHBQRE]

“Cayman Islands Companies
Law”

[EESR<FA]
"“CG Code”

rxf&.

“Chairman”

[ REPZER

“Chengdu Yonghe”

[ER] - [HE]

“China” or the “PRC”

[AAF ]

“Company” or “Our Company”

ARBWBRREFAE

annual general meeting of the Company

RARMEBEZME (KRRIEET)
the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time)

EERREBRERAR]
AEEZEFAF
Beijing Haiyouyou Technology Company Limited (Ib7/8hAEHEBR AR, a limited
liability company established under the laws of the PRC on September 2, 2015, an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

—HKR2015F9 A2 BREBEHFEDERKINER AR - BEAR

IRARMBERERAR - —KR2016F 11 A16 BRBHFEEERIHBREER
A BREBESOTHERBEMNF LR

Beijing Xunyi Technology Development Company Limited (JtFUARRBHERARA
Al), a limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC on November 16,
2016, our subsidiary by virtue of the Contractual Arrangements

ARBEES

the board of Directors of the Company

KBRS
the British Virgin Islands

FEHEEENE22FE(RFNE) (2018 FEFTHR) (1961 FFE350EN]) (BPRHERT ~ #FE
sl DA E A 77 g2k

the Companies Law (2018 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961),
as amended or supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

ERAI SR+ U E (B EE AT R

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

BEExexR
the Chairman of the Board

RE R RERMEERERZMBRAAF - —HKN2017F4 518 BARBERBEEREK A
BIRQA BARRNFAA - HI0%BIEHARRRES - HER10%MERIHALQFE
BE B

Chengdu Wuhou Yonghe Jimei Medical Aesthetic Clinic Company Limited (5% ZBE &%
REEEBBEXAZHAR AT, a limited liability company established under the laws
of the PRC on April 18, 2017 and a subsidiary of the Company in which 90% equity
interest is owned by the Company and the other 10% equity interest is controlled by
the Company through contractual arrangement

mEARAME  BESRARERIFHWRES2ENS -
Bk PEURRMRRIITHRERRAE

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purposes of this report and for geographical
reference only, references herein to “China” and the “PRC" do not apply to Hong
Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan

AMEHN [ E] MR - TEIE

ERBEEEERAA
NC]|

Yonghe Medical Group Co., Ltd. (EAREEEEFRAF]), a limited liability company
incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands on September 17, 2020

—ZHKR2020F9 A 17 AR BERAEHSEZREMKINEREE



[E#Z=HE]

"Contractual Arrangements”

[ 3 & b % |
“COVID-19"

E%]

“Director(s)”

[AEE RTERER]

"Group”or “Yonghe Medical”

[T
"HK dollar(s)"” or “HK$"

[&#E]
"Hong Kong”

[
“Listing”
(LA
“Listing Date”
[EmRal ]
“Listing Rules”
[EM]

“Main Board”

[ B

“Medical Institution(s)”

[Z%<FA ]
“Model Code”
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H(ERaE) gk BLBRE  IRABRAIENR BRI LN — RIS 2H
(RBERME) - BRAFBEANIERERSOLEE] —F

the series of contractual arrangements, as the case may be, entered into by,
among others, Beijing Haiyouyou, the Registered Shareholders, Beijing Xunyi and
the VIE Entities, details of which are described in the section headed “Contractual
Arrangements” in the Prospectus

2019 AMFEH
Coronavirus disease of 2019

KABIEE
the director(s) of the Company

RAaE REFRAT]
the Company and its subsidiaries

B BRETEH

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong

PEEEFRIITEHR
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

AP 20214F 12 13 BIEBZFIER £
the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on December 13,
2021

20215127138 BRERMHEZR LT A
December 13, 2021, being the date on which the Shares were listed on the Main Board

(B2 preg o AR Bl (AR PEHERT S 78)
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended or
supplemented from time to time

B6 22 T 1R
Main Board of the Stock Exchange

BPUAFE ZHEBEEZTRBENBELE BRONEREEAEEEREER (BE
JEEE) (20205 R ) ) ZEISMNEHR AR o EE2021F12A318 - HMRBNEERKER
BANFELEHZZH  BNRKITRELEBRE—LMERAT  BENEBRERLEEG
ZHBRAT  URBETESL BERRERARIERE - BHMNAFIERE] —&PI|RmER
et

Our medical institutions in the PRC providing aesthetic medical services and are
subject to foreign investment restriction in accordance with the Special Administrative
Measures for the Access of Foreign Investment (Negative List) (2020) SN & A
HRIEEER (AMEEE) (20209 ) )). Our current existing medical institutions as of
December 31, 2021 include Shenzhen Shennan Svenson Clinic CRYIIZEm 2 Ei#2 ),
Guangzhou Tianhe District Svenson First Clinic Co., Ltd. (BMK A& S EHE—2 A
AR 27]), Guangzhou Panyu District Yonghe Svenson Clinic Co., Ltd. (BMNEBE%E
AREEZZ AR AR and medical institutions listed in the section headed “History,
Development and Corporate Structure — Our Corporate Structure” in the Prospectus

FHARBIM SR AT E A EMEITAEFTETESFRZHNFETAD
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
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[BRER]

“Prospectus”

[BRERR ]
"Registered Shareholders”

[AER#

“Renminbi” or “RMB"”

&
“Reporting Period”

IR ]
“Shareholder(s)”

[ &4 ]
“Share(s)”
[ B3 A

"Stock Exchange”

[%E ]

“U.S.”, “US”, or “"United States”

=
“U.S. dollar(s)” or “US$”

[VIE |
"IE"

[T2RHEE ]

“VIE Entities”

[ERRE ]

“Yonghe Investment”

RAFRERERN > BRXERBREIN
[EZEAL] -
[ERBRRIE[FAR]EAEABA LT

[BEEE A~ [HEBEOXE ]

MAPTRE T2 F e R -

ANABIFHEEEA2021F12 A1 BNBRKRER
the prospectus issued by the Company dated December 1, 2021

ERARNOWAEARR - DHIRKREERREENBBRELEE
two individual shareholders of Beijing Xunyi, namely Mr. Zhang and Mr. ZHANG Hui,
Mr. Zhang's brother

ARY - REVEEEY

Renminbi Yuan, the lawful currency of the PRC

202151 A1 E2021F12 A31 A+ =18 A HifE
the twelve-month period from January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021

B E A
holder(s) of Share(s)

AR EIRE AR RS IR E B 0.0000025 3 LAY @ A%
ordinary share(s) with nominal value of US$0.0000025 each in the share capital of the
Company

BERMAERHMAR AT
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

EFEREREA
the United States of America

ET 0 ENBRERBETEES
United States dollar(s), the lawful currency of the United States of
America

AENDERE

variable interest entity

HMBEBANLHREHETAE O LRENER  RERERATITES -
ERRETEHANE N%%T%()ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%l\)&)ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ%

the entities that we control certain percentage of their shareholding through the
Contractual Arrangements which comprised, as at the Latest Practicable Date, Yonghe
Investment, Medical Institutions (other than Chengdu Yonghe) wholly-owned by
Yonghe Investment and Chengdu Yonghe

BRERKE

IRERBERES iﬁﬁﬁﬁ’&
A BAREINEEEZETFR
Beijing Yonghe Medical Investment Management Company Limited (it RZEREE
AEIBARAR]), a limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC on
September 30, 2015, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

Al —XKWR2015F9A30HBREFREZERIMNER A

In this annual report, the terms “associate”, “associated corporation”,
“connected person”, “controlling shareholder” and “subsidiary” shall
have the meanings given to such terms in the Listing Rules, unless the
context otherwise requires.
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